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China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (stock code: 1586. HK) was listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in 2016. The Company is China’s first
international leading inspection and testing company listed in Hong Kong,
focusing on integrated solutions for climate change and green and low-
carbon sustainable development. The Company provides global industry
leaders with a wide range of one-stop services in testing, and inspection, as
well as technical and consulting services around the clock, focusing on four
key areas, namely commodity services, clean energy, environmental protection
and climate change, empowering global industry leaders to achieve eco-
friendly and low-carbon transformation. It is the pioneer in the Chinese TIC
listed companies to fast complete a global network expanding its presence
from major trading ports and hub cities in the Asia Pacific region to emerging
markets in South America and Africa serves, and comprises 63 branches
and professional laboratories globally. Details of the Company’s services and
business scope are as follows:

Commodity sevices: with as many as 63 service outlets and 18 categories
of professional qualification certifications around the world, the Company’
s services involve more than 50 types of commodities and natural resources
we provide customers with the following energy and commodity services:
(1) quality testing services: in-house laboratory testing services according to
the international, national and regional industry standards; (2) weight survey
services: weighing services for vessels’ water gauge, flow meter, weighbridge
and cabin/shore tank capacity according to the international, national and
regional industry standards such as SO/API/ASTM/GB/SH; (3) witnessing
supervision and joint inspection services: participate in and witness the
inspection process of other third party inspection agencies on behalf of our
clients, or participate in the customs inspection of imported goods by way
of witnessing/joint-inspection to protect the interests of our clients; (4)other
technical services: supervision of assembly and disassembly, arbitral inspection,
inventory survey, on-site witnessing, cleanliness inspection, inventory
inspection and other services. The scope of services covers all energy and
commaodity categories, including but not limited to coal, crude oil, petroleum
products, petrochemical products, LPG/LNG, biofuels, raw ores, non-ferrous
concentrates, metals and alloys, industrial minerals, agricultural products, etc.
By thoroughly implementing the long-term vision of sustainable development
and upholding the fundamental principles of fairness and impartiality, we
continues to expand its professional service capacity in commodity services to
facilitate a better flow of global trade.

Clean energy: we open up new energy sectors based on wind power
and solar power generation as well as other clean energy testing services.
Our services cover quality inspection or re-inspection of metal materials,
components, spare parts, etc. for wind power, photovoltaic construction
and installation as well as manufacturing and maintenance of wind power
equipment; collection, testing as well as regular operation and maintenance
of data during wind power and photovoltaic operation to improve the stability
of power generation.
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Environmental protection: this service is categorized into environmental
protection consulting and environmental monitoring. Environmental
protection consulting services include environmental housekeeping services,
environmental impact assessment, soil pollution investigation and risk
assessment, environmental acceptance upon completion of construction
projects as well as management of and application for sewage discharge
permits. Environmental monitoring services include the monitoring of water,
wastewater, ambient air, exhaust gas, indoor air, soil, groundwater, solid
waste, sediment and noise. Our services include industrial enterprises in
various major industrial parks including rubber, metal casting, recycling,
automobile manufacturing, etc., government-commissioned inspections
on the natural environment, the land resources allocation department-
commissioned soil pollution assessment, and inspection and acceptance of
indoor air upon completion of civil buildings. LDAR provides detecting and
screening services for possible media leaks from various pipeline components
during the production process, so as to accurately locate the leaking points
and carry out repairs. In this way, loss on the cost of raw materials caused by
leaks of materials can be effectively controlled and environmental pollution
reduced for the prevention of potential safety hazards and financial losses. By
screening VOCs and methane emissions, etc., data are acquired for enterprises
to support the reduction of such emissions. LDAR services are provided for
a number of industrial enterprises, such as those engaged in petroleum and
petrochemical, chemical and chemical processing of coal, resin production,
natural gas, pharmaceutical and other production Enterprises. As a major role
in low-carbon emission reduction, LDAR services is an indispensable part of
achieving carbon neutrality by accurately filling in the gaps in carbon emission
reduction data.

Climate change: we provide customers with comprehensive solutions, which
primarily include carbon peak and neutrality related advisory services, carbon
asset development and trading services, ESG technical consulting services, and
low-carbon information-based integrated solution services, etc. The detailed
services include: 1) carbon peak and neutrality advisory technical services:
carbon emission check and evaluation, product carbon footprint evaluation,
carbon emission reduction target setting and road map study, carbon emission
management indexing and system construction, low-carbon supply chain
management, emission reduction and carbon neutrality planning, carbon
neutrality project counseling, green manufacturing technical services, energy
management and energy-saving diagnostic technical services, etc.; 2) carbon
asset development and trading services: carbon asset evaluation and due
diligence, carbon asset development and management, carbon asset value
adding management, carbon asset trading, etc.; 3) ESG technical consulting
services: ESG report preparation, ESG strategy formulation and system
construction, ESG management enhancement and rating improvement,
ESG due diligence, etc.; and 4) low-carbon information-based integrated
solution services: customized low-carbon management information system,
Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) carbon neutrality management platform, SaaS
carbon asset management platform, etc. The Company serves all domestic
and international companies involved in climate change and sustainable
development projects, mainly related to various industries, including but
not limited to power generation, petrochemicals, chemicals, iron and steel,
nonferrous metals, building materials, papermaking, etc.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company considers that its senior management are the executive
directors whose biographies are set out below and on pages 9 to 11 of this
Annual Report.

The Board currently consists of eight Directors, comprising four executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors. The following table sets forth information regarding the Directors.

EENEREEAER[N

ARBIREESRERBANTES HEEHL
T RAFHREIZIE °

E=SAAA\REFEAK  BRUZHTES
—HFNTEER =_RBUIFNTESE - TRET
BERESHNER -

Date of Appointment

Name Age Position as Director

®E FiR B EZEEEWAH
Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. LI Xiangli 60 Chairman, CEO and executive Director 13 January 2016
FRFELE IFTHAHRNTES 20164 1 A 13 H
Ms. ZHANG Alying 60 Vice president and executive Director 13 January 2016
REHRZL Bl RANTES 201641 A 138
Mr. LIU Yi 58 Vice president and executive Director 13 January 2016
1ML E BERRNTES 20164 1 A 13 H
Mr. YANG Rongbing 42 Vice chairman and executive Director 18 June 2016
BERESE BXERANTES 201656 A 18H

Non-executive Director

FHITES
Mr. HAOQ Yilei 50 Non-executive Director
Mia& T E FMITESE

23 December 2021
2021412 A23H
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEASEN

Date of Appointment

Name Age Position as Director

®E Fie B EZEESHEH
Independent non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. WANG Zichen 56 Independent non-executive Director 18 June 2016
IRERE BIAERITESR 2016456 A 18 H
Mr. ZHAO Hong 62 Independent non-executive Director 18 June 2016

AT ST A BIERITESE 20166 A 18 H
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung 58 Independent non-executive Director 23 July 2018
BERRELE BIAERITESR 201847 A23H

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Xiangli, aged 60, is the chairman, CEO and an executive Director. He
is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee. He is the spouse of Ms.
ZHANG Aiying. Mr. Li is primarily responsible for the strategic planning and
overall management of our Group. He is also the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Li joined the Group in April 2009 and was appointed
as executive Director on 13 January 2016. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Li has approximately 33 years of experience in the energy testing and
inspection field. Prior to joining the Group, from October 2008 to April 2009,
Mr. Li served as a project manager of China Certification & Inspection Group
Co., Ltd. (P H R E(EE)BR R F]), a state-owned testing company
that serves different industries, and was responsible for the establishment of
the platform for mineral inspection. From January 1989 to September 2008,
he worked at the coal inspection technology center of Qinhuangdao Entry-
Exit Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (X £ 8 X ABHBBZH) and was
promoted to a deputy director in April 2004, responsible for coal testing and
inspection.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2022
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry from Hebei Normal College
R AL B &3 E2FR ) in the PRC in July 1985, and a master’s degree in materials
science from Yanshan University (#& L/ X £2) in the PRC in December 1999,
He obtained the qualification as a senior engineer in November 2001 granted
by State Administration for Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine of the PRC ([
ROARRBRER).

Mr. Li is the sole director and sole shareholder of Leon Cornerstone
Investment Holding Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company, as
disclosed in the “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Shares” section
of the Directors’ Report. Also, Mr. Li, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi (&l
) entered into an acting-in-concert deed on 31 January 2016. Pursuant
to the deed, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi (2]3]) shall support Mr. Li's
decisions on material matters in relation to the operation and management of
the Group by exercising their voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders
and boards of the members of the Group in accordance with the decision of
Mr. Li.

Ms. ZHANG Aiying, aged 60, is a vice president of the Company and an
executive Director. She is also a member of the Remuneration Committee.
She is the spouse of Mr. LI Xiangli. Ms. Zhang is primarily responsible for
overall business management, overall management of the procurement and
human resources departments of the Group. She is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Ms. Zhang was appointed as executive Director on
13 January 2016. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Zhang has over 20 years of experience in energy field. Prior to joining our
Group, from May 1995 to February 2005. Ms. Zhang served as a manager of
examination department of Shanxi Coal Import & Export Group Qinhuangdao
Branch (LUFEERE L O KEZRZESE59 A A]), a company primarily engaged
in coal trading, and was responsible for coal testing. From August 1988 to
May 1995, she was a teacher at No. 11 High School of Qinhuangdao (R £ &
M +—r ), and was responsible for teaching chemistry.

Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry from Hebei Normal
College (L AMEE 2P ) in the PRC in July 1988.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEASEN

Ms. Zhang is the sole director and sole shareholder of Swan Stone Investment
Holding Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company (by virtue of the
Listing Rules), as disclosed in the “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the
Shares” section of the Directors’ Report. Also, Ms. Zhang, Mr. LI Xiangli
and Mr. LIU Yi (2/3) entered into an acting-in-concert deed on 31 January
2016. Pursuant to the deed, Ms. Zhang and Mr. LIU Yi (%] 3}) shall support
Mr. LI Xiangli's decisions on material matters in relation to the operation and
management of the Group by exercising their voting rights at the meetings of
the shareholders and boards of the members of the Group in accordance with
the decision of Mr. LI Xiangli.

Mr. LIU Yi, aged 58, is a vice president of the Company and an executive
Director. He is primarily responsible for overall management of sales, quality
control and research. Mr. Liu joined the Group in February 2010 as deputy
general manager of Lihong Inspection, and was appointed as executive
Director on 13 January 2016. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the
Company.

Mr. Liu has approximately 34 years of experience in the energy testing and
inspection field. Prior to joining the Group, from September 1988 to January
2010, Mr. Liu worked with Qinhuangdao Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine
Bureau (RE2 5 H AHHEEIZ /D) and was promoted to the director of the
coal inspection technology center in September 2003, responsible for coal
inspection. From July 1987 to September 1988, he was a teacher at Hebei
Building Materials Vocational and Technical College (A1t 3 i Bk 2Rl 20,
and was responsible for teaching analytical chemistry.

Mr. Liu obtained a master’'s degree in materials engineering from Yanshan
University (3L KX 2) in the PRC in November 2006. He obtained the
qualification as a senior engineer in June 1998 granted by National
Commodity Inspection Bureau (B X & ® & % /), currently known as
General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of

the RC(BXEEBEERRBRBERER).

Mr. Liu, Mr. LI Xiangli and Ms. ZHANG Aiying entered into an acting-in-
concert deed on 31 January 2016. Pursuant to the deed, Mr. Liu and Ms.
ZHANG Aiying shall support Mr. LI Xiangli’s decisions on material matters in
relation to the operation and management of the Group by exercising their
voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders and boards of the members
of the Group in accordance with the decision of Mr. LI Xiangli.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2022
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YANG Rongbing, aged 42, is an executive Director. Mr. Yang was
appointed as independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2016 and was
mainly responsible for providing independent opinion to the Board. He was
re-designated as executive Director on 23 July 2018 as well as appointed as
the vice chairman and is mainly responsible for corporate strategies, capital
planning, internal control and compliance of the Group. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Yang, holder of a MBA from Central University of Finance and Economics,
was a distinguished professor of Capital University of Economics and
Business. He has served in the capital markets in both Mainland China and
Hong Kong for a long period of time. He is an expert in adopting innovative
financial tools to provide support to enterprises on sustainable development
and continuously improving capital vehicles. Mr. Yang previously served as
an executive director and the chief executive officer of SMI Holdings Group
Limited (2 F 2 £ B AR A &8)) (“SMI Holdings”), a company once listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 0198). Before joining
SMI Holdings in 2010, Mr. Yang served in various financial and investment
roles in State-owned enterprises and institutions such as Beijing Golden Tide
Group Co., Ltd. (3t & Z= £ B A R A 7)), Foreign Economic Cooperation
Office under Ministry of Environmental Protection (Bl 5 3% 5% (R € 28 ¥ SN &
YEHL3) and Center for Development of Trade and Control of Investment in

Europe (BUM P X B R EERH D).
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EENSREEASEN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. HAO Yilei, aged 50, is the non-executive Director. He is primarily
responsible for providing business guidance in relation to the industry to the
Group. Mr. Hao was appointed as the non-executive Director on 23 December
2021.

Mr. Hao has over 26 years of experience in the inspection-related industry and
is currently the vice president of China Inspection Company Limited (7 B4
BAERAT

the renewable resources inspection department. CIC is a company primarily

) (“CIC"). Mr. Hao joined CIC in 2017 as the general manager of

engaged in inspection and certification service and is a substantial shareholder
of the Company, indirectly holding more than 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company through its subsidiary. Prior to joining CIC, Mr. Hao was
responsible for managing and inspecting the issuance of certificates of origin
in China at the Division of the Inspection and Certification Department (f
%528 5F 7)) of the former China Commodity Inspection Bureau (B 5 #E H O
P A 5 B) from 1995 to 1998. He was responsible for the management
of inspection and supervision of the imports and exports of light industrial
products such as textile raw materials, textile products and toys at the
]
Administration for Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (B % H A
588 %% D) from 1998 to 2001. From 2001 to 2004, he was in charge
of the handling of China’s technical barriers to trade in the Department of
International Cooperation (WTO Office (B R & #E RI(WTO # & =))) of
the former General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and
Quarantine of the People’s Republic of China (B &% 425) (AQSIQ). From
2004 to 2012, he was the deputy director and director of the Inspection and
Supervision Department (i 5 B2 & 7)) of the former AQSIQ, and was in
charge of the management of inspection and supervision of China’s import

Inspection and Supervision Department (/& ) of the former State

and export of commodities, chemicals and renewable resources. From 2012 to
2017, Mr. Hao served as the director of the Mechanical and Electrical Products
Office of the Inspection and Supervision Department (1% % 25 & 7] # & &= @
®ERE IR ) in the former AQSIQ and was responsible for the inspection and
supervision of the import and export of mechanical and electrical products in
the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Hao obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree in International Trade,
Commodity Inspection and Survey from the School of Business Administration
of the University of International Business and Economics in 1995.
Subsequently, he obtained a degree in Master of Laws from the School of
Law at the same university in 2002.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Zichen, aged 56, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Wang is primarily responsible for providing independent advice and judgment
to the Board. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Wang was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2016.

Since September 2007, Mr. Wang has been working with China Bohai Bank
Co., Ltd (/B8R 1TR 1D B R A A)) and is currently a branch head of China
Bohai Bank Co., Ltd Tianjin Fifth Avenue Branch (#8177 B R A &
K2 ZE A K Z97), responsible for the management and operation of the
branch.

Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in software engineering from Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (16 AT ZEFT K K E) in the PRC in
July 2010. He obtained the qualification as a certified cost engineer (FEffti&
& TF2EM) granted by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of the PRC (FRE AR HEFBEREFI 4572 5% 5F) in 2001. He also obtained
the qualification as a senior engineer granted by China State Construction
Engineering Corporation (R B2 L T #2422 &]) in December 2008.

Mr. ZHAO Hong, aged 62, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Zhao is primarily responsible for providing independent advice and judgment
to the Board. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhao
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2016.

Currently, Mr. Zhao is an independent director of Zhejiang Kaier New
Materials Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 300234), a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange in the PRC.

Mr. Zhao has extensive experience in thermal engineering. Since March 1991,
Mr. Zhao has been serving as a teacher in College of Energy Engineering
of Zhejiang University and has been responsible for teaching and scientific
research.

Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in thermal energy from Zhejiang
University in the PRC in July 1984, and a master’s degree in engineering from
Zhejiang University in the PRC in January 1991. He obtained the qualification
as a professor in December 2001 granted by Personnel Department of
Zhejiang Province (#TT& AEEE).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEASEN

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung, aged 58, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Liu is primarily responsible for providing independent opinion and judgement
to the Board. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 23 July 2018.

Mr. Liu has over 33 years of experience in the field of auditing, accounting,
finance, management and secretarial work. Mr. Liu received his Master of
Science degree from the University of Hong Kong in 2002. He is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Liu previously served as director and senior management positions with
a number of public companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including being
a director and joint chief executive officer of PanAsialum Holdings Company
Limited (Stock code: 2078); an executive director and the chief financial
officer of Genvon Group Limited (now known as Beijing Health (Holdings)
Limited, Stock code: 2389); a director, the chief executive officer and the
chief financial officer of Tonic Industries Holdings Limited (now known as
China Merchants Land Limited, Stock code: 0978); the company secretary
of Tungtex (Holdings) Company Limited (Stock code: 518) and an executive
director and the company secretary, and the chairman and chief executive
officer of Alco Holdings Limited (Stock code: 328). Besides, Mr. Liu previously
worked at international accounting firms for a total of nine years and gained
extensive experience in accounting, auditing and taxation of listed companies.
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Dear Shareholders,

The year of 2022 was another year full of challenges from the external
business environment, in which the Company continued to overcome
difficulties and seize opportunities amidst the challenges. The Group focused
on high-quality and steady development and continuously improved its
operational efficiency, brand credibility and industry influence through
adherence to the development policy of seeking progress with stability,
and embracement of the business philosophy of long-term vision and
the corporate values featuring a culture of reliability. During the year, the
synergies among the various business segments were fully utilized to deliver
remarkable revenue results in a sluggish market, demonstrating again the
Company's business resilience during cycles and stability in delivering business
results.

ESG-oriented development is a key priority for the Group's “2+X"
development strategy. Through the three main implementation dimensions of
(1) ESG-Friendly; (2) ESG+; and (3) ESG-Focused, we continued to explore the
ESG path of in the fields of commaodity services, clean energy, environmental
protection and climate change, fulfilled our corporate social responsibility, and
contributed to the green and low-carbon transition of the industry.

Guided by its “ESG Development Strategy”, the Group’s ESG business
engine has continued to deliver fruitful results. The Group actively seized the
tremendous opportunities brought by the blossoming development of the
global emerging markets and expanded its presence from major trading ports
and hub cities in the Asia Pacific region to emerging markets in South America
and Africa, actively contributing to the global green and low-carbon transition.
In the first half of the year, we successfully launched the consultation on
voluntary carbon emission reduction projects and successfully assisted our
clients to complete the filing of international carbon reduction mechanism
projects, supporting them to fully fulfill their corporate social responsibility.
Additionally, the Company compiled the first “Global Voluntary Carbon
Market Report (2 2k B FEfix T 45 M &5 )" of the Group to better inform the
public of the current development of the global voluntary carbon market and
to raise the public’s awareness of carbon peaking, carbon neutrality as well
as green and low-carbon transition. Meanwhile, the Company also actively
participated in the formulation of national and industrial standards related
to greenhouse gas accounting for emission reduction in 2022, to fill the void
and lead the innovation of the industry, so as to bring about a more positive
impact on the long-term sustainable development of the environment and
society.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

As a leader in the testing and inspection segment, we provide quality
professional services to assist our global customers in meeting the various
challenges throughout the supply chain, including safety, environment,
social responsibility, and product or service quality issues, empowering them
to move forward to green and low-carbon transition more efficiently. We
continue to pursue and practice the path of sustainable development, and
have integrated sustainability into our corporate strategy, organizational
culture, and all our business practices. During the period, we continued
to enhance the management structure mechanism and related policies on
sustainable development, strengthened our capacity building in sustainability,
and facilitated the smooth implementation of our sustainable development
initiatives to create sustainable business value with all partners. For details,
please refer to the ESG report in this report.

The Group is committed to setting the benchmark for sustainable
development industry. We will continue to assess the market and situation
to capture strategic opportunities and to create and realize sustainable
development together with our partners, in order to contribute to the
promotion of global green and low-carbon transition and the shaping of a
better greener world. At the same time, we will promote green and low-
carbon transition in an orderly manner on the premise of safeguarding energy
security based on the basic national conditions. Capitalizing on our core
advantages as the industry leader on testing in the energy segment, we are
devoted to facilitating global trade transition and contributing to national
energy supply and national energy security.

On behalf of the management of the Group, | would like to express my

heartfelt gratitude to all of you. The Group will continue to strive forward and
create better returns for shareholders.

Mr. Li Xiangli
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The business operations of the Company in 2022 were challenged by a
variety of unexpected factors. The Group delivered stable performance
amid the challenging business environment and streamlined management
systems, continuing to enhance its brand credibility and seizing opportunities
amidst challenges. By fully capturing the booming TIC market and riding on
the advantage of the Group's leadership in various segments, the Group
continued to strengthen its operational efficiency and core competitive
advantages, continuing its high-quality and steady development momentum
during the year. During the period, the Company recorded revenue of
HK$944.0 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 15.3%; profit for
the year reached HK$104.8 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
16.9%; profit attributable to owners of the Company recorded HK$69.4
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 39.3%.

During the period, the Group actively seized the tremendous opportunities
brought by the blossoming development of the global emerging markets and
expanded its presence from major trading ports and hub cities in the Asia
Pacific region to emerging markets in South America and Africa. Currently,
the Group has 63 branches and laboratories in various countries including
Singapore, Indonesia, Malaysia, India, Pakistan, Australia, Brunei, Bangladesh,
Argentina and South Africa. By leveraging the geographical advantages of our
network, the Group provided better services to our global industry-leading
customers.

Business progress of each segment during the period

The Company provides global industry leaders with a wide range of one-stop
services in testing, and inspection, as well as technical and consulting services
around the clock, focusing on four key areas, namely commodity services,
clean energy, environmental protection and climate change, empowering
global industry leaders to achieve eco-friendly and low-carbon transformation.
ESG-oriented development is a key priority for the Group’s “2+X"
development strategy. Through the three main implementation dimensions
of (1) ESG+; (2) ESG-Focused; and (3) ESG-Friendly, we have achieved our
ESG development strategies, fulfilled our corporate social responsibility, and
contributed to the green and low-carbon transition of the industry. During the
year, the Company capitalized on the synergy of various business segments
to drive the overall growth of revenue. Details of business progress of the
segments under each dimension are set out below:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWED

1. ESG+:

The Company’s ESG+ business consists of three core business sectors,
namely clean energy, environmental protection and climate change,
focusing on environmental protection and supporting clients to actively
respond to climate change, thereby directly contributing to the green
and low-carbon transition of the industry.

(1)  Clean energy business: The Company provides testing services
in the new energy segment based on wind power and solar
power generation as well as other clean energy fields, and its
major customers include major players in the energy transition
including domestic thermal power, gas and petrochemical
industry leaders. During the year, we actively promoted
inspection and testing technology innovation and successfully
launched a number of services for the wind and solar industries
to continuously broaden our business diversity. Leveraging on
our industry experience and strengths, we efficiently expanded
our customer base by catering for the transition demand from
our existing customers. Up to now, the Company has served
16 leading customers in the new energy industry and provided
technical service support for various projects including major wind
and solar power generation projects, driving the gradual low-
carbon transition and green development of the electric energy
system.

(2) Environmental protection business: The Company provides
environmental inspection and testing services, including services
relating to ecological monitoring, consulting on environmental
protection technology, environmental impact assessment, soil
pollution investigation, professional total solution operator
for environmental protection, as well as sales and operation
maintenance of online monitoring equipment, with a huge
customer base covering major and local state-owned enterprises
focused on domestic gas industry giants and petrochemical
industry giants. During the year, the environmental protection
business continued to gain momentum, and the Company
participated in many environmental protection facilities projects
with a 100% one-time pass rate in expert assessment. During the
year, we served as the total solution provider for a national-level,
a municipal-level and two district-level industrial parks.

The Company further strengthens its environmental protection
service offerings through leakage detection and repair (“LDAR")
services, which play a major role in the low-carbon transition
and serve as a critical component to achieve carbon neutrality
objectives. Through steady development, LDAR business network
has been quickly established and recorded encouraging segment
growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Climate change business: The Company provides comprehensive
solutions for customers, mainly covering technical services such as
carbon neutrality consulting, carbon asset development and trading,
ESG consulting and low-carbon information integrated solution
services. All the relevant key strategic customers are core participants in
establishing clean, low-carbon, safe and efficient energy systems. The
Company actively assisted its customers to enhance efficiency, reduce
energy usage and reduce emissions, supporting their sustainable low-
carbon and green development strategy. During the year, the Company
secured nine new industry-leading customers, including leading state-
owned enterprises in the oil and gas industry to provide them with
technology consulting in methane emission reduction and control,
actively assisting the low-carbon transition of enterprises in the oil and
gas industry.

The Company successfully supported industry-leading customers to
achieve their corporate carbon neutrality targets through its one-stop
comprehensive carbon neutrality solution, actively assisted customers
to successfully complete the filing of international carbon reduction
mechanism projects, assisting them to fully fulfill their corporate social
responsibility and become industry leaders in terms of low-carbon and
sustainable development. Additionally, to raise the public’s awareness
of carbon peaking, carbon neutrality as well as green and low-carbon
transformation, the Company compiled the first “Global Voluntary
Carbon Market Report (2 3% B Faf 35 45 )" of the Group to better
inform the public of the current development of the global voluntary
carbon market, so as to encourage a more positive impact on the
long-term sustainable development of the environment and society.
Meanwhile, the Company also actively participated in the formulation
of national and industrial standards related to greenhouse gas
accounting for emission reduction in 2022, to fill the void and lead the
innovation of the industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWED T

ESG-Focused:

Capturing the global trend of green and sustainable economic
development and fully utilizing the favorable government policies, the
Company has been focusing on “ESG-oriented development”, while
continuing to upgrade its own ESG management standards, strive to
fulfil its social responsibility, establish industry benchmarks and enhance
its brand influence to achieve long-term sustainable development.
Meanwhile, we strengthened our sustainability, continued to enhance
our professional service capability in ESG-related fields such as green
and low-carbon, energy saving, and emission reduction services and
focused on potential investment opportunities. Under the “2+X"
development strategy, the Company has extended the business scope
to clean energy, environmental protection, climate change and other
ESG services. In the future, we will also speed up our investment plans
in line with the Group’s ESG strategy, focusing on potential mergers
and acquisitions targets and investment opportunities with green,
low-carbon and sustainable growth potential, and actively assist our
customers to achieve a green and low-carbon transition with a full
spectrum of services and excellent service capabilities.

ESG-Friendly:

By thoroughly implementing its long-term vision of sustainable
development and upholding the fundamental principles of fairness
and impartiality, the Group continues to expand its professional service
capacity in commodity services to facilitate a better flow of global trade.
With as many as 63 service outlets and 18 categories of professional
qualification certifications around the world, the Company’s services
involve more than 50 types of commodities and natural resources.
Regarding commodity services as the pillar of the Company’s core
business, the Company has established its leading market position in
the segments with distinguished brand credibility through years of
remarkable efforts and growth. The Company also made further R&D
investment and participated in the formulation and revision of standards
to propel the development of industry standards. Through the in-house
R&D Center (7% 88 IR 08| B T8 58 B ) focused on the innovation of
testing and inspection technologies, the Company ensures efficient and
superior service quality and better serves the key industry leaders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Prospect

Embracing the business philosophy of long-term vision, the Company firmly
implements the “2+X" development strategy. The Company accurately
captures the market trends in various segments, seizes opportunities to
acquire high-quality targets, and devises a forward-looking plan in advance
for the areas of strategic advantages. While centering on commodity services,
the Company has successfully extended the “X” business to clean energy,
environmental protection, climate change and other ESG services through
global M&A activities. At the same time, the Company has also expanded its
international network presence in emerging markets in Southeast Asia, South
America and Africa.

Based on our successful overseas experiences, the Company adopts a
unique mergers and acquisitions approach emphasizing on corporate
culture alignment. The Company adheres to its “long-term vision” and
promotes a “reliable and accountable culture”. We strive to seek long-term
"business partners” in the selection of projects and teams in the process of
new business expansion. Business partners adapt to the local competitive
environment, so as to enhance operational efficiency and optimise customer
experience. On this basis, the Company will carry out effective empowerment
in brand, technology, talent and capital. In order to lay a solid foundation for
the Company’s long-term sustainable development, we are devoted to build
a business platform where shareholders, the Company and the team enable
to ensure the consistency and continuity of the long-term and short-term
interests of all stakeholders.

The Company has been awarded “Asia’s 200 Best Under A Billion” by Forbes,
the international renowned financial magazine, for two consecutive years.
The Company is highly recognized by the market for its excellent governance
and operational capabilities. In the future, on the basis of continuing to
consolidate its brand strengths and operational capabilities, the Group will
further accurately capture emerging development opportunities in the market
resulting from new economic drivers focusing on green and low-carbon
development. We will actively seek mergers and acquisitions opportunities in
the global TIC market, leverage the unique advantages and enhance synergies,
thereby providing sustainable momentum for the Company’s business
expansion. The Company will also fully grasp the opportunities to cooperate
with global leading customers, optimize resources allocation, continue to
empower the green and low-carbon industry, and further consolidate its
industry-leading position.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

LON
ZAUNCIE/ 2PN A RN

Revenue
Profit attributable to owners of the
Company

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by 15.3% from approximately HK$818.8
million in 2021 to approximately HK$944.0 million in 2022. The Group
successfully expanded its presence internationally from major trading ports
and hub cities in the Asia Pacific region to emerging markets in South America
and Africa during the period. With its global presence, the Group further
enhanced its ability to serve industry leaders. We leveraged our leading
advantage to increase collaboration with existing customers and enhance the
customers’ loyalty. Meanwhile, we delivered unexpectedly growth in various
business segments by securing a string of major clients during the year, which
created a strong revenue driver to expand our overall earnings.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The Group's profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
increased by 39.3% from approximately HK$49.8 million in 2021 to
approximately HK$69.4 million in 2022. During the year, the Company
captured TIC market trend and continued to strengthen quality control and
enhance resource allocation, effectively boosting the operating efficiency and
delivering effective cost control. Led by the “ESG-oriented development”, the
Company’s four major business divisions, namely commodity services, clean
energy, environment protection and climate change fully delivered maximum
synergy and achieved promising results.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group's cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash and bank
balances denominated in RMB, HK$, USD and SGD. The Group remained
in a strong cash position throughout 2021 and 2022, with cash and cash
equivalents of HK$150.6 million and HK$222.3 million as at 31 December
2021 and 2022 respectively.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

The Group had net cash inflows from operating activities of approximately
HK$176.4 million in 2022 (2021: HK$134.7 million) respectively. The increase
in the Group's cash flows from operating activities was primarily due to higher
revenue generation.

Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities

The Group had net cash outflows used in financing activities of approximately
HK$37.0 million in 2022 (2021: HK$18.5 million). This was primarily due
to (1) repayment of borrowings, interest and lease liabilities of HK$40.7
million (2021: HK$94.5 million); (2) dividend payment of HK$18.7 million
(2021: HK$27.9 million); and (3) purchase of shares for share award scheme
of HK$4.1 million (2021: HK$6.3 million), partially offset by additional
borrowings of HK$26.5 million (2021: HK$50.0 million).

Commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total capital commitment of
approximately HK$40.0 million for contracted but not performed acquisition
of property, plant and equipment.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$222.3 million as at 31
December 2022. The Group is in a strong and healthy financial position and
has enough resources to support its operations and meet its foreseeable
capital expenditures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Treasury Management and Funding Policy

The primary objectives of our capital management are to safeguard our ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order
to support our business and maximise our shareholders’ value. We manage
and adjust our capital structure considering changes in economic conditions
and the risks of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust our capital
structure, we may adjust dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or raise funds through issuing new shares.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach towards its
treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout
the year under review. To manage the Group's liquidity risk, the management
monitors the Group’s liquidity position and maintains sufficient cash and cash
equivalents within the Group, as well as ensuring the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to
settle the payables of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities or guarantees to third parties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gearing Ratio

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The calculation
of gearing ratio is based on total net debt divided by capital plus net debt
and multiplied by 100.0%. Net debt is calculated as trade payables, other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings,
and convertible bonds, less cash and cash equivalents as shown in the

consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital is calculated as

“equity attributable to owners of the Company” as shown in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings
Convertible bonds

Less: Cash and cash equivalents
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378,268 347,638

349,939 371,858

Capital and net debt BEXRBEERE
Gearing ratio (Note) TEAR L E (M 5E)

6.51%

Note: Gearing ratio is zero when the amount of cash and cash equivalents is higher than

gross debt (2021: 6.51%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a customer’s or counterparty’s
inability to meet its obligations. The Group enters into transactions only with
recognized and creditworthy parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to have credit transactions with the Group are subject to credit
verification procedures taking into account the customers’ financial position
and the Group's past experience with the customers.

In addition, the Group monitors receivable balances on an ongoing basis.
The management of the Group evaluates the creditworthiness of its existing
and prospective customers and ensures that the customers have adequate
financing for the projects as well as the source of the financing. No collateral
is required.

The Group's other financial assets include financial assets included trade and
other receivables, pledged deposits and bank balances. The credit risk of
these financial assets arises from default of the counterparty. The maximum
exposure to credit risk equals to the carrying amounts of these assets.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group was exposed to foreign currency risk on cash and cash equivalents
and convertible bonds that were denominated in a currency other than
respective functional currencies of the Group’s entities. The currencies giving
rise to this risk were primarily Hong Kong dollar and United States dollar.

Significant Investments

The Group did not have any significant investments during the year.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2022, certain investment properties of the Group with a
total carrying value of HK$16.8 million (2021: HK$19.2 million) were pledged
to obtain a banking facility from a bank amounting to HK$11.2 million (2021:
HK$12.2 million).

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's buildings with a total carrying
value of HK$30.9 million (2021: nil) were pledged to obtain a banking facility
from a bank amounting to HK$14.1 million (2021: nil).

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group has no significant events after the reporting year up to the date of
this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
for enhancing the management of the Company as well as preserving the
interests of its shareholders and other stakeholders. The Company has
adopted the CG Code. Corporate governance provides the framework within
which the Board forms its decisions and build its businesses. The entire
Board focuses on creating long-term sustainable growth for shareholders
and delivering long-term values to all stakeholders. We believe that an
effective corporate governance structure allows the Company to have a better
understanding of, evaluate and manage, risks and opportunities (including
environmental and social risks and opportunities).

The corporate value of the Company is to serve our customers in lawful,
ethical and responsible manner. All Directors act with integrity and promote
the culture of integrity. Such culture instils and continually reinforces
across the corporate values. During the year, the Board closely monitor the
implementation of corporate governance practice, risk management and
internal control systems to ensure the corporate objective, values and strategy
and the Company’s culture are aligned.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year ended 31 December
2022, the Company had complied with all code provisions as set out in the
CG Code save for the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code
while such deviation is explained in the relevant paragraph below of this
corporate governance report.

The Board will, from time to time, review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure that the Company continues to meet the
requirements of the CG Code.
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A. THE BOARD

A1.

A2.

Responsibilities and Delegation

The powers and duties of our Board include managing our
business, convening general meetings, reporting our Board’s
work at our Shareholder’s meetings, preparing financial budgets
and final reports, formulating proposals for profit distributions as
well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred
by our Articles.

Board Composition, Succession and Evaluation

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises eight
members, which consist of four executive Directors, one non-
executive Director, and three independent non-executive
Directors, as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangli (Chairman and CEQ)
Ms. ZHANG Aiying

Mr. LIU Yi

Mr. YANG Rongbing (Vice Chairman)

Non-executive Director
Mr. HAO Yilei

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WANG Zichen

Mr. ZHAO Hong

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung

Mechanism regarding independent views and inputs to the
Board

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. The Board reviews the
implementation and effectiveness of such mechanism(s) on an
annual basis. The Board considers that such mechanism has been
implemented properly and effectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A summary of the mechanisms is set out below:

(@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Composition

The Board ensures the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one-
third of its members being independent non-executive
Directors (or such higher threshold as may be required
by the Listing Rules from time to time), with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Further, independent non-
executive Directors will be appointed to Board Committees
as required under the Listing Rules and as far as practicable
to ensure independent views are available.

Independence Assessment

The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the
Nomination Policy with regard to the nomination and
appointment of independent non-executive Directors,
and is mandated to assess annually the independence of
independent non-executive Directors to ensure that they
can continually exercise independent judgement.

Compensation

No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to independent non-executive
Directors as this may lead to bias in their decision-making
and compromise their objectivity and independence.

Board Decision Making

Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
are entitled to seek further information from the
management on the matters to be discussed at Board
meetings and, where necessary, independent advice from
external professional advisers at the Company’s expense.

A Director (including independent non-executive Director)
who has a material interest in a contract, transaction or
arrangement shall not vote or be counted in the quorum
on any Board resolution approving the same.

Board Evaluation

The quality and efficiency of discussions at Board meetings
are assessed by the Chairman.
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A3. Chairman and Chief Executive

A4.

Currently, Mr. LI Xiangli takes up the roles of both chairman
of the Board and CEO, which is deviated from code provision
C.2.1 of the CG Code that the roles of chairman and CEO of
the Company are performed by the same individual. The Board
considers that Mr. Li possesses the essential leadership skills to
manage the Board and extensive knowledge in the business of
the Group. In the opinion of the Directors, through supervision
by the Board and the independent non-executive Directors,
together with effective control of the Company’s internal check
and balance mechanism, the same individual performing the
roles of chairman and CEO can achieve the goal of improving
the Company's efficiency in decision-making, execution and
effectively capturing business opportunities. The Board will review
the effectiveness of this arrangement from time to time.

During the year, the chairman met once with independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of other directors.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All Directors are appointed for a specific term, subject to
renewal upon expiry of the existing term. Each of the Directors
is appointed for a term of three years pursuant to their service
contracts, letters of appointment, or service agreements.

Details of specific term of each of the Directors are set out in the
paragraph headed “Directors’ Service Contracts” of the Directors’
Report.

According to the Articles, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation at each AGM. The Directors who shall
retire in each year will be those who have been longest in the
office since their last re-election or appointment, but as between
persons who become or were last re-elected Directors on the
same day, those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. The retiring Directors should
be eligible for re-election at the relevant AGM. In addition, any
new Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company
after his/her appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting, whereas any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election. The
Director appointed by the Board as aforesaid shall be eligible for
re-election at the relevant general meeting.
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A5. Training and Continuing Development for

Directors

Newly appointed Directors will receive formal induction on the
first occasion of their appointment, so as to ensure that they have
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and that they are fully aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. Such induction shall be supplemented by visiting
to the Company’s key plant sites and meetings with senior
management of the Company.

The existing Directors are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, and the business and market changes
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Trainings and
professional development for Directors are arranged whenever
necessary. In addition, reading materials on new or changes to
salient laws and regulations applicable to the Company are provided
to Directors from time to time for their studying and reference.

The Directors are required to submit to the Company details
of the training they received in each financial year for the
Company’s maintenance of proper training records of the
Directors. According to the training records currently maintained
by the Company, during the year, the Directors had complied
with the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on participation in
continuous professional training as follows:

A5.

EEERRE

EENRIIREERRE

BRATEFIRNEERERIRE
REAABIES - URRHEER T EAX
RAMEBREEA R T2 MEB(LT
RADRMHREERETA TEEELRE
%o REREANEEARARANEER
FYBRARBNSHEREABRSHER
3T

REEFATHESEREIENEEH
RAREBRTEEENZHER - U
BETRENBE BEVERELH
BIIRETERER - W EETEH
BRIGEARARRRINIT E2ERZE
MABERESHNHEME  UHRES
BR2E -

EEANSMBRFERNARRRERED
BEIZOFIFE UWEARARGEEZES
HBEHIRE RIEARFBEANFE
WEFIRE EERNFACER(EE
EVRTRDEC1AKT G2 AT
FEFEEEI

Type of training/education

Bl HERR

Reading regulatory

Attending training
on regulatory
development,

directors’ duties or

other relevant topics

updates or corporate
governance related
materials or
materials relevant to
directors’ duties

HERRESRE - HMEEERHTEMN

EERER HOXEREBHEAMRBR

Name of Director EEHR HibaEEERE HESREFHENME
Mr. LI Xiangli FRIMEE v v
Ms. ZHANG Aiying REHLZ T v v
Mr. LIU Yi B v v
Mr. YANG Rongbing HEEEE v v
Mr. HAO Yilei ML v v
Mr. WANG Zichen FrRELEE v v
Mr. ZHAO Hong AT % A v v
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung B2 il o 5t A v v
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A6. Directors’ Attendance Records at Meetings

A7.

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company
held during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out below:

Board

Meeting
Name of Director BEEfZ Exegs
Executive Directors: BTES:
Mr. LI Xiangli FRMEE 4/4
Ms. ZHANG Alying RERZ T 4/4
Mr. LIU Yi 2 r A 4/4
Mr. YANG Rongbing CE Lt 4/4
Non-executive Director: FBTES:
Mr. HAO Yilei MRz EE 4/4
Independent non- BYFHTES:

executive Directors:

Mr. WANG Zichen ITREEE 4/4
Mr. ZHAO Hong HAT A 4/4
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung BRI EE 4/4

N/A:  not applicable

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding dealings in the securities of the Company
by the Directors and the Company’s employees who, because
of such offices or employments, are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities.

Having made specific enquiry by the Company with all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code regarding directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 December
2022.
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Audit Remuneration

Committee
Meeting
EREES
=E

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A

3/3
3/3
3/3

A7.

EENEREFERLE

ZEEHEARAEZE2022F12 A31
BIEFEHHRTNESSSH ESF
ZEeeRMBRRERASNLEHTIMT

Nomination
Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting
¥MzEE REZEE
=L =F BRAE
N/A 1 1N
11 N/A 11
N/A N/A 17
N/A N/A 1N
N/A N/A 1N
1N ”n 1N
1N 1 1N
N/A N/A 1N
N/A = i
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code.

Role and Function of the Board and the
Management

The Company has set out the respective functions and
responsibilities which are reserved to the Board and delegated
to management or Board committees. The Board delegates
day-to-day operations of the Group to management while
reserving certain key matters, mainly relating to the approval and
monitoring of the Group's overall strategies, policies and business
plans, and overseeing and evaluating the performance of the
Group. It is also responsible for promoting the success of the
Group and its businesses by directing and supervising the Group's
affairs. Board committees for specific functions are also set up to
ensure efficient Board operations. The composition and functions
of each Board committee and their major roles and functions
are described below. The final decision still rests with the Board
unless otherwise provided for in the terms of reference of the
relevant Board committees.

Relationship between Directors

Set out below are the relationship between Directors as required
to be disclosed under paragraph B(h) of the CG Code:

1. Mr. LI Xiangli is the spouse of Ms. ZHANG Aiying.

2. Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi entered
into an acting-in-concert deed on 31 January 2016
whereby Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi shall support
Mr. LI Xiangli's decisions on material matters in relation to
the operation and management of our Group by exercising
their voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders and
boards of the members of our Group in accordance with
the decision of Mr. LI Xiangli.
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B. BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three Board committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees have been established with defined written
terms of reference which are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkexnews.hk) and on the Company’s website
(www.leontest.com). All the Board committees should report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

B1. Remuneration Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee comprises a total of three members, being two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. ZHAO Hong
(chairman of the committee) and Mr. WANG Zichen, and one
executive Director, namely Ms. ZHANG Aiying. Throughout the
year, the Company had met the Listing Rules requirements of
having the majority of the Remuneration Committee members
being independent non-executive Directors as well as having the
committee chaired by an independent non-executive Director.

The primary function of the Remuneration Committee is to
develop remuneration policies of our Directors, evaluate the
performance, make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of our Directors and senior management
and evaluate and make recommendations to the Board on
employee benefit arrangements.

During the year, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held (i) to recommend the grant of award shares; (ii) to
review the remuneration policy of Directors and employees;
and (iii) to review the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Company as well as the total amount of
remuneration paid by the Company in year 2022.

The record of each committee member in the Remuneration

Committee meeting held during the year is set out in section A6
above.
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Directors and Employees Remuneration Policy

The Director and Employee Remuneration Policy sets out the
general principles which guide the Group to deal with the
remuneration matters. As a general principle, a fair market
level of remuneration will be provided to retain and motivate
high quality directors, senior management and employees,
and attract experienced people of high calibre to oversee the
business and development of the Group. Directors’ remuneration
was determined by the Board with reference to the prevailing
market conditions, and the qualifications, experience, duties and
their responsibilities of with the Company. Executive Directors’
remuneration packages links to individual and the Group'’s
performance. As for independent non-executive Directors, only
fixed remuneration/fee shall be paid and be set at an appropriate
level by reference to the relevant time commitment and the size
and complexity of the Group and benchmarked against a peer
group. Mr. Hao Yilei, a non-executive director does not receive
any remuneration.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)

Nil to 1,000,000

1,000,001 - 2,000,000
2,000,001 - 3,000,000
3,000,001 - 4,000,000
4,000,001 - 5,000,000

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year are set
out in Note 8 to the financial statements contained in this annual
report.

FrEsE BT

£ % 1,000,000

1,000,001 £ 2,000,000
2,000,001 £ 3,000,000
3,000,001 £ 4,000,000
4,000,001 £ 5,000,000
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B2. Nomination Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee comprises a total of three members, being one
executive Director, namely Mr. LI Xiangli (chairman of the
committee), and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. WANG Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong. Throughout the
year, the Company had met the Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules
requirement of having a majority of the committee members
being independent non-executive Directors and having the
committee chaired by the chairman of the Board.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
identifying individual suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship;
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and succession planning of Directors; and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors, as
well as reviewing the board diversity policy and the nomination

policy.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out
the criteria for and process and procedures of nomination of
Directors. In accordance with the nomination policy, in evaluation
and selecting a candidate for acting as a Director, the criteria to
be considered include:

—  character and integrity of the individual;

— qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
board diversity policy (summarised below) of the Company
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy,

— any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board;

—  requirement for the Board to have independent Directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;
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— any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity;

— willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company; and

— such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of Directors and succession planning.

The nomination policy also sets out the nomination process and
procedures, including but not limited to:

1. evaluate the candidate based on the abovementioned
criteria upon receipt of the proposal of appointment of
new Director;

2. if there are more than one desirable candidate, rank the
candidates with reference to the needs of the Company
and the reference check of each candidate; and

3. recommend to the Board to appoint the appropriate
candidate as the new Director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and regards the increasing diversity at the Board as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

Summary of Policy

The Nomination Committee reviews annually the structure, size
and composition of the Board and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy.

In reviewing and assessing the Board composition and the
nomination of directors (as applicable), Board diversity has to be
considered from a number of aspects, including gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience.

EEERHRE

— REANER BT KR B
IMRERZ AT EHARES
SERNE(BEERR

— REBREREITEHRATHE
METSRARAEETGENXE
A/ REEEETEZEENEER
MBE &

— ERARARAREBRETIN
HiBBERZ EFe k%R
HEZBENEERERTHBE
REERBEIFERBESLE
AIABMAE-

REBRNTHARERIENERF 1
BARRR :

1. REEZENEENRHEEERE
R AR TR ¢

2. MEA—BALHEBAZE: B
2ERRBBREEBMAENE
ARSI ANELERF R

3. MEFTEBUZESEAER
HMEE -

EEERESTILEE
ARRABYWREEFENEBZ TS
SREZVBEFEREAEZ LIRS
MBARABFEENARIZ -EF
SOEMEFTEUEZTTEEE  EF
IR RkERERTEXNBEZ TEMES
B3t

BORBEZE

REZBESEFRIESZTEORE - A
B AR WHEF RS ARAH A
AREMEEESFLOREIRIES -

Ea kA EEeERMERES (W
ER) - ARESFERBETIEERE
ZHEMEZ  BFEN  Fik - XL
RBEAR HEEE Kt MKk
By

2022FEHmE TEIERBERERAR

37



38

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRER®|E

Measurable Objectives and Progress

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant to the
Company'’s business growth. The Nomination Committee will
discuss and where necessary, agree on the measurable objectives
for achieving diversity on the Board and make recommendation
to the Board. For the purpose of implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy, the following measurable objectives were fulfilled
during the year:

1. at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors;

2. at least one of the members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualifications;
and

3. at least one of the members of the Board is female.

The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of its
board diversity on an annual basis.

The Board was of the view that, during the year, the Company
has fulfilled all necessary requirements of the Listing Rules
and the CG Code in respect of the composition of the Board,
including but not limited to the required number of independent
non-executive Directors appointed on the Board, and having at
least one of the independent non-executive Directors possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. In 2022, the Board comprised
seven male directors and one female director regarding gender
diversity.

The Board also aspires to having an appropriate proportion of
directors who have direct experience in the Group’s businesses,
with different cultural and education background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge, and reflecting the Group’s
strategy. Biographical details of the board members are set out in
this Annual Report.

Concerning the gender diversity of the Board, as one Board
member (approximately 12.5% of the Board members) is female
Director, the Board is of the view that gender diversity has been
achieved for the time being.
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Appropriate emphasis on maintaining gender diversity has been
placed in the reviews of board composition, board diversity and
succession planning to ensure a pipeline of potential successors
in achieving and maintaining gender diversity.

The gender ratio in the Company’s workforce for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the section entitled
“3.1.3 Employee Composition” of the Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) Report of this Annual Report.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed 2,528 staff,
out of which, 70.81% were male and 29.19% were female.
The Group has relatively large male workforce as compared to
female as the Group is in the inspection and testing industry.
Nevertheless, the Group pursues equal job opportunities for male
and female in recruitment and staff development. The Company
will continue to take steps to promote gender diversity at all
levels of the Group, including but not limited to the Board and
the senior management levels.

Annual Review

During the year, one meeting of the Nomination Committee were
held to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
in consideration of the board diversity policy, the implementation
and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy, and to review the
nomination criteria and procedures, the performance of Directors,
to review the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and to review the proposal for re-election of Directors
at the coming 2023 AGM.

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors
has been assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing
Rules. The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
each of the independent non-executive Directors, and the
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors meet the guidelines for assessing the independence set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained. The Nomination
Committee also considered that the Directors are rich in
knowledge, experience and background and their outstanding
skills in their respective expertise can meet the development
needs of the Company.

The attendance record of each committee member in the
Nomination Committee meeting is set out in section A6 above.
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B3. Audit Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee
comprises a total of three members, all being independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LIU Hoi Keung (chairman of
the committee), Mr. WANG Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong. The
Company has met the Listing Rules requirements regarding the
composition of the Audit Committee throughout the year.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring
the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, annual report
and interim report, and reviewing significant financial reporting
judgements contained therein; reviewing the Company'’s financial
controls, and overseeing the risk management and internal
control systems; making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor,
and approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor, as well as reviewing arrangements which can
be used by the employees of the Company, in confidence, to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions as set out in the code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code. Its main duties include developing and
reviewing the Group's policies and practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations to the Board;
reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management of the Group;
and reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG code and
the Model Code and the disclosure in the corporate governance
report to be contained in the Company’s annual reports.
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During the year, three meetings of the Audit Committee were
held to review the annual and interim financial results and reports
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 and in respect
of the six months ended 30 June 2022; and change of auditor
in August 2022. The Audit Committee also reviewed financial
reporting, internal control and risk management systems, the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit functions, the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
and procedures and considered the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit, financial reporting
function and those relating to the Company’s ESG's performance
and reporting, made recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of external auditor at the AGM as well as reviewed
the scope of work of external auditor. The Audit Committee
also reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

The attendance records of each committee member in the Audit
Committee meetings are set out in section A6 above.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group for the year.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements.
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D. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain effective risk

management and internal control systems of the Company and review

their effectiveness in order to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure to achieve business objectives, and to provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

D1.

D2.

Control Structure

The Company implemented various policies and procedures
to ensure effective risk management at each aspect of its
operation, including the provision of on-site inspection, surveying
and sampling services, performance of analytical tests in our
laboratories, administration of daily operation, financial reporting
and recording, fund management, as well as material risk relating
to ESG including compliance with applicable laws and regulations
on environmental protection and workplace safety. The policies
and procedures are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The internal audit department monitors compliance with policies
and procedures and the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control structures across the Group and its principal
divisions. The internal audit department reports directly to the
Audit Committee and ensure the internal controls are in place
and functioning properly as intended.

Control Approach

The risk management process includes risk identification,
risk evaluation, risk management measures, reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems
and resolving material internal control defects. The management
conducted interviews with relevant staff members, reviewing
relevant documentation of the internal control system, identifying
and evaluating findings of any deficiencies in the design of the
Company’s internal control system, providing recommendations
for improvement and following up on the effectiveness of
implementation of such recommendations, where appropriate.
The scope and findings of review on the risk management
and internal control are reported to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee during the year.
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Procedure manuals and operational guidelines are in place to
safeguard the assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensuring maintenance of proper accounting records in
compliance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use and/or
external publication.

The Board, in conjunction with the Audit Committee, annually
assessed and reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and procedures and considered
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit, financial reporting function as well as those
relating to the Company’s ESG's performance and reporting.

Annual Review

For the year 2022, the Board through the Audit Committee had
conducted an annual review on the systems of internal control
and risk management of the Company. The review covered
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions of the Group. Areas of
improvement have been identified and appropriate measures
have been put in place to manage the risks (including ESG
risks). The enhancement of the systems of risk management and
internal control is an ongoing process and the Board maintains
a continuing commitment to strengthen the Company’s control
environment and processes. The Board considers that the internal
control and risk management systems are effective and adequate.

Inside Information

The Company formulated the inside information policy. The
Company regularly reminds the Directors and employees of the
Group about the due compliance with all policies regarding
the inside information (as defined under the SFO). Also, the
Company keeps Directors, senior management and employees
appraised of the latest regulatory updates. The Company shall
prepare or update appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure
the compliance with regulatory requirements. Under the policy,
heads of business units shall report to the Directors any potential
inside information event as soon as practicable before or when it
materialises for determining the nature of developments, and if
required, making disclosure.
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D5. Whistleblowing policy and anti-fraud and
anti-bribery policy

The Company has put in place a whistleblowing policy and
system for employees and those who deal with the Company (e.g.
customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) to raise concerns,
in confidence and anonymity, with the audit committee (or any
designated committee comprising a majority of independent non-
executive directors) about possible improprieties in any matter
related to the Company.

The Company has also put in place an anti-fraud and anti-bribery
policy and system that promote and support anti-corruption laws
and regulations.

E. COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Oi Fat (“Mr. Chan") is the company secretary of the
Company (“Company Secretary”). The primary contact person at the
Company with Mr. Chan is Mr. ZHANG Yu Kevin, the chief financial
officer of the Group.

During the year, Mr. Chan was responsible for providing advice to the
Board on corporate governance matters. Mr. Chan confirmed that he
took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year.

F. EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young,
about their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year is set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to the external auditor in respect of audit services
and non-audit services (if any) for the year are analyzed below:

Service Category PR 75 %8 51
Audit 5t
Annual audit service FEFNRD
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
(both individual and institutional, and in appropriate circumstances,
the investment community at large) is essential for enhancing investor
relations and ensuring ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company (including financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments and
governance) by investors.

A summary of the Company’s shareholders’ communication policy is as
follows:

The Company ensures effective and timely dissemination of information
to Shareholders and stakeholders (including investors). As a channel
to further promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at www.leontest.com as a communication platform with
Shareholders, stakeholders (including investors), where Company’s
announcements and press releases, business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance report and
other information are posted.

General meeting is one of the channels for shareholders to
communicate their views on various matters affecting the Company.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other general
meetings. Shareholders may make enquiries to the Company directly
by raising questions at general meetings. Board members, in particular,
the chairmen of Board committees or their delegates, appropriate
management executives and external auditor will use all reasonable
efforts to attend AGMs and to answer shareholders’ questions.

In order for the Company to solicit and understand the views of
shareholders and stakeholders, Shareholders and stakeholders may
make enquiries to the Company through the Company’s Investor
Relations on telephone number (852) 2821 9703 or by email at
ir@leontest.com.

The Company reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy conducted during the year and
considered that the policy is effective since the policy was able to
facilitate an open and on-going communication with the Shareholders
on fair disclosure basis.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, Shareholders are given
sufficient notice of shareholders meetings, detailed procedures for
conducting a poll was stated in circular to shareholders accompanying
the notice of the annual general meeting, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company
(www.leontest.com) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
after each general meeting. The Articles allow a Shareholder entitled to
attend and vote at a general meeting to appoint a proxy, who need not
be a Shareholder, to attend the meeting and vote thereat on his/her/its
behalf.

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures set
out in the preceding paragraph.

With respect to the Shareholders’ right in proposing persons for election
as Directors, please refer to the procedures set out in Article 113 of the
Company'’s Articles, which is available on the website of the Company:
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According to Article 113 of the Company’s Articles, no person, other
than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that person
of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the Principal
Place of Business of the Company in Hong Kong or at the Hong Kong
Branch Registrar and Transfer Office of the Company. The period for
lodgement of the notices required under that Article will commence
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of
the period during which such notices to the Company may be given will
be at least seven days.

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to the
Articles. An up-to-date version of the Articles is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholders may refer to the Articles for further details of the rights of
Shareholders.

In case of shareholding enquiries, Shareholders should direct their
enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, via its online
holding enquiry at www.computershare.com, dial its hotline at (852)
2862 8555 or go in person at its public counter at 17M Floor/17 Floor,
Shops 1712-16, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the principles
of and guidelines on recommending or declaring dividend to the
Shareholders. The Company shall maintain adequate cash reserves for
meeting its working capital requirements and future growth as well
as its shareholder value. The Board has the discretion to declare and
distribute dividends to the Shareholders subject to the Articles and
relevant laws and regulations. The Board shall take into account the
factors of the Group when considering the declaration and payment
of dividends, including but not limited to, the Group’s financial
results, cash flow situation, business conditions and strategies, capital
requirements and expenditure plans and interests of the Shareholders.
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The Board is pleased to present the Directors’ Report of the year 2022
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 July 2015 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. The Company is an investment holding company.

An analysis of the Company’s revenue and operating profit for the year by
principal activities is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” in this annual report and Notes 4 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group'’s business during the year, which includes a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, an analysis of the
Group's performance using financial key performance indicators, particulars
of important events affecting the Group during the year, principal risks and
uncertainties of the Group's business, and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group's business, could be found in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report. In addition, a discussion on relationships with its key
stakeholders is included in the sections headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report. The
review forms part of this directors’ report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 273 of
this annual report.
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RESULTS, DIVIDENDS AND BONUS ISSUES

Results

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 142 and 143 of this annual report.

Final Dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.0272 per
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 4 July
2023. The proposed final dividend will be paid on or around Monday, 17 July
2023, subject to approval at the annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on Friday, 16 June 2023 (the “AGM"). The proposed final dividend
shall be declared and paid in Hong Kong dollars.

Issue of Bonus Shares

Subject to the passing of the relevant resolution at the AGM and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting the listing
of and permission to deal in such new shares, the Board proposes to make a
bonus issue of one new share for every ten shares held to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 4 July
2023. The relevant resolution will be proposed at the AGM, and if passed and
upon the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting the listing of and
permission to deal in such new shares, share certificates for the bonus shares
will be posted on or around Monday, 17 July 2023.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the following
periods:

()

(i)

Book Close Dates for 2023 AGM

From Tuesday, 13 June 2023 to Friday, 16 June 2023, both days
inclusive and during which period no share transfer will be effected,
for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 12 June 2023; and

Book Close Dates for Final Dividend and Bonus Shares

From Wednesday, 28 June 2023 to Tuesday, 4 July 2023, both days
inclusive and during which period no share transfer will be effected, for
the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed
final dividend and bonus shares. In order to establish entitlements to
the proposed final dividend and bonus shares, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 27 June 2023.
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ISSUE OF BONUS SHARES AND ADJUSTMENTS
MADE AS A RESULT IN JULY 2022

As disclosed in the circular and the announcement of the Company dated
12 May 2022 and 16 June 2022 respectively, the bonus issue (“2022 Bonus
Issue”) was made on the basis of one (1) bonus share for every ten (10)
existing shares in issue held on the record date, i.e. 4 July 2022, by the
qualifying shareholders. As at 4 July 2022, there were in total 443,509,800
Shares in issue. The number of bonus shares issued under the 2022 Bonus
Issue was 44,350,980 Shares.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement of 5 July 2022:

Pursuant to the terms of the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme") adopted by the Company on 5 May 2017, the exercise price of the
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme and the number of
Shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise of the subscription rights
attaching to the 42,996,200 outstanding share options were adjusted as a
result of the 2022 Bonus Issue in the manner as announced by the Company
on 5 July 2022.

In addition, pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Bonds, the conversion
price of the Convertible Bonds and the number of conversion shares to be
allotted and issued upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds were
adjusted as a result of the 2022 Bonus Issue.

Furthermore, the number of awarded shares issued and vested before 15 July
2022, the effective date of adjustment under the Share Award Scheme were
also adjusted.

Further details of the number of bonus shares issued and adjustments to
share options and Convertible Bonds are disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 5 July 2022.
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ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS IN JUNE 2021

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 12 May 2021 and 11
June 2021, the completion of the subscription for the 5-year 2% coupon
unlisted convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) (the “CB Subscription”)
has taken place on 11 June 2021 and the Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$50,000,000 have been issued to the subscriber in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the conditional agreement dated 12 May
2021 entered into between the Company and the subscriber (the “CB
Subscription Agreement”). Details as follows:

Principal Terms of the Convertible Bonds

Issuer: The Company

Subscriber: Asian Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio Master
Fund Limited, an open-end investment company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and the subscriber to the CB Subscription
Agreement (the “Subscriber”).

Status: The Convertible Bonds constitute general and
unsecured obligations of the Company and rank
equally among themselves and pari passu with all other
present and future unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations of the Company.

Principal Amount:  HK$50,000,000

Issue Price: 100% of the principal amount of HK$50,000,000 in
cash

Coupon: 2% per annum payable in arrears annually

Maturity Date: The fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the

Convertible Bonds
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Conversion Price

The initial conversion price of the Convertible Bonds (the “Conversion Price”)
of HK$1.63 per Conversion Share represents:

(i) a premium of approximately 5.16% over the closing price of HK$1.550
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 12 May 2021, being the
date of the CB Subscription Agreement; and

(i) a premium of approximately 7.66% over the average of the closing
prices of HK$1.514 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the
last five (5) consecutive trading days immediately preceding 12 May
2021, being the date of the CB Subscription Agreement.

The net Conversion Price, after deduction of relevant expenses, is
approximately HK$1.62 per Conversion Share.

The Conversion Price was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations between
the Company and the Subscriber, taking into account of, among others, the
recent trading performance of the Shares. The Directors considered that the
Conversion Price and the terms and conditions of the Subscription Agreement
and the Convertible Bonds are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Adjustments made to the Convertible Bonds

As announced by the Company on 15 July 2021, pursuant to the terms of
the Convertible Bonds, as a result of the 2021 Bonus Issue, the Conversion
Price per Conversion Share was adjusted from HK$1.63 to HK$1.48 and the
number of conversion Shares to be allotted and issued upon full conversion of
the Convertible Bonds was adjusted from 30,674,846 Shares to 33,783,783
Shares.
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As announced by the Company on 5 July 2022, pursuant to the terms of  FHIN A A 7
the Convertible Bonds, the Conversion Price per Share and the number &% Z 1§33

202267 A5 HAT A - B 1E A A%

BERBHRERTHEIRATRRESR

of conversion Shares to be allotted and issued upon full conversion of the — #§ F A% [ 317 2 S IR H BB F 2022 FALR 1T
Convertible Bonds were adjusted with effect from 15 July 2022 in the MIE FHAFRFARE - 8202247 A15BEAR :

following manner as a result of the 2022 Bonus Issue:

Before completion
of the 2022 Bonus Issue
TR 2022 FALR B AT A

Number of

conversion

Shares to be

allotted and

issued upon full

Conversion Price conversion of the

per Share before Convertible
Date of Issue adjustment Bonds
BEER
ABRRES%
& FEER
REFR BiT2HEHR
®HBH BRE KRG EE
(HK$)
(BT
11 June 2021 1.48 33,783,783
2021611 H
Subscriber REA

Upon completion
of the 2022 Bonus Issue
FER 2022 FALREBITE
Adjusted
number of
conversion
Shares to be
allotted and
issued upon full
Adjusted conversion of the

Conversion Price Convertible
per Share Bonds
BHHER

ARRESE

BFEER

R BRIT AR

BRERE BRRHOHBE
(HK$)
GBE%T)

1.35 37,037,037

The Subscriber is an open-end investment company incorporated in the RBAA—RNHASBEEFMKRIOARNIEES

Cayman Islands with limited liability. It is managed by RAYS Capital Partners  [fRAR] © B %E

VEZSBERERABERAR (REGE

Limited, an Independent Third Party, licensed to carry out Type 4 (advising on  # & EIE KA EE S A EE 458 (EHRER
securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO. RIRBOR(RHEETR)XHAEEE) B -

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made  &KEE(ELR — 1A REREFTARM - BB LESE -

oo S A —

all reasonable enquiries, the Subscriber and its ultimate beneficial owner(s) are  REARHEZREZHE AL BBILIE =7 -

Independent Third Parties.
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Reasons for the Issue of Convertible Bonds

As an international independent inspection and testing company, the
Company provides customers with professional testing, inspection,
certification, consultation and related technical services round the clock
globally. Building on the Company’s two key business areas, namely energy
and commodity, and by fully leveraging its leading advantages in different
segments and economies of scale, the Company has expanded the service
scope to power generation. We launched new inspection services in clean
energy field, especially focusing on the solar and wind power projects.
The Company also provides environmental monitoring and testing services
including ecological monitoring, soil testing, environmental technology
consultation and assessment and carbon neutrality.

The Subscriber’s interest in making an investment into the Group reflects
its confidence in the Group’s business and growth potential. The Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) were of the view that
the raising of funds by the issue of the Convertible Bonds would enhance
the Group's capital structure and liquidity, strengthen the Group'’s financial
position, broaden the capital base of the Group and to finance the Group’s
future development and expansion.

The Directors considered that the issue of the Convertible Bonds was an
effective means of raising additional capital since (i) it would not have an
immediate dilution effect on the shareholding of the existing Shareholders;
and (ii) in the event that the Convertible Bonds were converted into Shares,
the Company could broaden its capital base, benefiting the long-term
development of the Company.

The Directors considered that the terms of the CB Subscription Agreement
were arrived at arm’s length negotiations between the Company and
the Subscriber, and the transactions contemplated thereunder (including
the Conversion Price) were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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Use of Proceeds from the Issue of the Convertible Bonds

The gross proceeds of the CB Subscription were approximately
HK$50,000,000. The net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds
was approximately HK$49.6 million.

The Company intended to use the net proceeds to accelerate the
implementation of the Group’s 2+X sustainable growth strategy as disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 12 May 2021 by way of (a)
business expansions; (b) investments to increase market share in key markets,
and (c) general working capital purposes.

The use of proceeds

Pursuant to the disclosures requirement in paragraphs 11(8) and 11A of
Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules, the table below sets out details of the use of
the proceeds of the CB Subscription as at 31 December 2021:

FrEREAR

B EMRAMEE 165 118) R 1TARNIERE -
TREHN2021FE12 A3 B AR ESRFESE
R FT1SFIBRAA

Actual utilized
amount during
the year ended

==

1= 3K

RITARRESHAERERER

BB ESRBESENET
50,000,000 7T ° (T RAI R EH WIS B FELY
BB A6AEBT

AR RBE

IR AE HEA2021F5 A 12 BN R EFTHE -
NAGREBRAMEHIBFRE BB BERER : (b)
WENEMREEMSNMISHE  kQ—REE
B RE  MREITAREE 2+X 1] FEE R -

Unutilized
balance as at

Planned 31 December 31 December
use of proceeds 2021 2021
REZE2021F
12A31H 72021 %
FRSRIE LEE 12A31H
sHE Az ERBASE i R B R A R
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BEEET BEAET
(a) Business expansion (a) EGIER 9.3 (7.4) 1.9
(b) Capital expenditure (b) BAFE 343 (16.2) 18.1
(c) General working capital (—mMREEES 6.0 (6.0) -
Total HEt 49.6 (29.6) 20.0

As of 31 December 2022, the Group has utilized all the remaining balance
of approximately HK$20.0 million of the net proceeds of the CB Subscription
for (a) the business expansion with the consideration of approximately
HK$1.9 million; and (b) capital expenditure of approximately HK$18.1 million.
Accordingly, the proceeds from the CB Subscription have been fully utilized as
at 31 December 2022.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 28 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year, other than the Convertible Bonds, the Share Option Scheme
and the Share Award Scheme as set out in the sections headed “Convertible
Bonds”, “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” Notes 26, 29
and 30 to the financial statements respectively, the Company did not enter
into any equity-linked agreement or subsisted at the end of the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is highly aware of the importance of environmental protection
and has not noted any material non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace
conditions, employment and the environment. During the production process,
the Group has implemented environmental protection measures, including
procedures related to energy use control, waste water and waste air discharge
management.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2022.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 146 to 147 of this annual report and Note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company'’s distributable reserves were HK$41.9
million.
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DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the total charitable donation of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$134,000.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, directors of the
Company were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangli

Ms. ZHANG Alying
Mr. LIU Yi

Mr. YANG Rongbing

Non-Executive Director

Mr. HAOQ Yilei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zichen
Mr. ZHAO Hong
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
as at the date of this annual report are set out on pages 7 to 14 in the section
headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM had
any service contract with our Company or any of our subsidiaries, other than
contracts expiring or determinable by the employer, which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation). The directors’ remuneration is determined with
references to directors’ duties and responsibilities, individual performance and
the results of the Group.

Executive Directors’ service contracts

Three of our executive Directors, namely Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and
Mr. LIU Yi, have respectively entered into service contract with the Company
pursuant to which each of them agreed to act as an executive Director for
an initial term of three years commencing from 13 January 2016. Such terms
were renewed for a further three years commencing from 13 January 2019
and upon expiry of such, the terms were renewed for a further three years
commencing from 13 January 2022.

Mr. YANG Rongbing, formerly an independent non-executive Director,
has been re-designated as an executive Director and appointed as the
vice chairman of the Company with effect from 23 July 2018. Mr. Yang
has entered into a service contract with the Company pursuant to which
he agreed to act as an executive Director for an initial term of three years
commencing from 23 July 2018 and upon expiry of such, the term was
renewed for a further three years commencing from 23 July 2021.
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Non-executive Director’'s and Independent Non-executive
Directors’ letters of appointment/service agreement

Non-executive Director, Mr. HAO Yilei, has been appointed with effect from
23 December 2021. Mr. Hao has entered into a service agreement with the
Company pursuant to which he has been appointed for an initial term of
three years commencing from 23 December 2021.

Two of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. WANG Zichen
and Mr. ZHAO Hong, have respectively entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company pursuant to which each of them has been appointed for
an initial term of three years commencing from 18 June 2016. Such terms
were renewed for a further three years commencing from 18 June 2019 and
upon expiry, a further three years was renewed commencing from 18 June
2022.

The other independent non-executive Director, Mr. LIU Hoi Keung, has been
appointed with effect from 23 July 2018. Mr. Liu has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company pursuant to which he has been appointed
for an initial term of three years commencing from 23 July 2018. Such term
was renewed for a further three years commencing from 23 July 2021 upon

expiry.

The non-executive Director received no director’s fee. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors received a director’s fee of HK$100,000 per annum.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-
executive Directors for the year 2022 and the Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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EMOLUMENT OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

We offer our executive Directors and senior management members, who
are also employees of our Company, emolument in the form of salaries,
allowances, remuneration, pension, discretionary bonus and other welfares.
Our non-executive Director does not receive any emolument from our Group.
Our independent non-executive Directors receive emolument in the form
of director’s fee based on their responsibilities (including being members or
chairman of Board committees). We adopt a market and incentive-based
employee emolument structure and implement a multi-layered evaluation
system which focuses on performance and management goals.

The remuneration (including fees, salaries and allowances, benefits,
performance related bonus, equity-settled shares-based payment expense,
pension scheme contributions and other welfares) paid to the Directors in
aggregate for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately HK$13.9
million.

The remuneration (including salaries and allowances, benefits, performance
related bonus, equity-settled shares-based payment expense, pension
scheme contributions and other welfares) paid to our Group's five highest
paid individuals in aggregate for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$20.5 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no emoluments were paid by our
Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining our Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the Directors had waived any emoluments for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme to motivate
Directors and employees. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme"” of this directors’ report and Note
29 to the financial statements.
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Furthermore, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on 27 October
2020 to motivate the Company’s middle and senior management, core
technological personnel and operations team. Details of the Share Award
Scheme are set out in the section headed “Share Award Scheme” of this
directors’ report and Note 30 to the financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments had been made or were
payable, for the year ended 31 December 2022, by our Group to or on behalf
of any of the Directors.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 191 of the Company’s articles of association, every Director
or officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company from liabilities which they may incur by reason of execution of their
duties.

The Company has maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance for the Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed ”“Connected Transactions”, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the business
of the Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director was materially interested, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

Except otherwise disclosed in this annual report, during the year, none of the
Directors were considered to be interested in businesses which competed or
were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with our core businesses.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2022

L 4N - FA20204E 10 B 27 B+ 2 A 7 £ 49 B 19 42 B
SEUHBARRZPESRERRE - ZORMAE
REBEH® BUERODBRETINFEINRLES
SWME G REE ] — B R BIREMFE30 -

M EXXPTIREEESN  BE2022F 12 A3 BILEE -
MERAEESIARTAES M EM TR EM
FIE o

EEFFRNRERX

RERAQBMABERRAE 191G XRRESH
EERSABEBRRSERNT LB ATRLELN
BERAAREETERFRBIE -

ARFRERAEFEFRGRBERBEENESF
ERBEEERR -

EERRS  RERSRNER

BRARS BERXS | —BHMREEIN  RERKF
NEMRE  TEFAEBHAAR - HERARSRE
MBARKRAMNBAR LAAEBREBEEE
AEFSRETAMENERNETERIHEER
BEAEDZNRS  ZHHER -

BEER

BREAFERSZBEREEIN FA BEEFEHR
AR O T B RS S AT
BRBEFNEBTREER -



DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Reference is made to the non-competition undertakings given by the
Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company disclosed in the
Prospectus. The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed to the Company
that they have complied with the non-competition undertakings during the
year. The independent non-executive Directors have conducted such review
for the year, and also reviewed the relevant undertakings and are satisfied
that such undertakings have been complied with.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of the pension scheme of the Company are set out in Note 31 to the
financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the share option scheme
conditionally approved and adopted by written resolutions of our then
Shareholders on 5 May 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

(i) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract, retain and
motivate employees, Directors and such other participants and to
further perfect corporate governance structure, propel the Company
to build up and complete motivating mechanism, fully motivate
employees, and effectively help to align the interests of Shareholders,
Company and its employees by the grant of options.

(ii) Participants

The directors, officers and employees of any member of the Group as
determined by the Board from time to time.
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(iii)

(iv)

The total number of shares available for issue

The Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted under this Share Option Scheme (the
“Share Option(s)”) shall not exceed 10% of the total number of the
Shares in issue on the date where the refreshment of 10% limit (being
44,350,080 Shares) under the Share Option Scheme was approved
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 29 September 2021
and relevant listing approval was granted by the Stock Exchange on 4
October 2021.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 44,350,080 shares,
representing approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this report.

The limit on the number of securities which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 30% of the
relevant class of securities of the listed issuer in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the Share Options granted to each participant under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the total number of Shares in issue. Where any further grant
of options to an Eligible Employee would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to such Eligible
Employee (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such further
grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the total number of
Shares in issue, such further grant must be separately approved by the
Shareholders at the general meeting with such Eligible Employee and
his/her close associates abstaining from voting.
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified
by the Board at the time of grant, such period shall not be longer than
10 years from the date upon which any particular option is granted in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised (i.e. vesting period)

Options may be vested over such period(s) as determined by the Board
in its absolute discretion subject to compliance with the requirements
under any applicable laws, regulations or rules to which the Share
Option Scheme may be subject, including the Listing Rules or
regulations of any stock exchange on which the Shares may be listed
and quoted. Furthermore, the Shares to be issued and allotted to a
Grantee pursuant to the exercise of any Option under the Share Option
Scheme may or may not, at the discretion of the Board, be subject to
any retention period.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and
period within which payments or calls must or may be
made or loans for such purposes must be repaid

RMB1.00 within 15 days from the date of grant.

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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(viii) Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the Board at
its absolute discretion and notified to the Participant in the offer at the
time of the offer, and shall be no less than the highest of:

(@)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the
relevant Share Option, which shall be a business day;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
Business Days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant Share Option (provided that, in the event that any Share
Option is proposed to be granted within a period of less than five
Business Days after the trading of the Shares first commences
on the Stock Exchange, the new issue price of the Shares for the
share offer shall be used as the closing price for any Business Day
falling within the period before listing of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange); and

(c)  the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of the relevant
Share Option.

(ix) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on 5 May 2017, the date on which the Share Option
Scheme is conditionally adopted by resolution of our Shareholders, up
to 4 May 2027.
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(x) Present status of the Share Option Scheme

Movements in the share options during the Year were as follows:

No. of Share Options

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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(x) BRESEEMR

AERM B EZBIT

BREHE
Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Exercise
As at during the during the during the during the As at price per
Date of grant Participant 1/1/2022 Year Year Year Year 31/12/2022 Share Exercise period
#2025 A AHH AHH A #2025
B A SRE 1818 5550 [5X55:4 B BAM 128318 SROEE  TEH
(HKS)
(B%)
Other Employees
HitfES
41712017 Employees (aggregate) 777,590* - - - (27,000) 750,590* 1.058*  4/7/2018-3/7/2023
(Notes 1,2 &3) E& (A&) 891,110 - - - (31,000) 860,110% 1.058*  4/7/2019-3/7/2024
(GEARPYE)] 2,287,120% - - - (80,050) 2,207,070% 1.058*  4/7/2020-3/7/2025
15/7/2021 Employees (aggregate) 7,623,000% - - - (297,000) 7,326,000* 1.945%  15/7/2022-14/7/2027
(Notes 5 & 6) E& (A&) 7,623,000% - - - (297,000) 7,326,000% 1,945 15/7/2023-14/7/2028
(F#5E5K%6) 10,164,000% - - - (396,000) 9,768,000% 1.945%  15/7/2024-14/7/2029
Subtotal
Nt 29,365,820 - - - (1,128,050) 28,237,770
Directors
E=
15/7/2021 Mr. Ll Xiangli, 1,320,000% - - - - 1,320,000 1.945%  15/7/2022-14/7/2027
(Notes 5,6 &7) executive Director 1,320,000 - - - - 1,320,000 1,945 15/7/2023-14/7/2028
(M35 6K7) FRMEE  HITES 1,760,000 - - - - 1,760,000* 1.945%  15/7/2024-14/7/2029
15/7/2021 Ms. ZHANG Aiying, 825,000 - - - - 825,000% 1.945%  15/7/2022-14/7/2027
(Notes 5, 6 &7) executive Director 825,000% - - - - 825,000% 1.945%  15/7/2023-14/7/2028
(M35 6K7) REELL WiTES 1,100,000 - - - - 1,100,000* 1.945%  15/7/2024-14/7/2029
15/7/2021 Mr. LIU Yi, 990,000 - - - - 990,000% 1.945%  15/7/2022-14/7/2027
(Notes 5,6 & 7) executive Director 990,000* - - - - 990,000* 1.945%  15/7/2023-14/7/2028
(&5 6K7) BMEL  HITEF 1,320,000* - - - - 1,320,000 1.945%  15/7/2024-14/7/2029
23/712018 Mr. YANG Rongbing, 1,210,000 - - - - 1,210,000 1.168*  23/7/2018-22/7/2023
(Notes 1,2 &4) executive Director 1,210,000 - - - - 1,210,000* 1.168*  23/7/2019-22/7/2024
GEARPYTY BRERE HiTES 1,210,000 - - - - 1,210,000* 1.168*  23/7/2020-22/7/2025
15/7/2021 Mr. YANG Rongbing, 1,155,000 - - - - 1,155,000 1.945%  15/7/2022-14/7/2027
(Notes 5 & 6) executive Director 1,155,000 - - - - 1,155,000* 1,945 15/7/2023-14/7/2028
GESYO) BRERE HiTES 1,540,000 - - - - 1,540,000* 1.945%  15/7/2024-14/7/2029
Subtotal
Nt 17,930,000 - - - - 17,930,000
Gross Total
@t 47,295,820 - - - (1,128,050) 46,167,770

as announced by the Company on 5 July 2022, the exercise price of the share
options granted and the number of Shares to be allotted and issued upon full
exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the then outstanding share
options were adjusted on 15 July 2022 as a result of the 2022 Bonus Issue (the
“Adjustment”).
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Notes:

1. The above share options are either vested on the date of grant to two years or
vested in one to three years from the date of grant and are exercisable for a
period of five years commencing from the relevant vesting date and expiring at
the close of business on the last day of the five-year period.

2. The Company received a consideration of RMB1.00 from each of the grantees

for the share options granted on 4 July 2017. The Company also received a
consideration of RMB1.00 from Mr. YANG Rongbing for the share options
granted to him on 23 July 2018.

3. The closing price of the Shares on 3 July 2017, being the business day
immediately before the date on which the options were granted, as quoted on
the Stock Exchange was HK$1.31.

4. The closing price of the Shares on 20 July 2018, being the business day
immediately before the date on which the options were granted, as quoted on
the Stock Exchange was HK$1.40.

5. The Share Options are exercisable for a period of five years commencing from
the vesting date and expiring at the close of business on the last day of the five
year period. Vesting condition of the share options are: (i) Not more than 30%
of the Share Options will be vested on 15 July 2022; not more than 30% of the
Share Options will be vested on 15 July 2023; and not more than 40% of the
Share Options will be vested on 15 July 2024.

The Company received a consideration of RMB1.00 from each of the grantees.

6. The closing price of the Shares on 14 July 2021, being the business day
immediately before the date on which the options were granted, as quoted on
the Stock Exchange was HK$2.08.

7. The grant of 9,500,000 Share Options to Mr. Li, Ms. Zhang and Mr. Liu (each
of them being a substantial shareholder) out of the total of 36,100,000 Share
Options granted on 15 July 2021 was beyond the Scheme Mandate Limit and
had been approved by the Shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting
("EGM") of the Company. Accordingly, the (i) specific grant of 9,500,000 Share
Options and (i) the refreshment of 10% limit (being 44,350,080 Shares) under
the Share Option Scheme were approved at the EGM held on 29 September
2021 and relevant listing approvals were granted by the Stock Exchange on 4

October 2021.
8. No options were granted or cancelled during the Year.
9. The number of options available for grant under the scheme mandate of the

Share Option Scheme at the beginning and at the end of the financial year
ended 31 December 2022 were both 44,350,080.

10. The number of shares that may be issued in respect of the options granted
and vested under the Share Option Scheme during the financial year ended 31
December 2022 is 19,063,770 shares, which when divided by 480,950,215
shares (i.e. the weighted average number of shares of the Company in issue for
the year ended 31 December 2022) is 0.039638.

Other details of the share options under the Share Option Scheme are
set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on 27 October 2020
(the “Adopted Date”). The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to
further improve the corporate governance structure and long-term incentive
programme, maintain mutually sustainable growth of the Company and
individuals, attract and retain excellent talents.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten (10) years
commencing on the Adoption Date up to 26 October 2030.

The eligible participants of the Share Award Scheme include the following
classes: (a) any employee and/or directors of any member of the Group or any
entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which the Group holds any equity interest;
(b) any advisor (professional or otherwise), consultant to or expert in any area
of business or business development of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and (c) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of the Group.

The Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion, determine the
criteria for any eligible participants to participate in the Share Award Scheme
as award holders in accordance with the rules of the Share Award Scheme.
An award holder may be granted an award of Shares (the “Award Shares”).
The Award Shares to be granted under the Share Award Scheme are ordinary
shares (“Ordinary Shares”) in the capital of the Company. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 27 October 2020 for further details of
the Share Award Scheme.

In general, the Company will pay to the third-party trustee (the “Trustee”)
monies and may give directions or a recommendation to the Trustee to apply
such amount of monies and/or such other net amount of cash derived from
Ordinary Shares held as part of the funds of the trust to acquire existing
Ordinary Shares on the Stock Exchange at the prevailing market price or
off the market with reference to the prevailing market price (subject to
such maximum price as may be from time to time prescribed by the Board).
Such Ordinary Shares will be held on trust by the Trustee for the relevant
award holders until satisfaction of all the vesting conditions upon which the
relevant Award Shares shall be transferred to relevant award holders at no
consideration. The Trustee shall not exercise any voting rights in respect of any
Ordinary Shares held in the trust and no award holder is entitled to instruct
the Trustee to exercise the voting rights in respect of any unvested Award
Shares.
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The total number of Award Shares that could be granted by the Board under
the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the Adopted Date. Since certain Award Shares were
granted, as at the date of this annual report, 30,734,367 Shares remains
available for grant by the Board under the Share Award Scheme (representing
approximately 6.3% of the issued shares of the Company as at the date
of this annual report.) The aforesaid limit may be refreshed or amended by
approval of the shareholders in general meeting. The Company will not grant
any Award Shares under the Share Award Scheme which would result in the
total number of the Award Shares together with shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted but yet to be exercised
under the share option scheme or any other incentive or option schemes of
the Company representing in aggregate over 30% of the shares in issue as at
the date of such grant.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the trustee purchased an
aggregate of 2,932,000 shares of the Company from the market at a total
consideration of approximately HK$4,085,000 (including directly attributable
incremental costs) and a total of 3,029,491 shares were granted to 15 eligible
participants, including directors and employees on 10 May 2022, pursuant
to the Share Award Scheme, representing approximately 0.68% of the total
number of issued shares as at 31 December 2022. A total of 2,702,393 shares
were granted to 14 eligible participants, including directors and employees
on 28 December 2022 pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, representing
approximately 0.55% of the then total number of issued shares. A total
number of 5,518,490 is held by the trustee and is available for grant under
the Scheme, representing approximately 1.13% of the total number of issued
shares as the date of this annual report.

The maximum number of shares awarded by the Board to an eligible
participant under the Share Award Scheme in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of the award being granted shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company in issue. The aforesaid limit may be
amended by approval of the shareholders in general meeting.

The Award Shares shall vest in the eligible participant in accordance with the
timetable and conditions as imposed by the Board at its absolute discretion,
provided that all the vesting conditions are met and the eligible person
remains at all times after approval by the Board of the share award and on
the relevant vesting date(s) an eligible person.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2022

EERERGEE SR ANERRGK AT
BEBBARFRERMBEHEBEITRAN10% - AR
AETHEBROEEL  RARFEHRAH - 30,734,367
DDA mE =S RIERG BB SIE S ((BR
RNERBAEARREEITRN463%) o LillpREE
AEBRRNIREAE EREF ISR - AA A
TR B D BB AT S % T BB AR (D M B B e
BN A% 153 328 [F) AR 1% 8 IR A 7 B sk AR R AT ) E Ath 22 B
BRI EIE R B EEARITENERITERER
EREITER A RITHRM GTBRARE BB %
TN H930% °

HE2022F12A318LEFE  ZEANBRED
75 154,085,000 70 (B IEHEE EIHE 2R A) (15
B E A $£2,932,000 K A QR B - A 3,029,491
A& R 7 B 1R ¥ A% (0 B2 B 5T 817X 2022 F5 A 10 B %
FIs2E6ERK20E (BEESERES)  HR
2022F 12 A3 A BITRMNAEEL0.68% - &
2,702,393 B & 10 B AR 45 A% 10 22 B 5T &1 74 2022 612
RA28BRT 14 BAERSHE (BIEEERES) -
HERDETRMDEEHL055% FEAFTEEAY
5,518,490 [& I Al R IEZFTEIE T - (5 A FHRAHE
BATRAD#AEA91.13%

SEEeRERMOERFENEM2EARNEHEER
HEBAH(BRZA)AAER2EERTHNRS
BB NSHEBARRDETRAI% - LillfR
AT RN IR R & LB o -

BRENREESFS2RBBRENERR RIEMH
BERAERSEL  AiREREMARBIENTE
AERALTEEETGIERD EZEER RN EERE
AHRERABBAL -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Movement of the Award Shares under the Share Award Scheme for the year & Z2022F 12 A31 B L FE - KD EETEIE T

ended 31 December 2022 are as follows: HIEERI AR (D B AT ¢
Number of Award 28 Vested 5§ Number of
Vesting Award Shares After After Award Shares
Date/ Outstanding During  Adjustment During  Adjustment Outstanding
Participants Catagories Participants Grant Date Condition asat 1/1/2022 the Year  on 15/7/2022* the Year on15/7/2022*  asat 31/12/2022
Rung RunE
1A10 RARE RunE 128318
HATRN 1R15H 7B158 GESHLL
SEEEH 854 RERE SRR/ Kh RERDHE REE EET Y REE R #BRAHE
Directors
gz
Mr. Li Xiangli 10/5/2022 10/5/2022 (Note 4) - 800,000 880,000 (800,000) (880,000) -
FRAlLE (Frst4)
Mr. Yang Rongbing 10/5/2022 10/5/2022 (Note 4) - 500,000 550,000 (500,000) (550,000) -
BRERE (Bixs)
Employees
&8
In aggregate 10/5/2022 10/5/2022 (Note 4) - 1,729.491 1,902,440 (1,729491) (1,902,440) -
At (Ht3k4)
Directors
g3
Mr. Li Xiaugli 2811212022 13/4/2023 (Note 6) - 500,000 N/A - NA 500,000
FRAlLE (Fike) ER R
Mr. Liu Yi 2811212022 13/4/2023 (Note 6) - 500,000 N/A - NA 500,000
Bk (Mite) HER R
Mr. Yang Rongbing 2811212022 13/4/2023 (Note 6) - 500,000 N/A - NA 500,000
BREEE (Mste) ER HER
Employees
&8
In aggregate 2811212022 13/4/2023 (Note 6) - 1,202,392 N/A - N/A 1,202,392
Bt (M3te) AR R
Total
@i - 5,731,883 3,332,440 (3029491) (3,332,440 2,702,392
The five highest paid
individuals
BEBRHHAL
Directors In aggregate 10/5/2022 10/5/2022 (Note 4) - 1,300,000 1,430,000 (1,300,000) (1,430,000) -
gz ait (Mrsk4)
Directors In aggregate 2811212022 13/4/2023 (Note 6) - 1,500,000 N/A - NA 1,500,000
gz aif (Hike) HER AR
* Adjusted number of Share Award as a result of the 2022 Bonus Issue. * E R 2022 FAI MR BT AR KM SRENEE -

2025 FHRE REOBBRRBRERERAR /]
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Notes:

1. The Award Shares were and will be transferred to the relevant participants at no
consideration upon satisfaction of the vesting conditions (if any).

2. The closing price of the Shares on 6 May 2022, being the business day immediately
before the date on which the awards were granted, as quoted on the Stock Exchange
was HK$1.48.

3. The closing price of the Shares on 23 December 2022, being the business day
immediately before the date on which the awards were granted, as quoted on the
Stock Exchange was HK$1.30.

4. The Award Shares were not subject to any vesting period.

5. The weighted average closing price of the shares on 6 May 2022, being the day
immediately before the dates on which the Award Shares were vested, were HK$1.55,
respectively.

6. The Award Shares granted on 28 December 2022 were subject to performance targets
with reference to the profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2022 based on its audited financial results. Thereafter, the
Board subsequently approved the vesting of the Award Shares on 13 April 2023 upon
satisfaction of the vesting conditions.

7. No awards were cancelled or lapsed during the Year.

Other details of the share awards under the Share Award Scheme, including
the fair value and the accounting standard and policy adopted of awards
granted, are set out in Note 2 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into or
subsisted during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the “Share Option Scheme” section and “Share
Award Scheme” section in this directors’ report and in Notes 29 and 30
to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the financial
year or at the end of the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
its holding company or the subsidiaries of its holding company a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

To the knowledge of the Board, as at 31 December 2022, the interests
and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (a)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (b) which were required, under Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to in that section, or (c) which were

required under the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange, were as follows:

BT

Approximate

Number of percentage
Shares Number of to the issued
(including underlying share capital
Award Shares) shares/ the Company
Name of Directors Nature of interests (Note 1) share options Total (Note 9)
EARLT
RO #E ERTRAN
(BEERRA) HERG, BOEA
EEsR EmE (MtzE1) BRERE st (Hf5E9)
Mr. LI Xiangli Interests held jointly with 284,745,340 (L) 10,450,000 295,195,340 60.51%
(Notes 2, 3 & 4) another person
FmHkE HEMATHRABREOER
(fFsE2 - 3% 4) Interests of a controlled
corporation
LB R
Interests of spouse
B B &
Beneficial owner
BExEAA
Ms. ZHANG Alying Interests held jointly with 284,745,340 (L) 10,450,000 295,195,340 60.51%

(Notes 2, 4 & 5)
RERZ A
(M5E2 - 4% 5)

another person
HEMATHABREOER
Interests of a controlled
corporation
R EE RS
Interests of spouse
Ao B
Beneficial owner

ERBEEA
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Number of
Shares
(including
Award Shares)
Name of Directors Nature of interests (Note 1)
R&GEE
(BRERBRG)
Esps EEME (BtzE1)
Mr. LIU Yi Interests held jointly with 284,745,340 (L)
(Notes 2 & 6) another person
2k 4 HEAM A T HEFEER
(MF3E2 X2 6) Interests of a controlled

Mr. YANG Rongbing

corporation
XA E
Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA

Beneficial owner 3,687,700 (L)

R EEE EnEAA (Note 7)
(BHzE7)
Notes:

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares and underlying shares.
The breakdown is as follows:

There was a duplication of interests of 281,808,340 Shares among Mr. LI Xiangli
(177,477,300 Shares), Ms. ZHANG Aiying (59,863,540 Shares) and Mr. LIU Yi
(44,467,500 Shares).

There was a duplication of interests of 2,937,000 Award Shares among Mr. LI Xiangli
(968,000 Award Shares), Ms. ZHANG Aiying (484,000 Award Shares) and Mr. LIU
Yi (605,000 Award Shares) granted on 29 January 2021 and an additional 880,000
Award Shares granted to Mr. LI Xiangli on 10 May 2022 pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme (all numbers were adjusted due to the 2021 Bonus Issue and the 2022 Bonus
Issue).

There was a duplication of interests of 10,450,000 Share Options (granted on 15 July
2021, the grant of which is approved at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company on 29 September 2021 and relevant listing approval were granted by the
Stock Exchange on 4 October 2021) among Mr. LI Xiangli (4,400,000 Share Options),
Ms. ZHANG Aiying (2,750,000 Share Options) and Mr. LIU Yi (3,300,000 Share
Options) (all numbers were adjusted due to the 2021 Bonus Issue and the 2022 Bonus
Issue).
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Approximate
percentage

Number of to the issued
underlying share capital
shares/ the Company
share options Total (Note 9)
LR N
2RITRAMN
HERE, BHRBETH
BRERE st (H5E9)
10,450,000 295,195,340 60.51%
7,480,000 11,167,700 2.29%
(Note 8)
(MtzE8)
MiEE

(N
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1R 15 MR 17 52 ) 5+ 8 - 2217 A 5E 4 (968,000 % 52 ) ik
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#92,937,000 A& S2ENAR () A k- 1 2 [A) 1) 5 £ TR0 2022
F5A10HE % 75 450880,000 % 22 B i 10 (BT B HF
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Z= [ F %6 4 (4,400,000 B A1) KRB B L £
(2,750,000 17 & A% 1) K 2153 55 4 (3,300,000 7 i i g )
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AL AEREERARAIN202149 A29H £17
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On 31 January 2016, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi entered into an
acting-in-concert deed to acknowledge and confirmed that they are parties acting in
concert in respect of each of the members of the Group during and since the three
years ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015 and continue after the date of the
deed. Pursuant to the deed, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi shall support Mr. LI
Xiangli's decisions on material matters in relation to the operation and management
of the Group by exercising their voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders
and boards of the members of the Group in accordance with the decision of Mr. LI
Xiangli. For details, please refer to the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders — Our Controlling Shareholders Acting in Concert” in the Prospectus. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi are deemed to be
interested in the Shares which are interested by each other.

Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding Limited (“Leon Investment”) is beneficially and
wholly-owned by Mr. LI Xiangli. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Leon Investment.

Ms. ZHANG Aiying is the spouse of Mr. LI Xiangli. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli
and Ms. ZHANG Aiying are deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested
by each other.

Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited (“Swan Stone”) is beneficially and wholly-
owned by Ms. ZHANG Aiying. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. ZHANG Aiying is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Swan Stone.

Hawk Flying Investment Holding Limited (“Hawk Flying”) is beneficially and wholly-
owned by Mr. LIU Yi. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LIU Yi is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Hawk Flying.

Included in total number of such Shares were 2,532,700 Shares, 605,000 Award
Shares granted to Mr. YANG Rongbing on 29 January 2021 and 550,000 Award Shares
granted to him on 10 May 2022 pursuant to the Share Award Scheme (all numbers
were adjusted due to the 2021 Bonus Issue and the 2022 Bonus Issue).

Such Share Options consists of (a) 3,630,000 Share Options, each entitles its holder
to subscribe for one Share, granted to Mr. YANG Rongbing on 23 July 2018; and (b)
3,850,000 Share Options, each entitles its holder to subscribe for one Share, granted
to him on 15 July 2021 (all numbers were adjusted due to the 2021 Bonus Issue and/or
the 2022 Bonus Issue).

As at 31 December 2022, the issued share capital of the Company was 487,860,780
Shares.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31

December 2022, there were no interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken

or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were required,
under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to in
that section, or were required under the Model Code to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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(5) Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited ([ Swan Stone |)
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Bil) - 8RB W 2 4548 A H Swan Stone FT#5 B MR (5
HEHER -

(6) Hawk Flying Investment Holding Limited ([ Hawk Flying ])
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN THE
SHARES

So far as the Directors are aware, as of 31 December 2022, the following
corporations/persons (other than Directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests of 5% or more in the issued Shares or underlying
shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO (the “Register”):

FERRRROPERNER

MEERM - BE2022F 128318 FAFA
T (EERARRESITRABRIN REZEHTRMD
SR P A R E(ES R E KRG FEXVEL
F2NEIDEWIESCEMARRI R FTHE -
FARNBRIBCGESF LB RONEICKETFE
K& (T & M) PTacsR A 5% sk A L ¢

Approximate
percentage
to the issued

Number of share capital
Name of Shareholders Nature of interests Shares of the Company
NN
ERITRAN
BRESEEB ERME RAEE BMABF AL
(Note 1) (Note 10)
(M5E1) (M$5E10)
Ms. WEI Yajuan (Note 2) Interests of spouse 295,195,340 60.51%
B+ (H5E2) BB
Leon Investment (Note 3) Beneficial owner 177,477,300 36.38%
Leon Investment (Ffi3E 3) EmEA A
Swan Stone (Note 4) Beneficial owner 59,863,540 12.27%
Swan Stone (Mf5F4) BB A
Hawk Flying (Note 5) Beneficial owner 44,467,500 9.11%
Hawk Flying (Fff 3£ 5) BB A
China Certification & Inspection Group Interests of a controlled corporation 46,500,000 (L) 11.63%
Co., Ltd. ("CCIC") (Notes 6 & 7)
P ERRRE (RE) BRAA LB R
([FE®RBRABEE]) (K6 k7)
China Inspection Company Limited (“CIC") Interests of a controlled corporation 46,500,000 (L) 11.63%
(Notes 6 & 7)
FREBBRERAR ([RHRAF]) (e k7)) ZEZEEER
China Dragon Inspection & Certification (H.K.) Beneficial owner 46,500,000 (L) 11.63%

Limited (“China Dragon”) (Notes 6 & 7)
PERBREZ (BB BRAB(HIED
(MrE6 % 7)

BEHERA
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Name of Shareholders

BRREE LB

Asian Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio

Nature of interests

EEME

Beneficial owner

Master Fund Limited (“Asian Equity”)
(Notes 8 & 9)

Asian Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio

BEamlEA

Master Fund Limited ([ Asian Equity |)
(KMizr8 & 9)

RAYS Capital Partners Limited

Investment Manager

("RAYS Capital”) (Notes 8 & 9)

BEREXRBERRAB(EBER]

RERE

(fizE8 X 9)

RUAN David Ching Chi (“Mr. David RUAN")

(Notes 8 & 9)

RUAN David Ching Chi

XEEE R

([David RUAN St 4 1) (Fi3E8 12 9)

Notes:

(1

)

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Ms. WEI Yajuan is the spouse of Mr. LIU Yi. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. WEI Yajuan is
deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Mr. LIU Yi.

The breakdown is as follows:

There was a duplication of interests of 281,808,340 Shares among Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms.
ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU YI, Ms. WEI Yajuan, Leon Investment, Swan Stone and Hawk
Flying. Of these Shares, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi and Ms. WEI
Yajuan were deemed interested in the 177,477,300 Shares (held by Leon Investment),
59,863,540 Shares (held by Swan Stone) and 44,467,500 Shares (held by Hawk Flying),
respectively.

There was a duplication of interests of 2,937,000 Award Shares among Mr. LI Xiangli,
Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU YI, Ms. WEI Yajuan, Leon Investment, Swan Stone and
Hawk Flying. Of these Award Shares, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi and
Ms. WEI Yajuan were deemed interested in the 1,848,000 Award Shares (held by Mr.
LI Xiangli), 484,000 Award Shares (held by Ms. ZHANG Aiying) and 605,000 Award
Shares (held by LIU Yi) respectively.

Interest of a controlled corporation
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Approximate
percentage
to the issued

Number of share capital
Shares of the Company
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(Note 1) (Note 10)
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40,126,583 (L) 9.05%
40,126,583 (L) 9.05%
40,126,583 (L) 9.05%
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There was a duplication of interests of 10,450,000 Shares Options among Mr. LI
Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU YI, Ms. WEI Yajuan, Leon Investment, Swan Stone
and Hawk Flying. Of these Shares Options, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU
Yi and Ms. WEI Yajuan were deemed interested in the 4,400,000 Shares Options (held
by Mr. LI Xiangli), 2,750,000 Shares Options (held by Ms. ZHANG Aiying) and 3,300,000
Shares Options (held by Mr. LIU Yi) respectively.

(3) Leon Investment is beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LI Xiangli. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Leon Investment.

(4) Swan Stone is beneficially and wholly-owned by Ms. ZHANG Aiying. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. ZHANG Aiying is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Swan Stone.

(5 Hawk Flying is beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LIU Yi. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
LIU Yi is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Hawk Flying.

(6) China Dragon is a 99.88% owned subsidiary of CIC, which is a 75% owned subsidiary
of CCIC. By virtue of the SFO, CIC and CCIC are deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by China Dragon.

(7) There was a duplication of interests of 46,500,000 Shares among China Dragon, CIC
and CCIC.

(8) Asian Equity is @ 100% owned subsidiary of RAYS Capital, which is 45.60% owned by
Mr. David RUAN. By virtue of the SFO, RAYS Capital and Mr. David RUAN are deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by Asian Equity.

9) There was a duplication of interest of 40,126,583 Shares among Asian Equity, RAYS
Capital and Mr. David RUAN.

(10)  The percentage interests are pursuant to the notification forms received by the
Company and recorded in the Register. As at 31 December 2022, the issued share
capital of the Company was 487,860,780 Shares.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at
31 December 2022, no other persons (other than the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company) owned interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO or interests or short positions
required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and as far as
the Directors are aware, as at the date of this directors’ report, at least 25%
of the total number of issued Shares of the Company is held by the public
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions of pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles of
association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands (being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated), which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the Shareholders by
reason of their holding of the Shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The customer base of the Company mainly consists of global giants and
industry leaders, covering a wider range of industries which include energy
and cleaning energy, commodity, environmental protection and carbon
neutrality services etc. Our suppliers mainly include equipment suppliers and
landlords.

In the year under review, the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
less than 35% of the Group’s total revenue.

In the year under review, the Group'’s five largest suppliers accounted for less
than 20% of the Group's total cost of sales.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close associates
or Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total number of issued Shares
had any interest in the five largest customers or five largest suppliers of the
Group during the year.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Other than the financial risk management objective and policies as disclosed
in Note 40 to the financial statements, some significant risks and uncertainties
affecting the Group are outlined below. They are not exhaustive and there
may be other additional risks and uncertainties which are now unknown or
immaterial to the Group but could become material in future.

Our business and operations involve certain risks and uncertainties, many of
which are beyond our control. Management oversees the risks and mitigate
them by implementing robust business processes. These risks can be broadly
categorized as (1) business and industry risk; (2) economic and political risk; (3)
financial risk; (4) people risk; and (5) operational risk.

BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY RISK

The Group depends on a limited number of customers for a substantial
portion of our revenue and may not be able to successfully maintain our
business relationship with these customers. Our expansion plans or future
acquisitions may entail certain risks and challenges.

ECONOMIC AND POLITICAL RISK

The economic, political and social conditions of regions we operate in
could affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Any
slowdown in the global economy may affect the demand for energy and
commaodities and result in a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

FINANCIAL RISK

The Group is exposed to discontinued or reduced preferential tax treatments,
interest rate, foreign currency in the normal course of business.

OPERATIONAL RISK

The Group's operations may be interrupted by the occurrence of unexpected
events like natural disasters, strikes, epidemics and occupational hazards that
may or may not be under the Group's control.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Our business relationship with our customers has proven to be lasting. We
believe that impartial and high-quality testing and inspection are critically
important for our customers. To better serve the business needs from our
customers, we are dedicated to delivering reliable testing and inspection
services supported by quality control and operational measures consistent
with statutory and industrial standards, which are strictly followed by our
employees. In the meantime, we have an experienced sales and marketing
team in each of our service centers to better understand and serve the needs
of our customers.

We generally maintain a list of approved suppliers. We review this list on an
annual basis and consider whether any supplier should be removed or added.
In selecting a new supplier, we generally consider whether the supplier
candidate has passed the relevant quality authentication, obtained the
relevant production permit, and/or received favorable recommendations. We
typically maintain at least two suppliers for each type of our major equipment,
instruments or required services to minimize potential disruption of our
operation, maintain sourcing stability and secure competitive prices from
suppliers.

EMPLOYEES

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 2,528 (2021: 2,112) employees in
total. The Group’s employee compensation includes base salary, bonuses and
cash subsidies. In general, the Group determines employee compensation
based on each employee’s performance, qualifications, position and seniority.
Other agreed employee benefits includes pension scheme, medical insurance,
on-job training, education subsidy and other social security and paid leaves
stipulated under the relevant jurisdiction of places of operation. The Company
maintained good relationship with its employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is based on their merit,
qualifications and competence. The Company has adopted the share option
scheme as well as the share award scheme as the incentives to Directors and
eligible employees. The emoluments of the Directors are recommended and
decided by the remuneration committee and the Board respectively, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which were exempted from disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules. Details are disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Group was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2022.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, of which certain of transactions also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules but were exempted from disclosure requirements under the
Listing Rules. Details are disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
We uphold high standards and meet relevant requirements under applicable

laws or ordinances when conducting our business.

For the year, the Company was in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have significant impact on the Company in all material
respects.

SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE
YEAR

The Group had no significant events after the reporting year up to the date of
this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
of the Board in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules.
The Audit Committee now comprises three members, namely Mr. LIU Hoi
Keung (Chairman), Mr. WANG Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong, all being the
independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has discussed with the management of the Group
and reviewed this annual report and the financial results of the Group for
the year. It also discussed with the management of the Group and reviewed
the financial controls, risk management and internal control system of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group which are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards for the year have
been audited by Ernst & Young (“EY"), the auditor of the Company.

AUDITOR

The Board announced on 30 August 2022 that Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
has resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from 30 August
2022, and at the recommendation of the Audit Committee, it has resolved
to appoint EY as the new auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and to hold office until
the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
have been audited by EY, who will retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the 2023 AGM. Save as disclosed above, there have
been no other changes of independent auditor for the preceding three years.

THE PUBLICATION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on the
Company's website at www.leontest.com and the website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Yang Rongbing
Executive Director

PRC, 30 March 2023
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ABOUT THE REPORT

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (“China Leon”, “our Group”,
“the Group” and “We") annually prepares the environmental, social and
governance (ESG) report (the “Report”) to present the Group’s environmental,
social and governance performance as well as actions, progress towards
goals, and achievements in tackling climate change, including specific areas
of the environment, employees, products and services, supply chains and
communities and so on. For corporate governance information, please refer to
the Corporate Governance Report contained in the Annual Report for details.

Reporting Scope

The reporting period is from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the
“Reporting Period”). The reporting scope of the Report covers the principal
business operations of the Group, including (1) testing services; (2) surveying
services; (3) witnessing and ancillary services; (4) technical and consulting
services carried out in Greater China and overseas regions.

All information disclosed in the Report is derived from the Group’s official
documents, internal data, statistical reports and stakeholder surveys. Unless
otherwise specified, the amounts shown in the Report are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HKD).

Reporting Guide

The Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) under Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
environmental and social key performance indicators (“KPIs”) are disclosed in
the Report pursuant to the Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs and
Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs of the Stock Exchange, respectively. The
Group has considered the applicable reporting principles and the results of
materiality assessment to determine the scope of disclosures in the Report.
Details of the reporting principles applied and the materiality assessment are
elaborated in the section Reporting Principles and Section 1.3 Materiality
Assessment below, respectively.
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Reporting Principles

Reporting Principles
HERA
Materiality

B2t

Quantitative

21t

Balance

T

Consistency

— B

RIR - dERERERE

Application in the Report
ERARKE

During the Reporting Period, the Group carried out assessment on material issues to help us
identify and prioritize significant ESG issues in relation to the Group’s business. For details, please
refer to Section 1.3 Materiality Assessment.

AEBRMEHARBETEZMRETE  LEDRMBANTELEREREBMIEE
BRI EREREE FBEH2RE 1 3HM [ EEMNME] -

Based on the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide issued by the Stock
Exchange and relevant preparation principles, the Report quantifies the key performance
indicators and describes the scope of coverage. Please refer to the relevant chapters of the Report
for the calculation methods and reference standards of quantitative data.

ERBERZ PRI EE[3R @ RE B MmEIES I A RAREGERAER - RS HBERE U
SETTEN UHBEDEET THA ERSLBBAEN AL BREFRARE
MRS -

The Report presents sustainable development performance during the Reporting Period in a fair
and impartial manner, avoiding selections, omissions or presentation formats that may improperly
affect the decision-making or judgment of report readers.
FREARFRENFTASRBERANAIFELREN B eg T hE T ERS
BEEITRRH A EE BRI 2B -

The Group has a long history of adopting consistent statistical methods in its disclosure that
enable meaningful comparison of ESG data in reports.
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Access to the Report and Feedback

The Report is made available online unless specific requests are received
for the Report in printed form. You can access the Group’s official website
(http://www.leontest.com) or the website of the Stock Exchange (http://
www.hkexnews.hk) for an electronic copy. The Report is available in both
Chinese and English versions. The English version shall prevail in case of any
discrepancy between the two versions.

Your opinions on the ESG Report are highly valued by us, so as to further
enhance our ESG performance. You are most welcome to provide your views
and suggestions via our website (http://www.leontest.com).

BOARD STATEMENT

In 2022, China officially delivered the Report of China’s Progress in
Implementing Nationally Determined Contributions (2022) at the 27th
Conference of the Parties (COP27) of the United Nations Framework
Convention on Climate Change, indicating that China is moving towards the
goal of lowering carbon emission intensity by 65%. Furthermore, Chinese
enterprises’ actions towards reducing carbon emissions in various industries
have drawn worldwide attention during the COP27, and it is becoming
popular for enterprises to actively fulfill their sustainable development
responsibilities in response to climate change.

Sustainable development is our unswerving responsibility and mission.
China Leon has incorporated sustainable development into the Group’s
long-term development strategy, seeking to grow its business while serving its
customers in the transition to decarbonization and cleanliness, reinforcing its
commitment to sustainable operations and improving its ESG performance.
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During the Reporting Period, China Leon further expanded its overseas
service network from the Asia Pacific region to emerging markets in South
America and Africa, providing high-quality services under the framework
of strategies of “2+X" for international leading enterprises and we were
committed to promoting global green and low-carbon transition. ESG-
oriented development is a key priority for the strategies of “2+X". Through
the three main implementation dimensions of (1) ESG-Friendly; (2) ESG+;
and (3) ESG-Focused, we continued to explore the development paths
of industrial environment, society and governance in the areas of trade
security, clean energy, environmental protection and climate change. In the
first half of the year, we successfully launched the consulting service for
voluntary carbon emission reduction project, assisted clients in successfully
completing the project registration under the international carbon emission
reduction mechanism, helping them to fully implement their corporate social
responsibility. In addition, we exclusively published the Global Voluntary
Carbon Market Report to help the public understand more comprehensively
the current status of the global voluntary carbon market. We also played
an active role in formulating and amending national standards related to
greenhouse gas accounting for carbon peaking and carbon neutrality in 2022,
thus filling the void and creating a more positive impact on the long-term
sustainable development of environment and society.

We have been disclosing ESG information for seven consecutive years. The
board of directors (the “Board”) of the Group lays stress on ESG-related
issues. The Board oversees relevant matters through a sustainable
development management framework and conducts regular assessments and
reviews on material ESG issues and progress against targets.

The Board oversees and manages the Group’s ESG strategies and issues
mainly in the following ways:

o Management system for sustainable development: We have
developed a three-level management system consisting of decision-
making, management and execution with the Board as the core, and
clearly defined the functions and responsibilities of each level. The
Board has established a special ESG working team to boost effective
communications among the Board, relevant business departments and
subsidiaries as well as the actions taken.

o Development of strategies and action plans: Based on the report
from the ESG working team, the Board determines the ESG risks and
opportunities of strategic significance to the business of the Group,
and formulates strategies, objectives and action plans for sustainable
development accordingly.
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o Engagement with stakeholders: We identify different stakeholders
and effectively communicate with them through various communication
channels, listen to stakeholder expectations and needs and invite them
to participate in materiality assessment.

o Risk and materiality assessment: The Group has developed processes
for materiality assessment to identify, assess and rank ESG material
issues based on external data (such as survey results from stakeholders,
information disclosed by peers and the latest industry practices) and
internal data (such as internal assessment on the issues’ relevance to
and impact on the Group’s business). The Board reviews and evaluates
the identified issues.

. Risk management and internal control: The Board has set up a
risk management and internal control system to manage relevant
risks and opportunities in the Group’s business. Meanwhile, we have
established a systematic internal supervision mechanism to supervise
the management, strategy and effectiveness of actions, achievement of
goals and compliance of ESG-related issues.

China Leon will continuously adhere to the path of sustainable development,
establish transparent and open communication channels through disclosure
of ESG performance, and actively respond to the expectations and concerns
of stakeholders. In the journey of the new year, we will stick to our original
aspiration, innovate refined management system, expand global vision,
and provide clients with green and low-carbon services under the guidance
of “ESG Development Strategy”. In addition, we will focus on cultivating
diverse talents, incorporating fresh elements into the new business field
under the strategies of “2+X", taking positive actions to ensure compliance
with the highest standards of ethical business practices, and building a good
corporate citizenship by creating sustainable business value through business
cooperation with the value chain.
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SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT 1 AURERREE
1.1 Sustainability Management Structure 1.1 AIRHERREERE
With a view to smoothly conducting the work towards sustainable RIEFFRATFEERTIE BRUEE
development and effectively implementing relevant actions, WEEXIEMAITE $EIL‘X§$§
the Group has established a robust sustainable development ARZOELTRENAFELEEER
management structure with the Board as the core, and set up an BUREIRE HERE \L‘If’lf@ B
ESG working team to implement specific issues. AEAREABNABEZE -
The B Decision-making level
Qe ( N J
E=g v

Formulate ESG strategies and policies at the group level,

T evaluate the advice from the working team, review and
. . supervise the work results and the progress towards targets.
Supervision Reporting WEEEETES - R AREERER - F 65T MBI i
=B \L R BEVEE TERENE R ESEE -
Management level
f o
ESG working team =R E
PPy <
ghERLIE v

Promulgate the Group’s ESG-related policies and guidelines,
collect and organize the feedback from subsidiaries and business units on
ESG-related risks and opportunities, and advise the Board accordingly.
FMEEEE - 1R SBERANIES] - PR RE R B AR R
EBEMMRSR - HEREGEBRRINRBNRE - YAEEFIRLEE -

( Execution level J

HITE

M

Formulate and implement the subsidiary-level procedures and

Relevant business units Subsidiaries implementation rules pursuant to the Group’s policies and guidelines,

and report ESG-related risks and opportunities to the working team, if any.

55 e iz tEANE RIS SE BT OALR 3] + 10 EHH B 2 B R 92 PR Al
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Sustainable Management Structure
AIREEREEER
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On the basis of the above structure, the Board supervises ESG
issues and assumes the full responsibility for ESG reports. The
ESG working team consists of members from different functional
departments (e.g. finance department, human resources
department and quality assurance department), subsidiaries and
business units. The main responsibilities of ESG working team
are to report to the Board on important matters, offer assistance
and advice, including reviewing policies and measures regarding
sustainable development and evaluating sustainable development
risks, which may serve as a reference for the Board to formulate
relevant strategies, while ensuring the effective delivery of
information between the Board and various subsidiaries and
business units in each region.

In addition, to support the promotion of ESG concepts and the
implementation of relevant measures, we have formulated a
series of group-level policy documents, including but not limited
to corporate social responsibility policy, environmental protection
policy, human rights policy, health and safety policy, information
security policy, anti-fraud and anti-bribery policy, media, public
participation and donation policy. These policy documents not
only provide the framework and direction for the Group to push
forward sustainable development, but also provide a basis for
the Group's subsidiaries and business units to develop specific
implementation plans based on their own business situations.
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1.2 Stakeholders Engagement

We attach importance to the interaction and communication
with stakeholders, whose expectations are closely tied with
the direction and strategy of our business operation, and also
serve as an important reference for the formation of sustainable
development goals and strategies of the Group. During the
Reporting Period, the Group communicated with a wide range
of stakeholders through multiple channels to better obtain and
understand their suggestions and needs, so as to continuously
improve the Group's sustainable development strategies and
performance.

Based on the characteristics and direction of the Group's
business, and taking into account various factors including
relevance, impact, reliance, we identified the following six groups
of major stakeholders:

Major stakeholders Areas of concern

FTEFZEEE BX=EE
Investors o Return on investment
o Business plans, growth and
development
o Disclosure and transparency of
corporate information
° Sustainable development strategies
REE e  KREMD®W

o EBEE - BRRER
e RAEEKEEZAE
o AR R

Customers o Provision of fair and high-quality
professional services
° Data security and customer privacy
° Customer feedback and
communication
=P e RHAT - EE - BEHRE

o BELZEREFPLE
s XPREBEHER

RIR - dERERERE

1.2 MEBEREER

BPERENSZERENESHEEAE -
HHASE R IR P9 2675 = 48 9 7 (7] 0 5K i B2
TR CRMEEEIFEZRAEE
HEBNEZ2ZER -BEHAR &
ERBAZREREANDBEEETE
B ARSI REEN T AR IR
Ko HET TR DS &R B R R AR R
MR -

REBEEEBKEMT A - WAAEHE
e FERMKEREESEE  RIAHER
TUATREZENRMBEEE

Communication means

BEAR

Annual general meeting

Interim and annual reports

Results announcements

Official company website
Communication via investor mailbox
Corporate communication (e.g., letters or
circulars to investors)

RERFERE

hEIREE RS

A RIE J7 Ak

REEHMAED

REBA (MBI EE S M - BER)

Customer service center

Daily operations, meetings and
interactions

Customer visits

Service hotline and email feedback
BEPRRE R L

HEZE 2xKkE2H

BREFED

AR 7% 20457 [ 4G [ 88
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Major stakeholders Areas of concern
FTENZHEE BXE1E
Suppliers o Economic growth
o Fair and transparent procurement
process
e o KFmER

o RF ERMKRERRE

Employees o Remuneration package and staff
welfare
° Occupational health and safety
o Career development
o Corporate culture
= e  HBIFBREIREAM

s BEEEEkZZE
o BIX¥ER

o DEXL
Public and media o Support for the development of
communities where we operate
. Social and environmental protection
responsibility
NRRIEEE o XFEEMEEER

o HERRERFRERME

Government bodies o Compliance with Listing Rules, and
other relevant laws and regulations
. Corporate governance and risk
management
o Corporate development and
economic benefits
o Sustainable development strategies
NEgER) 2 o BT EMRBIRBBERNER

«  CEEAREREE
. ﬁ%%@&@@ﬂﬁ
. ARBEERE
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Communication means

BELSR
o Supplier access and evaluation
. Daily operations, meetings and

interactions
. Site visits
o HEEAE ARG
. HELE 22Kk
J BEhZE R

o Performance evaluation

o Regular trainings and activities

° Internal system and email

o Communication meetings in a democratic
way

. GEHGHE
. EEEYIEED
. RBRARBAE
. RIEAes

° Corporate news release

o Response to media enquiries

. Press conferences and interviews
. Community engagements

. 1SR A

. bl EFiEEh

. E e RS
o *hlEm £

o Compliance supervision and reports
° On-site inspections
o Regular reports

° Written replies to enquiries

. EHER RS
o 5 KE

. EHRE

. EAOELEW
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1.3 Materiality Assessment

RIR - dERERERE

1.3 EEMFME

As part of the ESG management and reporting process, the ERIRE HERERNEREERERR
Group carried out identification, assessment and ranking of FH—Hs AEEEREHARRT
the materiality of sustainable development issues during the AFEEREREZEHER - FHEMEE

Reporting Period.

Identification

% o

Materiality Assessment Process

EEMFARR

Identify several sustainable development issues of the Group with reference to the nature
of the Group'’s business, strategic planning, the ESG Reporting Guide and others.

Bl SMBEBEEBIE  BERE  RIE g kEemEESS S5 TESEA
SEERZE

Assessment Invite internal and external stakeholders to rank the materiality of the identified
sustainable development issues, provide relevant suggestions, and conduct analysis on
and evaluate the findings.

BEE BEAE - INBFEAEEE BN REEREAEMEEEZ NG - R
B WHAERETHOETME -

Ranking Rank 20 ESG issues according to their materiality to stakeholders and their materiality to
the Group's business for drawing a materiality matrix, of which approval was obtained
from the Board.

7357 BEHNEEEENEEUREALREEBEZHOMELE - H20HRE  1HE
RECHERBETEERYF BUEEMEBITRSEESHME -

During the identification process, we identified a series of material EHRBIET - RS BEEERMLE -

sustainable development issues of the Group with reference to BERE RE Mg RERARSIED

the nature of the Group’s business, strategic planning, the ESG Z HAIE-FRIEBMASEERE

Reporting Guide and others. On this basis, we conducted the EMEE WAEER FBBRRIAT

following steps to supplement and finally produced a complete REETHT  EERKTENEES

list of issues: B :

. We referred to the latest regional and global information . SERAEEEKLERERE
with high relevance and materiality to the business SEEENREZENN ST
operation and development of the Group. For example, we LEHRER - Hli0 2EH 7K
referred to the key risks arising from the current economic, BB EMA M Q023F 2 RA R
social, climate change and technological situation stated RE)FTIREMNE AR+
in the Global Risks Report 2023 released by the World g RIEEMMBNBLEFMEE
Economic Forum:; B RA g L B

e We referred to the information disclosed by our peers and . SLERTHEBESWETEHE
benchmarked as a reference to the latest industry practices NS ERFITEENRERE
and trends;

e The ESG working team conducted an internal evaluation of . BRE e kEAIFEEKYEE
the performance and impact of Group's related issues. WM RRER IR EmMETT

REBRT A ©

2022FEHmE TEIERBERERAR
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R - 4 ERERHRE

Based on the results obtained in the above process, we ranked 20
ESG issues such as climate change and carbon neutrality, board
governance, customer service and employees’ rights in the two
dimensions of the materiality to stakeholders and the materiality
to the Group’s business, and drew a materiality matrix, which
was approved by the Board. The ranking falls into high-materiality
issues, medium-materiality issues and low-materiality issues. The
detailed analysis findings are shown below.

Medium-materiality Issues

hEEMEE

Materiality to stakeholder
HA=AEEENEEN

® e s
(2 (14)

Low-materiali}l Issues

BAERALRENFEER  SHHF
HEEENEEENEAEERBEE
TR (42 B SRR R A B
ERE  FEPRENME TH#MEF20EIR
BodekEamBETREASF
REBZUBETESESTSIE - B
FormneaE2MaE PERURER
EEZUHEE ARONERITHE -

High-materiality Issues

SERMEE

@
(4] %19

®

(8 XL
o ©

Medium-materiality Issues

REZMEE BENEE
Materiality to the Group's Business . Environmental Social gayGovernance
HEBXBHERE BRI HE B8
Materiality Matrix
EEMERE
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High-materiality Issues
BEEMEE

Environmental management
RIRER

Efficient use of raw materials/energy

R #E BE IR = 3 A B

Climate change and carbon neutrality
SR B b B TR A

Occupational health and safety

BERRMLTE

Professional qualification and ethics
HERYEBEEST

Customer services

EF R

Customer privacy and data security
BEPEMLEBERZS

Board governance
EEFRE
Compliance operation
BREE
Anti-corruption
k&S

Medium-materiality Issues
FEEMEE

Green office
FCREER TN

Equal opportunities and rights
protection
FEH#E EERRE

Training and development
Bl R

Technological R&D and innovation

 ff A 2% S A

Service quality and safety
fREE S EEZ 2

Intellectual property protection

ABERIRE

(@)  The scores of Issue 15 and Issue 20 are equal

(b)  The scores of Issue 18 and Issue 8 are equal

() The scores of Issue 19 and Issue 12 are equal

RIR - dERERERE

Low-materiality Issues

EEEMHRE

Atmospheric emission

KRR
Responsible procurement and partnership
BEREEINHEAE

Activities for public good
HERHEH

Business ethics and morality
R mIaEE

(@) FHREISHHEBE20T DR
(b) FHEE18FEESTNHME

(0 FHBI9OMZEB 125D HER
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2

EXPLORE A GREEN DEVELOPMENT PATHWAY

2.1 Green and Low-carbon Development

Green and low-carbon development is an important way to
realize the sustainable development goals and is also an issue of
great concern for stakeholders. The Group takes into account
green and low-carbon concepts in every regard of operations. By
sticking to the principle of “creating an environmental-friendly
operation model”, we endeavor to mitigate the environmental
impact of our production and operation activities in terms of
technology, process and management. In addition, we focus on
changing the awareness and habits of our employees in terms
of low carbon and environmental protection, carry out practices
such as green office and extended green footprint, so as to
realize the harmonious development between the company and
the environment while jointly creating a comfortable working
environment.

The Group is committed to performing high standards of
environmental management. Our laboratories have obtained the
ISO 14001 Environmental Management System certification. In
our testing and surveying laboratories already in operation, we
have installed the necessary environmental monitoring equipment
to monitor pollutant emission levels on a daily basis, allowing
us to identify and respond to abnormalities in a timely manner.
Our environmental management and emission levels are in strict
compliance with the environmental requirements of the locations
where we operate.

The Group strictly complies with the applicable environmental
laws and regulations which were promulgated by the
governments of the countries or regions where the Group
operates and which have a significant impact on the business
of the Group, including but not limited to the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Environmental Impact Assessment,
Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Air Pollutions, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Waste, and the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Promotion of Clean Production, the Environmental
Protection and Management Act promulgated by the National
Environmental Agency (NEA) of Singapore regarding energy
conservation, prevention and control of air pollutions as well as
all other applicable laws and regulations. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not have any non-compliance issues or
complaints related to environmental protection.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2022

2

FREEeRERE

2.1

ReRnXRE

ERERAFEERABHNEZRKE
REM@BREAINEEZE &
FEE L 1)K 77 & # AR B KA S
AZE - BAFRAMTERR R FIE
BEAIWRA il TE2MERE
ENEENRIDEENEL BB EIRE
FERHEE R RFTERTH
ERRETHNZEHEENBEREN
FRZEHABTEHEERTSERE
EHARITESETFERRENRE  BR
AAERFEHME R -

FEEARERSIZENRRER B
MEHRZECEBISO 14001 GRIBEEEE
R)REF-EERARBH®BIMETE
ERET  BMLRETVHEOREEN
BRI R FERS RMBEROKT -
B 50 %] 2 8 F 5L & R A i pR B 2
JE - BPMBRBETEEBUKTFHEFTE
BEMEMAIRREN -

AEBEBERETEEEBMAERRK M
EBARMLEAEBEBEEENY
EMERRDERIER  BRETR
R EARKXMBERFEREE) (P
FEARRNMBRBEZEFEL) (FE
ARKAMBEHOERE) (PEARK
MBARB R AE) - (PEARKM
B [ B8 R 1005 AR B R A MR A
REMBBZEERER)  URFR
HEAIBEIR - KRS RBE AR R R I
BIZ IR 5B (NEA) B GRIFMREME
AR M EAERERFOER o
FEARERA - ANEERBRBIRFR
ERBMN T AR E B SR ©



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERME

211 BREAERE

2.1.1 Exhaust Gas and Greenhouse Gas

The Group's exhaust gas emissions mainly came from
vehicles and greenhouse gas emissions were mainly derived
from: (i) direct emissions from the combustion of fuels in
mobile sources (from vehicles) under Scope 1; (ii) indirect
energy emissions from electricity consumption under Scope
2; and (iii) other indirect emissions (mainly from business
travel and waste landfill).

The testing and inspection services provided for our
customers mainly include: (1) testing services; (2) surveying
services; and (3) witnessing and ancillary services. In the
course of services, sample preparation and laboratory test
process are the main sources of exhaust gas emissions and
pollutant emissions. However, the pollutants generated
thereby are not significant compared with the pollutants
of the Group as a whole, and therefore we considered
not to disclose this part pursuant to the materiality
reporting principle. In our daily operations, we filter the
waste gas collected from the testing service process
before discharging it into the atmosphere. In addition, we
continue to push forward clean production, and introduce
environmental-friendly instruments and equipment with
low-emission performance such as sample preparation
equipment and testing instruments according to the status
of equipment and technology upgrades from time to time,
in order to continuously reduce the environmental impact
of our operating processes.

Our vehicles are mainly used for routine operations such
as on-site sampling from ports or customer locations
and transporting samples to laboratories. As the control
of vehicle exhaust emissions is a critical part of our
management of exhaust pollutant emissions, the Company
regularly arranges special personnel to inspect and maintain
vehicles, and sends vehicles to inspection institutions for
testing, thereby ensuring that exhaust emissions meet
the relevant requirements. Furthermore, safety and
environmental performance are also well considered when
purchasing vehicles. Finally, we minimize the frequency of
long-distance travel and work online, including conducting
meetings and training via online video or audio and using
online documents, thereby reducing carbon emissions from
air travel, high-speed rail and paper use.

AEBHERFERIERENE
WER AEREBHEREIBERS
R () 88 B 1 A B B R R IR R R
(RE=E®) ELNBERTER: ()
BE2ANBEREENELMNER
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(FEHEK  BEYVRIEREL) ©
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BEERE : WRARE: Q%2
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EREBEY EnEfRER
ERRAERERER BEY
RO ETBREG  EHRELEN
BRORAMEREEEESLAY
MBI N EE MREBEEELR
SRNEZEEHZAN T TRE -
EHFELST  HMALHEEDW
2RI AR T B AR R RETT BB R IE
RETHEBERERR LI
BAFEEERRLEE RER
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BEREBDRE L ESRMNR
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ATENR DB LB EIRIBHEE

BMMERIEARNREORE
PEEMEHRGRENEEXE M
EEREFAEXRL - ARNIEH
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Performance Indicators of Exhaust Pollutant Emissions

Category

Nitrogen oxides
Sulfur oxides
Suspended particles
Total

Emission Intensity

Lol

A8
k=Rl
R T
we

BERE

Unit

B

KG
KG
KG
KG
KG/million revenue

KG/B&8HKA

Performance Indicators of Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Category

Scope 1

Scope 2

Scope 3

Total

Emission Intensity

<Pzl

#wE—
HE—
BE=
ws

BERGRE
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Unit
By

tCO,e

tCO,e

tCO,e

tCO,e

tCO,e/million revenue
tCOe/ BEWA
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BERSENEHRERIER
Percentage
Performance of total
in 2022 emissions
i E
2022 F &N e 1
3,840.99 91.41%
10.48 0.25%
350.45 8.34%
4,201.92 -
4.27 -

BAERBHERENER

Percentage
Performance of total
in 2022 emissions
b BB E
2022 FEXK L 4l
1,842.93 24.95%
5,275.08 71.41%
269.44 3.65%
7,387.45 -
7.51 -
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2.1.2 Wastes

Main hazardous wastes such as waste petroleum samples,
solvents and acid/base waste, and main non-hazardous
wastes such as paper wastes were produced from the
Group's operation.

Proper hazardous wastes disposal is connected to
environmental safety and human health, and therefore
the Group attaches great importance to daily hazardous
waste management. Responsible personnel shall operate
according to the practice specifications set out in the Safety
Management Procedures and take appropriate samples
for testing to minimize the hazardous wastes production.
Technicians in charge of on-site sampling and laboratory
work are responsible for preliminary collection of hazardous
wastes as well as the sorting and segregation, after which
hazardous wastes are collected and disposed of by licensed
and qualified third-party companies or delivered to them
for safe disposal after collection by the Group.

For the non-hazardous wastes, the Group collectively
disposes of them to the designated waste collection areas

for collection by third party companies for recycling.

Performance Indicators of Wastes Emissions

Category Ehl
Hazardous wastes BEBEEY Total
Bme
Emission Intensity
mEE
Non-hazardous wastes #HEZEEEY) Total
e

Emission Intensity

BEEmE

RIR - dERERERE

2.1.2 BEEY
AEBELCBETEEANEERE
BMETERELBER BB
TR EEY) - BEFEVTE AR -

BEERYMNEEBRERIRER
EMARBRERE HLEELHEE
BRAENEZTEENER - A
ABEARB(L2EEERER)
FRMOE R BRI BUEER M
ETRANRDEERRZEDMHNE
EORERERERETENK

ETOBERBRER 2& 28
HEERFAZELEFEHBER
MEZFTRARENRZE K
HEBRERINRNEETRZE
BRI o

EREEERY SETKES
—RESREMNSRERE A
BE=FRATFLARKFIA -

BENHEREREEZ
Performance

Unit in 2022
By 2022 FEXK

t 5.96

t/million revenue 0.01
t/BBEA

t 515.64

t/million revenue 0.52
t/BEBBA
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RIR - dEREREE

2.2 Effective Resources Utilisation

Reasonable and efficient utilisation of resources is vital for
the sustainable development and management of the Group
and is the philosophy we have been following in our business
operations and daily office. China Leon strictly takes the Group's
environmental protection measures, continuously enhances the
efficiency of resources utilisation and advocates green office.
During the Reporting Period, major resources consumed by the
Group were purchased electricity, gasoline, diesel and water. As
the Group rarely uses finished product packaging, this indicator is
not disclosed in the Report.

In terms of the use of gasoline and diesel, the Group increased
the efficiency of the use of these resources by planning the use
of vehicles in a rational way and by taking environmental factors
into account when purchasing vehicles.

In terms of electricity consumption, the Group devised policies
related to green office and encouraged its employees to take
the following measures for management optimization, green
procurement and green office:

22 BRERNA

EEERUMNERMNAHSENTHERE
EREZWEE bR RMEEHESE ﬂ"DEI
WAP—EHBENES - PENBEREE
EEMRBRELE T\ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ@l
RWEBHZBHA -REHAR EEERED
FEZERBE  IIEE - AH - SBMK A
NEEGRIOERRUNREE A AFRET
UL IB IR IR TR R -

EABERRBERTE  SEAEBEAERE
H@ER BEEMNEZERRARSNA
RAABIREARE

EREFE SEFTHREHARBEE
EELERE HKORE SEeRASH A
B8 TIREUA T a5 ¢

Management Optimization o Increase operational efficiency and reduce energy consumption by making the
optimal use of resources, enhancing processes and improving technologies
o Enhance the management of machinery and equipment (especially high-power
consuming equipment) and conduct regular checking and maintenance
BlER e UEAER  BLRERMEBMREFXEFSELE - FEEIREFRE

o INEREBHMRME (BRI

Green Procurement o

SRERE NEE  UHHETTHREEES

RERE

Green Office

e

Purchase and use environmental-friendly machinery and equipment from green
suppliers

Phase out old equipment and purchase energy-saving appliances with Grade 1
energy label, including air conditioners and lamps

RixefEmE ﬁ%&@iﬁﬁiﬁ{%*”%ﬂ %8

EEBALZERE  KBEAE QR REENGLEESR  EEHANEAS

Advocate a green office culture, such as turning off lights when leaving,
decreasing the standby time of computers and other equipment, and adjusting air
conditioning temperature based on seasonal needs

HTHRER A WEFEE  RLOERSEREOSERER  RENTERH
EEE R ZEFRES

100 China Leon Inspection Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2022



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERME

In terms of water consumption, the Group uses water from the ERKAE SERKARKETREN &£
municipal pipeline network, which is lawful and compliant in B/KAEAESE - KMTSmE THI ey R
terms of acquiring water sources. We call on our employees to KIESZAL THTEHBREFUZESE
keep “water conservation” in mind, develop and implement BIEEFE TIBERSH SEE T HEELERE
relevant policies, constantly raise their environmental R RELA T S B a7k R 3

consciousness, and encourage them to take the following water-
saving measures in the operation process:

Management Optimization o Formulate water-saving plans to be distributed to subsidiaries
o Regularly record and monitor the use of water by each department
o Regularly inspect and maintain conventional equipment and pipelines and timely
repair and replace old water equipment and damaged pipelines to avoid water
leak
BlLERE o HIEEIKEE > 0 Bﬁ%/‘

. Eﬁﬁ%&ﬁ&%%—%x*ﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬁ*l
e THRERREBRRENEE &E—iri‘&ﬂk&?i}ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ’]* RENIERES

1 2 IRk
Green Office o Put up water-saving slogans in prominent positions and conduct water-saving
publicity and education
o Eliminate “long-running water”, promote water saving in a scientific way and raise
employees’ awareness of water saving
S S=FIEYN s BENBRMHVAKEERE RARHKEEHE
o HMBIRMAK] BERBZHKME  ESELEHKER
Performance Indicators of Resource Consumption’ EREEENER
Performance
Unit in 2022
Category Bl By 2022 F &M
Electricity 3 1,000 KWH 5,463.69
Energy consumption intensity BEFERE 1,000 KWH/million revenue 5.55
1,000 KWH, & & YA
Diesel oil Sy 1,000 KWH 3,911.32
Energy consumption intensity BEFERE 1,000 KWH/million revenue 3.97
1,000 KWH, & & YA
Unleaded gasoline AN T0m 1,000 KWH 4,132.37
Energy consumption intensity BEFERE 1,000 KWH/million revenue 4.20
1,000 KWH, & & YA
Total energy consumption BEeREEE 1,000 KWH 13,507.37
Total energy BELFERE 1,000 KWH/million revenue 13.73
consumption intensity
1,000 KWH, & & YA
Water consumption AKE m3 110,736.23
Water consumption intensity FAKEE m?/million revenue 112.54
m3/ B BB A
During the Reporting Period, the business activities of the Group RIPERR  EEEK T REBELRRA
had no significant impact on the environment and natural BEELEEASE .
resources.
Energy performance is calculated according to the conversion equivalents of HKEX's REREEMRETEBMIMRE HEREREIIR
Environmental, Social and Governance Guidelines and GB/T 2589-2020. GB/T 2589-2020 F MBI E E51E
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2.3 Green Operation in Practice

As a leading international inspection and testing institution,
China Leon has been actively practicing the social responsibility
of green development and extending this responsibility to every
employee within the Group. We believe that while providing
professional and quality services to our customers, the Group's
efforts to move forward on the path of sustainable and green
development will be more widely recognized and continue to
enhance our market competitiveness.

In order to promote the group-wide green operation, we have
formulated a number of systematic policies, such as the Green
Office Management System, covering energy use, waste disposal
and recycling, so as to institutionally facilitate the Group’s green
and low-carbon operation. In addition, we have formulated
comprehensive guidelines on sustainable offices that our
subsidiaries can use in various scenarios. To make sure more
employees can join green environmental actions proactively, we
have carried out advocacy initiatives and incentives, including but
not limited to:

23 BITREEE

TERBIR BT RBRARE - T
ERETHREERNLEET  XHKE
EEEHFEEEARSHNE-—RET -
BFRE EREFRHEEX - BER
BHRE  SEEAHENSKEERE
BETHAENS NBESERZNR
] WERARMINTIEHRFS -

RESEBENBZETHREES K
PHIE] TR ERRERER)E— KT
MERCBE  BRERRER BEY
RIE - BREEFMBETE  REEE
TTAR B KB S IR BIERIE - R
BPITHET T HANASERRRAE
Wl ARENERARRA  LBEE
ARZESEs - REREL B TRER
SEZERRTY - ZARRT — &7
BEEzE  BERENRR

Equipment Improvement

Electricity and Paper Saving

Online Office

B EmA

Install fresh air system to purify air and recover heat and humidity in the room to
increase heating efficiency

Choose energy-efficient light bulbs and use day lighting whenever possible
ZEMAZGFCER/NER  BRERREZE - RARERE
BEERUGBSNEE  WHEAREAE AN

Turn off lights and electronic equipment in the office when the office is not in use
or upon leaving the office

Keep the indoor temperature at 26 C

Use double-sided printing to save office paper, and use recycled paper to print
non-essential documents

Put reusable paper in the recycling bin by size, with the usable side facing the
same direction for easy use by others

Reduce the use of disposable paper cups and other supplies
EMREEANGR  BANAER  BREFRAZEANRAREFRE
RIFERREE26T

CREEITE  FEPLRA  WERBERITHEEEXH

A EEFEANARERTHRALRYKSE WA —EHAR—FARE -
77 E Mt ABL

WD —IREEMERmEER

Choose to send and receive electronic edition of messages, notices and instructions
instead of paper documents whenever possible within the Group

Promote the installation of equipment and systems for video and audio meetings,
and encourage employees to use them

SEHAMFEREE T AWEAL - BELIETR  BREARH
HBRASENTHEGRRONER  YSBETEREHERS
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Green Travel

RIR - dERERERE

Reduce greenhouse gas emissions from business trips and the taking of the means
of transportation related thereto

Make the wise arrangement of business trips, give priority to low-carbon means of
transportation as an incentive to green travel

WA RN RERERBETAESRREREHN

PERHABLT BEERERBIA  FBHKELT

Post energy-saving slogans in the prominent positions of office to enhance the
publicity efforts

Conduct energy-saving and water-saving publicity and education activities to
enhance employees’ environmental awareness
ERAENFEZMERWDETE  MASENE

FRERE  SKEEHEEY  IBABTIREREH

2.4 EHRIEEL

Climate Change Tackling

COP 27 and the 2023 Global Risk Report published by World
Economic Forum have once again sounded an alarm that climate
change will be the most serious long-term risk faced by the
world. As a responsible corporate citizen and partner, conducting
early risk assessments and studies on climate change will help
us to better understand the intrinsic link between the Group’s
business operations and climate change, which can support us
to develop anticipatory and feasible countermeasures to reduce
our financial risks. We are committed to enhancing operational
resilience, reducing greenhouse gas emissions and enhancing
our capability of tackling climate change. On the premise of
guaranteeing the demands of our stakeholders such as investors,
employees, customers, partners and communities, we will seize
the development opportunities of low-carbon economic transition
and turn the Group’s resilience into our core competitiveness.

The Group identify and analyze climate change-related risks
and opportunities through the framework for the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD"), and disclose
the information on governance, strategies, risk management,
indicators and the progress towards the goals.

° Governance

The Board manages climate change matters through its
internal sustainable development management mechanism.
The Board reviews and supervises the environmental, social
and governance performance such as greenhouse gas
emissions and energy consumption, holds regular meetings
to evaluate and discuss risks and opportunities arising from
climate change, and reviews the progress towards goals. By
forming an ESG working team, the Group pushes forward
the group-wide implementation and goal attainment
of ESG-related measures by relevant departments and
subsidiaries.

COP27 Fl tt 5 45 /7 7 18 &9 (2023 F & Bk
EBRFE)BAAEAREELE  [E
BB ERRATHERRERENRERR -
EABETNDCERRMAEKME - &
5 R P AR L A R B 5T A A 5T
EPREMETEREREBELEME
RN ANERE  EhmelEEER
AT TE S - APRK S B B 75 R
o RPN R T BT EFES M - (&
KAEREHR  RARYRBERELH
B WIERERMEESE BT T
B AEREREESFSEBE A ERK
BIRTIR T » IR R Ak A0 7 o U 1) 35 i 4
B BEEE TR NEERET X
DB o

AEERARIERBYSHETEE
(I TCFD J) 12 58 #4500 1R 2 {42 AR LB A6
B TRBIRMAN - HAE 5 A
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RIR - dEREREE

o Strategies

We have incorporated responses to climate change into
our corporate strategic planning and future development,

and we have taken into account risks, actual and potential
impacts and future opportunities, and carried out

countermeasures.

Risks

Risk
Bk

Physical Risks
BERE

Acute Risks: Extreme Weather
and Natural Disasters

SHEK  EHRERA
BRE

Chronic Risks: Drought and
Rising Sea Levels

REER - LR REYE LT

Analysis
2

In the short term, extreme weather and
natural disasters such as heavy rainfall,
persistent heat, floods and typhoons can
affect the Group's physical offices in several
locations around the world, especially the
areas near the coast where heavy rainfall is
frequent. It will affect the normal operation of
the Company and harm the health and safety
of employees.

I

RERN - 8RR BERA HEKRERE
BmRARNERANLERFEEEE DI
EAZERMHEERA YN LEEED
BERBERAMBENRE - iH%%ﬁ%E

BiEE FARBEEINRRER

P
58

1

=

°

In the long term, chronic risks such as
drought and rising sea levels triggered by
climate change will also affect the regions
where the Group operates, and may affect
the sustainable development of its business
and damage the regional financial stability.

RHA - [EECHERHTE - ﬁﬁ@
tASERHEERBROEYETEEE
HETEE - iT%%iﬂiﬁmﬁﬁﬁ
BREZHRSMSTE -
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Countermeasures

HEK

. Create a series of preventive and
protective measures, such as

“Mechanism for Identification and
Management of Environmental
Factors”, “Mechanism for Management
of Risks and Opportunities”,
and “"Emergency Management

Mechanism”;
o Provide heat protection subsidies;
J Flexibly arrange to work from home

J HIE— RV A RRERE - W3R
RERH R R R [RER Rt B
EEE (B R

. By Ul

. BELRHERMR

J Formulate the capital management
strategy with the primary goal of
safeguarding sustainable operations,
and adjust the capital structure by
considering changes in economic
conditions and related risks of the
underlying assets;

J Make good use of innovative financial
instruments.

. HRAREHECLEREZARNE

TERRE  ERLERNE DR
%ﬁ?ﬂ D ERUAABERERE
e EZREIWERIE-
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Risk
Bk

Transition Risks

BRHEE

Policies and Regulations on
"Carbon Peaking and
Carbon Neutrality”

[S£8% | HEBEOER

Technical Transformation

ifrEn

Market Preference

MGl i

R

Analysis

o

In order to participate in the global mitigation
against climate change, China has announced
an ambitious “carbon peaking and carbon
neutrality” goal, which will gradually promote
the transition of China’s energy structure and
require companies to conduct “low carbon”
operations. Companies that fail to follow
national and local laws and regulations or
formulate appropriate sustainability measures
may face significant operational pressures and
costs.

RBEIHEHRBKERER  FEQM
TERREHONER] AR BBE
HHEETERRERELER YEKRDE
XFRRIERIES - CEWRREREILE
SRR B MR AR 0 bA R K B8 ) E AR B 9
ARBEERER ABEREANELE
PIEE N

If the Group, as a TIC service provider, fails to
shift to green technologies and low-carbon
products and services, it will consume more
energy and resources and lose part of the
market.

ER—KTCITERB AR - MREE R
B3 () 5 AME B A A7 & Bl AR IR
B REE L RgEmE L RERLE
TR A BRBO TS -

As more and more people embrace the
concept of environmental protection, the
market has a growing demand for low-
carbon and ecofriendly offerings, prefers
green technologies and green products, and
tends to pay high premiums for products
of companies with outstanding ESG
performance.

BERRELSREZAZMER  H5T
ERBRRFJRAEER HEE EMNER
REERMAGEER TRRRE 14§
REBRARENDAIERI N EREHE -

B HERERERE

Countermeasures

HE

o Take "ESG development strategy”
as the core development direction
of "2+X", development strategy,
increase investment in clean energy,
environmental protection and climate
change business segments, and
cultivate new profit growth points;

o Bolster technical innovation capability
and expand the talent pool related to
new business;

o Strengthen sustainable development
governance and cultivate new profit
growth points

. 1 TESG# R A B |E R [ 24X ) BiBE 1%
DERFM EINERER  RER
ERREECEBRIRRA - HEH
BRI R E

o ENHMEBRBAL G REREM
Bll%TEE
o IMERRERRER - HERTIRE

HEREBREY -
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Opportunities

While meeting new challenges in the context of climate
change, we should also seize new opportunities. Energy
transition, the development of renewable energy and
low-carbon technologies, as well as the change in market
and customer demand, awareness and behavior of green
consumption provide us with the possibility to expand
new business and open up diversified development
directions. In addition, relevant policies and regulations
at home and abroad will also bring higher requirements
for the green and low-carbon transition of enterprises,
and the consequent growth in demand for carbon asset
management and low-carbon products and services will
bring us a continuous expansion of business scale. The
Group will keep up with cutting-edge technologies, attract
outstanding talents, continuously optimize services and
work with customers and business partners to deal with
climate change, thereby improving service capabilities
related to carbon neutrality.

In addition, as growing investors and consumers attach
significance to ESG issues such as global climate change,
sustainable development and equality and inclusion,
the pioneering enterprises with strategic vision will gain
more investors and consumers. In the long run, further
improvement of ESG and brand performance will bring
more economic growth and additional environmental and
social benefits for mutual prosperity.
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o Risk Management

The Group proactively identifies and manages potential
climate change risks and opportunities through routine
procedures, incorporates the prevention and management
of climate change and other related environmental issues
into daily management and operation. Furthermore, the
Group also continues to conduct risk assessment and
formulate strategies accordingly to limit potential risks.

Analysis of Actual

Risk Identification and Potential

» Risk Assessment .
[R B

Impact of Risks

[ BB 78 TR\ B
BHETE
o Indicators and targets

In order to actively address the challenges of climate
change and facilitate sustainable development, the Group
has developed a series of targets and measures.

Items Targets
HE BE

Environmental
Management

To improve environmental management,
continuously monitor the Group’s
performance in carbon emissions, and
assess climate change risks in a timely
manner.

o To continuously provide services and

products for sustainability.

o To enhance employees’ green
development awareness and capabilities.

i
i
I
]

RITRBE KT - 155888 & B AR
BT ERRR - REFEREREZED
[z o

s RERHUBEZRAIMBEEER -

o WRBIAKEIERITENBAMET -

[ B i
STETBE R R IR B L RS
AEBEBOTEFEHETR
AAMER Ui RIREREAM
HERERERREENER
ARFRERREZ YHERR
[ B R A - 16 SE AR 2R K DA PR (K
BERR -

Development of

Strategies and
. Countermeasures

7 AH FE SR A B

eIt it
EERBE

REGREY SRR S BN
ARERR KEET — X7
BRI o

Progress in 2022
2022 FEE

In progress

Monitored the Group’s performance
on carbon emissions and evaluated
the risks of climate change;
Implemented the “ESG development
strategy”, conducted the consulting
services on voluntary carbon
emission reduction project, and solar
energy utilization inspection and
testing;

Provided trainings on carbon
emission reduction.

#EITH

BESRI S BIEfRBER S B RIE
W FH G R R R
BITIESGEEER]  HERARE
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Items
HA

Emissions

23287

Climate Change

RIRZ

Energy

Water

KEIR

Targets

BE

To improve vehicle purchase standards
and use efficiency, reduce the number
of vehicles, ensure that 100% of air
pollutants meet the standards, and
constantly reduce the emission intensity.

RAEWMRBEERGARE R E
WMBE RERKR)TRYI00%TAE
% PETREBE IR E

To reduce the intensity of greenhouse
gas emissions (Scope 1 and 2) by 30% by
2030. (compared with 2020)

E2030F - BREREE (BE1-2) HEWR
B EI1K30% ° (JA20204F BEAEF)

To reduce energy intensity by 30% by
2030 and increase the proportion of
renewable electricity. (compared with
2020)

220304 - BEFERE [E1E30% @ BT+
AIAAEENEREH - (PA2020F R 5
HEF)

To reduce water use intensity by 30% by
2030 (compared with 2020)

F20304F + FA/K58E FE{K30% (BA2020
FAHERERF)
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Progress in 2022
2022 FEE

In progress
° 100% of air pollutants met the

standards, and the emission intensity
declined by 7.83% compared with

2021.

#EITH

o REITHEWI00% T ARAE - R
GREE2021 F T [£7.83% °

In progress

o Reduced the emission intensity of

greenhouse gases (Scope 1 and 2)
by 13.02%. (compared with 2020)
HEITH

. HERE (BE - 2) AR ER
1K 13.02% ° (LA2020 4F B E L)

In progress

o Reduced the energy intensity by
10.28%. (compared with 2020)
#ITH

. BERE R E[£1510.28% ° (142020
FREEF)

In progress

o Reduced the water use intensity by
9.91%. (compared with 2020)
#ITH

. /K38 Z £ 1£9.91% ° (LA20204F
AR
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Items
HE

Waste

INSIST ON PEOPLE ORIENTATION 3

China Leon always adheres to the “people-oriented” principle as the
core concept of human resource management, attaching importance
to the rights and interests, welfare benefits and personal development
of employees. The Group has established systematic employment
regulations, remuneration and welfare system, and vocational training
and health care system to create and maintain an equal, diverse, safe
and dynamic workplace, which integrates the employee and company
development to advance both parties.

3.1 Equality and Diversity

3.1.1 Equal Employment

Targets

To properly dispose of 100% hazardous
waste, and continuously reduce the
intensity of hazardous waste discharged;
to reduce the intensity of non-hazardous
waste discharged by 30% by 2030, and
ensure that the waste is properly recycled
and disposed of (compared with 2020).

100% B EEEMAEERIE - TH K
EEEEWMPERAE - 5]2030F - BF
5 ZE W HE o8 E R K 30% - FRIREE Y
WEBEWHERIE - (ML2020F BE%
F)

3.1

China Leon adheres to the principle of equal employment,

and strives to create a fair and impartial working

environment by fighting against all discrimination based

on gender, age, sexual orientation, marital status, physical

condition, religious beliefs and cultural background, and so

on.

Progress in 2022
2022FEE

In progress

. Properly disposed of 100% of
hazardous wastes, and reduced
the intensity of hazardous wastes
discharged by 11.58% compared
with 2021; reduced the intensity of
non-hazardous wastes discharged
by 4.72%, and achieved the proper
recycling and disposal (compared
with 2020)

#ITH

. 100% EEEENEAERE B
EEEM PR E 2021 FRE
11.58% : B EFEE Y BE MR E R
£4.72%  BEW A BB YEE
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3.1.2

The Group provides employment opportunities for people
with physical and mental disabilities and endeavors to
facilitate them in the workplace. For example, we provide
computer accessories or adaptive equipment, optical
amplifiers, hearing and assistive devices, braille products
and other assistive devices to support their operations.
Where necessary, we also make adjustments to the
workplace, such as installing handrails and providing
barrier-free access, ramps and elevators, in an effort to
eliminate barriers in the workplace.

Furthermore, the Group has also developed employment
management systems and policies based on its own
situation, such as Recruitment Management System
and Employee Manual, to ensure the compliance and
transparency of the recruitment and employment process
and avoid any bias whenever possible.

Upholding the principles of “open recruitment, fair
competition and merit-based hiring”, the Group adopts
the strict internal recruitment review and supervision
procedures to verify candidates’ information and eliminate
risks such as child labor and illegal employment. If
any violation is identified, we will immediately initiate
investigation procedures and conduct follow-up measures
accordingly. The Group adheres to the principle of equality,
voluntariness and consensus in signing labor contracts with
employees, which clearly state job responsibilities, working
hours, wages, holidays and benefits and other conditions
of employment. The Group prohibits any form of forced
labor.

Remuneration and Incentives

The Group has established a sound remuneration system
with the principle of “distribution according to workload
and performance”, which recognizes the contribution of
employees to the Company and takes into account the
differences between positions. The Group evaluates and
determines the performance of all employees every year
and makes salary adjustments and job promotions based
on each employee’s capability and performance, so that
employees receive reasonable remuneration and ensure
that the Group'’s salary level is competitive in the talent
market. Employees with poor appraisal results are demoted
or transferred to other positions. If they still fail to reach the
standards, the Group will negotiate with them to terminate
their labor contract and pay compensation according to the
law.

110 China Leon Inspection Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2022

3.1.2

SERABHUEHRMNALTRHE
e YRNEIEREDR
HEEHEEA - flan - HAREEE
HHEMFSCERRE  LBERAK
HE BORBHRE BEXE
mEBPREITEER - LE
By PSS B TR S P 1T 3
BT RHRT REEERES
BWBRERE BHEEKT
eSS R R HEHE

o EEBEE B FBRGIE
TR ERE RS R EECR
IR ERHIEXETFME
RE R R EERIZA RS E
BRE URAREBRRETRN
BRITR -

KEATAFARE AFHF 2
BEAIREE  BBBERNHAE
PERENEERERF RERE
EFEBEAER  HREMET 3
EREERR  FERRERBR
BPH LR B A EREF LR
RBHEEER EERAFTER
B A — B RANFE LA
MEBBER - ERA RHERR
BAUBRE THEER T8 &
3 R A DA B B it (8 1R AR 1 - 4R
EZEIFSRIAFISR TS5 E) o

o)
AEBEERRB VB RANETL
TEENHFHER HEITZN
RAMBBTUAEE LEES
BURWEZELE SEEFYHE
BETEHETERERETE &
REMETINIIFa BERE
CHRAHFRBLE LB TE
BEERE BREBNHHX
FEAATEHEE—EHFEN -
HREZERIENHNEL BT
R XEEEE  SHRESR
SEKRE THEMERESBHER
WHEXNEEER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERME

3.1.3

In addition, in order to further improve the governance
structure and long-term incentive mechanism, attract high-
quality talents and achieve the common development of
the Company and employees, the Group implements the
share option incentive schemes and fully enhance the
motivation, dedication and commitment of the Company’s
senior and middle management, core technicians and key
business staff, enabling them to realize their full potential
and creating long-term value for our stakeholders.

Employee Composition

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 2,528
full-time employees. The workforce by gender, age
group, employment type and geographical region and the
respective turnover rate is illustrated as follows.

IS

RE-—FTERBREHE

BHNRMABES  BolmxE
AA - BRAFEE THHRK
R SEETREMRBE A
AOBBARATEEEREASR -
ZO Rt N B MEB S BHNREE
- BEERMESRE FETLR

=

DEREBBAFGEN EMB/EKH
mAEERERERE-

313 BEI#E®K

P20229F 128318 KEEE
BEHX2528%ET HAZE-
BHER - FEER - BEEENR
WEBNBESSMNES AS UK

Employee Distribution

HEEERKEZMWT -

EELH
Gender Age Type of Employment Geographical Location
451 Fie EREER EFDH
The General Greater
Male Female <30 30-50 >50 Management Staff China Overseas
B Zit EEE EEEE APERE =33
1,790 738 971 1,470 87 247 2,281 2,101 427
70.81% 29.19% 38.41% 58.15% 3.44% 9.77% 90.23% 83.11% 16.89%
Employee Turnover Rate
BERLE
Gender Age Geographical Location
Bl i EBH DA
Greater
Male Female <30 30-50 >50 China Overseas Total
E2R: 3 brg 3 R EHE o et
22.28% 18.18% 26.16% 17.97% 11.22% 22.24% 15.11% 21.12%
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3.1.4 Labour Compliance 3.1.4 ZEER

In terms of employment and labour practices, the Group
strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations which
were promulgated by the governments of the countries
or regions where the Group operates or which have a
significant impact on the Group’s business, including but
not limited to the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of
China, and the Employment Act in Singapore and Central
Provident Fund Act in Singapore, Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), and all other applicable
laws and regulations. The Group prohibits any non-
compliance issues related to employment and labour
practices. During the Reporting Period, there was no
occurrence of child labour and forced labour.

3.2 Health and Well-being

3.2.1 Occupational Health and Safety

In order to ensure the occupational health and safety of
employees at home and abroad, we have established
a standardized health and safety management process
to actively enhance safety and health management and
safeguard health and safety of employees through diverse
initiatives such as ISO 45001 Occupational Health and
Safety Management System certification, standardised
operation process, regular safety inspection for on-
site work, safety training and regular health checkups.
Furthermore, we strive to minimize the risk of occupational
diseases through systematic and standardised prevention
procedures, thus providing a safe working environment
where employees can devote themselves to the work.

In order to ensure the safety of laboratory employees,
we have formulated special training programs and safety
emergency plans. The training includes testing methods,
operating procedures, relevant chemical safety protection
and rescue knowledge. For the employees operating the
instruments, we provide special training on instrument
principles, operation and maintenance. In addition, we
carry out a series of emergency drills to continuously raise
employees’ safety awareness and their emergency response
capabilities.

112 China Leon Inspection Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2022

ERENSBITASE  ~EHE
BB T RERBAEBRR KM
BERARGLHARBEBKESL
EARFENERERIER B8
BETER(PEARENEL S
E) (P EARANBELEHER
) (R EARAMBELERE
E) ~ G st F0K) ~ G i g
RRABERIE) (REKEHD (F
BIEPIESTE) (HKETEKED)
(BHBEDIE608%)  GREIMER
Bt Bl (BB A %485
B) R AEMBERARERESR -
£ B AR 25 3R AE ] B (R (R 0 &5

TREBENERRBE KBS H
AR T METMHLEIBR o

3.2 REEB
321 BEREHRZ S

BHEREANE TNBERELR
2 HEKMEYTEELHEREN
LZE2EIRRIE - #@iBISO 4500173
FHBERFLEEEER £
EWMBRERE THRSEIER
2RE Z2E - THREE
REZTRE BEREALZS
BEREREKTY HEETRRE
2o lbih BMBRAEILR
gt - RECHTEHRFE B
BERRBRRZERE BEIR
HEH2HFLERITENLET
{EIRIE o

REREBREIABENET S
IR BE T FFT RO FIE &3
EREESIER - HIDRERA
TE CBRERF BBLELE
MERMENRELZEIE - &
RETEIBENET - Hfis
FEeRRE BENEESTER
BTRHEFBEEI - U A
ERBFAR R EORE NS
BiRm B IMRZ2EH  BAHR
ERBREERESN -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Meanwhile, in terms of preventing risks arising from work,
the Group has also formulated a number of measures
to actively evaluate occupational risk factors that affect
employees’ health and safety, significant causes of harm
and all activities related to them. The Group formulates
prevention procedures and management measures
according to the assessment results. For example, eye-
catching occupational hazard warning signs are set up in
the working posts with potentially serious occupational
hazards; worker are informed of the types, dangers,
prevention and emergency management measures for
occupational hazards; occupational health examination
are provided for the employees in occupational-disease-
inductive posts; regular inspection of places with
occupational-disease-inductive factor are performed; dust
collectors and noise reduction equipment are installed in
relevant workplaces; safety helmets, masks, protective
clothing, gloves and other protective products are provided
for employees at relevant posts to reduce potential risks
arising from sampling and testing.

In terms of occupational health and safety, the Group
strictly abides by applicable laws and regulations issued
by the governments of the countries or regions where the
Group operates and which have a significant impact on
the business of the Group, including but not limited to
the Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases and Emergency
Management Plan for Production Safety Accidents,
the Workplace Safety and Health Act in Singapore,
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), and all other applicable laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not have any non-compliance issues or complaints related
to occupational health and safety.
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Key Performance in Occupational Health and Safety

BERERET2HEREN
2022
2022
Unit Male Female
Category Al By Bt kg3
Fatality rate of work-related ~ T{EEMH T X % 0 0
accidents
Lost days due to work-related A T{ZEATIEBE  Days 0 0
injury X

2021 2020
20215 2020 F
Male Female Male Female
Bt peg i3 B feg i3
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
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3.2.2 Welfare and Care 3.2.2 FAHEEE

The Group has established a comprehensive welfare
system. For employees in formal labour relationships,
we provide pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, maternity insurance, work
injury insurance and housing fund where appropriate.
Accommodation and related allowance, night-shift
allowance, annual medical examination, labour insurance
and other benefits are provided for employees in certain
job positions. At the same time, the Group also guarantees
that employees’ working hours are in line with relevant
laws and regulations, and that they are entitled to sick
leave, casual leave, wedding leave, bereavement leave,
work injury leave, annual leave and statutory holidays when
appropriate.

Furthermore, the Group has organized and conducted
activities and other measures to build the good relationship
between the employer and employees and enhance
communication among employees, including but not
limited to:

o Conduct various cultural and sports activities such as
year-end celebrations, artistic performances, sports
competitions and team-building activities;

. Provide benefits and gifts for employees on holidays,
birthdays, Women's Day and other holidays, and give
children’s gifts to employees’ children aged below 12
on Children’s Day;

° Provide open access for employees to professional
sports venues and fitness equipment for long hours,
and offer recreational facilities and equipment for
employees;

o Organize regular interviews with employees to learn
about their current situation;

o Organize donations to employees in need.

114 China Leon Inspection Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2022

SERLT2HANBENGE -
BHASEAEEASHEENRT
HEEMERNBATEMEZ
Rz BERRE KERR &
Bl ITHRR  EEAESD -
WiIRHREHAEAER  RIDE
MoFEER RAMUARRK
MBTRES TRBEEERER -
RE - £EHREER TH TIEH
BRNAMEBEARERER Tk
BENERONBEATEERR
ERBER BRIER - FR
FOETEE R A EREBIER o

BEoN  RR BEE T MR R
WEBETRMER SEASY
MET —RIESHREMER
BREETRR

o BRFKREM XEFEH-
BEUBESZETEANRE
EH - URFARETIHRE
R

e HEHRH -BI4AH WX
EEEARE TIRMHENHE
By EREEH/I2ZEAT
BT FRERZEHRY

o  RHMREX(LEDSM -

e @S - BB TR
IRGETR AR TR

e  TEHABEIMAATEHE
LR

o REEBIEBBN-



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

3.3 Training and Development

The cultivation and reserve of talents are the driving force for the
Group to continuously achieve business breakthroughs and profit
growth. We expect our employees to achieve their goals in their
career path while meeting business needs. Therefore, we make
full use of our international experience and characteristics, build
a systematic training system for employees, provide abundant
talent development resources and a broad promotion platform,
support employees to explore their potential for achieving
progress and growth, and strive to achieve a win-win situation
through training to help business and employees’ development.

We advocate diversified training programs, including cross-
post examination, job rotation for core workforce and mentor-
apprentice training. The main training courses cover functional
management, professional skills, project skills, comprehensive
quality, management systems, and fire and chemicals safety.
Furthermore, we also organize vocational skill test, evaluate
the vocational skills of employees through examinations and
appraisals, and provide the qualified employees with vocational
skill level certificates.

In addition, in order to retain talents, the Group has established
a sound career promotion system to encourage employees
to raise their business and comprehensive skills. Employees
are encouraged to choose a career development path in line
with their own strengths based on their personal interests and
expertise.
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RIR - dEREREE

During the Reporting Period, the Group provided a total of
approximately 14,297 hours of training activities for employees,
covering leadership, customer relationship management, project
management, financial reporting, anti-corruption, corporate
culture, production safety, early warning about accidents due
to poor quality, maintenance of laboratory sample making

REEA  SE*AEBREL14,297
NEFEYIEBINEED - /@%Tvﬁ-&,ﬁ\%}f
Eﬁ%gi@ HEER MBHRE RE
5 m%ﬂbﬁ;i%“ﬁéﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ
CBRERAZEZENRE BB
EERRA - HERER ﬁrﬂhfu—r

\_-KH-

uuﬁ 4

equipment, laboratory accreditation, local laws and regulations, ZHEASR °
carbon neutrality, etc.
Key Performance in Training
EAIBA R AR

Average
Training
Number of Training Hours for
Employees Percentage Hours of Employees
Trained of Employees Employees (Hours/
(Person) Trained (%) (h) Person)
F 153
FINBET BFIBET FIBET BI/NKE
Category Rl HE(A) B2 (%) AN ) (/N N)
Male S 1,173 65.53% 8,911 5.0
Female pegis 428 57.99% 5,386 7.2
The Management EIEE 208 84.21% 1,505 6.1
General Staff TRE T 1,393 61.07% 12,792 5.6
Total e 1,601 63.33% 14,297 5.7

4 CO-CREATE BUSINESS VALUE 4 HABXEE

Following the mission of “advocating integrity and justice, realizing
impartiality and justice, achieving quality future”, we have been
rigorously self-disciplined in the overall operation, and consistently
insist on customer responsibility and provide services with the highest
technical level and standards. Besides, we are committed to working
with suppliers that share similar values with us to fulfill corporate social
responsibility, achieve sustainable development while creating a win-
win business environment.
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4.1 Strict Compliance with Professional Quality 41 BTEXEE
4.1.1 Quality Management 411 HEEER®E

A sound and robust quality management system is
fundamental to an enterprise’s sustainable competitiveness.
The Group consistently refines its quality management,
so as to drive sustainable improvements in products and
services and build stronger customer trust.

The Group has established a systematic quality
management system on the basis of which quality manuals,
procedure documents, management and technical rules
and record forms have been compiled to standardize
service processes and ensure stable product quality, while
making necessary revisions and updates in line with
business development needs. Through quality management
procedures, the Group ensures that all laboratories strictly
follow the applicable laws and regulations as well as the
guidelines and rules of accreditation bodies for the testing
activities, and made sure each part of the testing and
inspection process to be authentic and traceable. (See 4.1.3
“Standard Operation” for details)

Besides, the Group is also strict with the qualification of
its professional staff. Quality specialists are required to
meet high standards in terms of qualifications, professional
competence, ethics and integrity, and receive regular
training and assessment.

Since the product recall procedures are not applicable to
the Group's business, no relevant disclosure is made.
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FRAlEBRRENESERANE
FEMATEBIE - (FFEFER4.13
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4.1.2 Quality Assurance 4.1.2 RERE

The Group has a first-class quality management system
certified both domestically and internationally, with
the professional competence recognized by credible
international institutions. We always maintain an attitude
of excellence to maximize the assurance of achieving
unified processes and desired results across our operating
locations.

Quality accreditation for operations and laboratories in the
PRC

The PRC operations of the Group have been certified,
in terms of quality, by the China National Accreditation
Service for Conformity Assessment in China, including
the Laboratory Accreditation Certificate, Testing Institute
Accreditation Certificate, as well as certificate of 1ISO 9001
Quality Management System, Member Certificate of
China Association for Instrumental Analysis and Member
Certificate of China Inspection and Testing Innovation
Consortium. Meanwhile, the Groups is recognized as
a Member of Chinese Certification and Accreditation
Association, Quality and Credit Enterprise AAA, Member
of Vice Director of Professional Committee of Coal Industry
of China Association for Quality Inspection, Contract
Abiding and Trustworthy Enterprise, Full Member of
TIC Council, Member of China Entry-Exit Inspection and
Quarantine Association, etc., indicating that our service
quality is assured and that we respond to the needs of all
stakeholders in society. During the Reporting Period, the
Group was designated by the Shanghai Futures Exchange
as a quality supervision and inspection agency.

118  China Leon Inspection Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2022

BREZ UEESZEEA - BB
LERE FXRENESEHRRE
B R R o WIMTB LRI
aRBENEE TAREREE
BEEES MR —NEREE
R e

PEE SR ERENE ERE

SEMNTFRERESTHPEAH
AR ERRRAAUZESHEN
ZIEEERF  REIERERY
BEIMMRAKERATES] -
RIBFES T1SO 9001 B EEIE S
XEE [FEAI AR BEEE
FE R B SR Bl 5 &
PREFEE] -t KEHMEST
[FERAREHETENEE] -
[EEEACEAN] - [hEEZEE
R EREXLZESRIES
REM]  [EE6RFERAEE] -
[MCEEEAKE]  [FEHE
AERRREHEe B SRETT
EMgRA - 7o R AN
EHRHEEEEREHEENE
BREaHeEARmEtg s RN
HEEMSF K AREEER
SEEELEHERSMIETE
SEERBILE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Quality accreditation for overseas operations and
laboratories

The internationalization and localization of quality systems
is crucial to the Group’s expanding overseas operation.
Our overseas subsidiaries have been certified, in terms
of quality, by a number of international institutions, so
as to better comply with local regulatory and customer
expectations and requirements. Currently, the laboratories
in Singapore have obtained the ISO 17025 Accreditation
for the laboratory and ISO 17020 Accreditation for cargo
investigation. The laboratories in India, Indonesia, Pakistan
and Malaysia have been accredited by the respective
accreditation bodies and awarded 1SO 17025:2017. Our
inspection and business operations have been granted
ISO 9001:2015 certifications by British Standards Institute
(BSI) in India and Malaysia. Furthermore, the Group has
also been awarded membership by the Grain and Feed
Trade Association (GAFTA), Federation of Qils, Seeds & Fats
Association (FOSFA) and International Cotton Association
(ICA) memberships which are internationally prominent
in the agriculture industry. National-level memberships of
Fertiliser Association of India (FAI), The Soybean Processors
Association of India (SOPA), and Solvent Extractors’
Association of India (SEA) have been awarded to the
Group, and membership of Palm Oil Refiners Association
of Malaysia (PORAM) has been awarded to the Group in
Malaysia.

RIR - dERERERE
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4.1.3 Standard Operation

The information technology management system and
automation equipment are key to standard operation. They
boost operating efficiency, reduce man-made interference
in the testing process, and thus maximize the accuracy of
results. Below is the equipment, operation procedures and

specifications we adopt:

Video monitoring throughout
the inspection process

Wi EIRIR R AR

Quality control centre

A
e

feln
i
s
|

Information system
management

EELEEER

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERRE

4.1.3 HRERE
EERMEBRGHEABLERE
TEREL - RELRIEREPD
BEETAG TEAPRES
EEME  LHEEMERBBRE
FTREREBEABEEZMNTE #&
MEARERBERERE -1
MELEEBNRGRME BER
Fr R &l

Throughout the whole inspection process, the Group has provided video
monitoring devices, such as video monitoring system, body worn cameras and
digital video cameras, to make sure inspections and tests are authentic and
traceable.

SEABBREAERERBELER BEACBENEBYREGHIRAE
TR ARURERBSOI TENEE MM BT -

Independent of each laboratory, the quality control centre acquires field operation
pictures and information generated from work process by means of information
technology, for tracking and monitoring the inspection and testing activities at our
laboratories.

BUNBSERENEEEEDLOBBEAMEM TR  ERBSEXEER
TE@IEPEENENEN  UXERETRBROEBHETETIR M EEE -

We have developed the Leon LIMS Laboratory Information Management System
and Leon LIMS Test Information System, making information management possible
across the whole process of quality inspection. System functions cover sampling,
sample making, testing, information confidentiality in sample transmission, etc.,
which helped effectively reduce the error rate of manual calculations and increase
the efficiency and accuracy of testing.

SE#E T [Leon UMSEREEE/LEEZR LM Leon LIMS Test{5 B(L Z#T ] -
ERTEHERRNEZBEREEEIER - ZHT 8 - 5K 25 bR &
mEREERES  AHBEARTERERE AR BN TIER R ER
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R&D and application of
automatic equipment

BB R EBEVHTE KL ER

Operation standardization

TEZE2E

4.2 Customer Experience Improvement

RIR - dERERERE

The Group designed and developed the Robot LEON-SIASUN IPS-3600 Automatic
Sample Making System together with a professional institute. The system can
replace manual sample making, reduce man-made interference in inspection, and
effectively improve sample preparation efficiency and operation automation.
LEME R E A KRR WHE T [LEON-SIASUN IPS-3600#28 A B Bh &K R
il  ZEFADMKRAIEE BREAREARERBRIEROTE  BRURH
BB E BRI B B KF -

Building on our practices and management experiences in the inspection and
testing services over the years and with reference to the national standards, we
have set 39 corporate standards to standardize the processes of inspection.
SERBZFERBRAEFRPEENEBNERLH  ERKEFERER -
HIRE T 39 EZRLE - PERASE R TENRE(KTFRMRZRBIE -

42 BAEF®ER

Being customer-centric, the Group highlights customer value and
rights. It has put in place a complete and efficient communication
and feedback mechanism, to learn better about customer
demand and suggestions, protect customer rights and improve
customer experience.

With respect to health and safety, advertising and privacy
issues related to the services provided, we comply with the
applicable laws and regulations which were promulgated by
the governments in the countries or regions where the Group
operates that have a significant impact on our operations,
including but not limited to the Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Personal Information Protection Law, Singapore Code of
Advertising Practice, Trade Marks Act of Singapore, as well as all
other applicable laws and regulations.
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4.2.1 Customer Complaints

Based on the relevant international/national standards, the
Group has established a systematic customer complaint
management mechanism to constantly improve customer
services. By defining the method and time for each step
in the response to customer complaints, the mechanism
makes sure remedial measures are taken at the earliest
possible time, so as to minimize customer loss and deliver
sound customer experience.

Issues raised in complaints are monitored and reviewed to
avoid reoccurrence of the same issues. Furthermore, the
Group evaluates on an annual basis whether its complaint
handling and feedback mechanism is effective in terms of
the timelines of responses and satisfaction of return visits.
The Group did not receive any major complaints during the

Reporting Period.
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4.2.2

4.2.3

Customer Satisfaction

We provide each customer with honest, sincere and
warm service. Customer satisfaction is what we always
pursue. The Group has established a communication
mechanism integrating various channels (such as customer
service hotline and email) to collect customer feedback
and opinions, and select and invite a number of major
customers (e.g., classified by earnings) and customers who
have filed complaints each year for conducting customer
satisfaction survey and preparing customer satisfaction
analysis report, so as to continuously improve service
quality.

Data Security and Protection

Information security is key to corporate management. To
secure the privacy and security of customer information,
the Group has established a dedicated information security
management team to comprehensively plan for data
security and privacy matters to meet the increasing needs
for data security on a timely basis. Every year, we carry out
risk assessment on information security to identify new
threats and risks associated with information security in a
timely manner, continuously step up data protection, and
ensure that the Group can allocate adequate resources and
respond effectively in respect to its information security
management system.
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The Group has implemented the following measures to
ensure the privacy and protection of customer data:

Application of security
protection devices

ERZERERE

Prevention and detection of
unauthorized authority

B REERERENER

Establishment of business
continuity and disaster
recovery plan

Ve IS DY
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Training and ethical requirement

of employees

B EMEIIFERENR
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EEFHENBALNRE -
EEEEN T ATEE:

Firewall and anti-virus software are installed and updated in a timely manner to
prevent data leaks as a result of hacker attacks. Meanwhile, all sensitive personal
and confidential data of customers are encrypted according to defined procedures.
ZRMEE B AR R RS 0 E SRR mERE BRSNS
R - %5 BT A BURE A R % BUR A IR B8 B R 1T N o

Access rights to systems (including the rights to create, revise, delete and view) are
assigned in line with the roles, duties and positions of employees. Besides, regular
checks on unauthorized access and log-in are conducted by our information
security management team to avoid data leaks.

*E’JJ%EI&!@ BB RBAD RS A (AR - &k MR RS
ge) o kA FRXEEBREB T HRERERENERREA - [ILBURRE -

Our contingency plans are clearly defined for certain security breach incidents (such
as cyber attacks) and relevant roles and responsibilities are specified. Moreover,
relevant data are backed up to independent auxiliary storage devices for the
recovery of data and applications to minimize the impact of unexpected incidents.
PRATHE TREEN(NEENE) WEERESTE  RTHBAERE
o R SEEERSEEHENEBIHDNHBTRE - AREENER
BIFOEE  SAEREREREFTHMEKNHZE -

Relevant personnel are trained and required to strictly abide by the Group’s data
security policy and to assure that they handle customer data with a high level of
ethics and integrity.
E@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\éﬁaﬁ@ Foll - EREAR E T
BERHEEEREETPER -

SEYBLEHE URESBE
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4.2.4 Intellectual Property Rights 424 ANBERE

We strictly abide by laws and regulations including
the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China and
Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China. We
have formulated a full set of management rules and
policies on intellectual property protection. We carefully
review the authenticity of the information conveyed in
our promotional activities to avoid any false or misleading
information that may have negative influence on the final
decision of customers.

We view intellectual property rights as the key to
sharpening corporate competitiveness and increasing the
added value of services. The Group has actively applied
for and obtained patents and trademarks for inventions
and utility models in sampling, inspection and information
management practices.

Meanwhile, the Group keeps a close eye on the news and
updates on intellectual property rights registered by peers,
to better prepare contracts, agreements and other external
documents and avoid any infringements.

As at the end of 2022, the Group had a total of 110
scientific researchers, 6 national invention patents with 10
others pending approval, 32 utility patents with 3 others
pending approval, and 43 software copyrights.
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4.3 Achieving Win-Win Cooperation

We expect to create sustainable business values in collaboration
with suppliers, and work to build a resilient sustainable supply
chain through supplier access, communication and evaluation.

Based on domestic and international regulations and agreements
as well as its internal standards and values, the Group has
formulated a set of systematic supplier access principles
and standards at the stage of supplier access, including the
requirements on human rights, environmental protection, health
and safety, and business ethics. Supplier access is subject to an
independent approval procedure based on the corporate social
responsibility-related certificates submitted by them. Finally,
companies or institutions that are certified for relevant quality
systems, obtained relevant production permits, environmental-
friendly and willing to take up social responsibility will be
given priority to be selected as suppliers of the Group. The list
of suppliers is strictly reviewed and approved by the Group’s
management based on the results of evaluation and on-site visits.
Through this process, we'll make sure our partners share similar
values with us, and encourage and support the supply chain
to provide environmental-friendly products and services and
empower sustainable business together.

4.3
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Number of

suppliers

Category 5l HEFHE
Greater China aGEE=37 ] 1,692
Overseas NSEA 825
Total Rk 2,517

Furthermore, the Group monitors its suppliers through a
comprehensive supplier management system to identify
environmental and social risks in a timely manner. Leveraging
the supplier management system and toolkits such as supplier
accounts and qualified supplier evaluation forms, we closely
monitor suppliers’ ESG performance to ensure their compliance
with relevant regulations, regularly communicate with suppliers
on major safety and environmental issues, and continuously assess
their performance. The Group makes reference to suppliers’ self-
declarations and information disclosed by government agencies,
etc. to further identify if suppliers had any violations or confirm
if government agencies had imposed any penalties on suppliers.
For any identified cases, the Group will cease cooperation
until effective improvement and remedial measures have been
taken by the supplier concerned. The Group applied the above
measures to all major suppliers during the Reporting Period.

126 China Leon Inspection Holding Limited ~Annual Report 2022

o RERBTHNHEREEER
HUEEERES  UREHERIRERN
HERRERR - LfPRBHEREER
EUAREEEGR AR EEAFESR
ETAG BYSAHEEMNERE 4
ehEARE  BRHUENYZEERES
M UEHEHERREANL 2
RRVEZELETER HEFHHE
BRI - AR SE2EHEHEHE
A BAREBREERS & —FE5
HEDBELETMERETERERRATH
BELHHERGEMNEMBES - HRE
AEEANER EEBELAE B
=R B REE RECE MRS
ABEHERN - SEHMETEMHER
BEE A EHEBEHBE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

4.4 Adherence to Integrity and Compliance

4.4.1

4.4.2

Business Ethics

The Group holds a strong belief in the core values of
confidentiality, integrity, independence, impartiality and
trust, and pursues a corporate culture guided by high-
standard business morality.

The Group has stringent policies against bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering. Our business partners
strictly follow the code of business conduct and ethics
agreement in deals. The top management is committed to
avoiding any conflict of interests and maintaining integrity
throughout corporate operations. The Group advocates
for integrity and ethics and requires all employees to
enshrine the principle of fairness and impartiality, which
is fundamental to the Group’s business and helps build
trustworthy relationship with our customers, business
partners and other stakeholders.

The Group has established reporting channels and
investigation procedures to encourage employees to
identify and report misconducts and potential improprieties.
The Group undertakes to keep strictly confidential whistle-
blowers’ identities and handle all reported cases seriously
by following relevant procedures with proper records
maintained. Feedback on the result will be given to the
whistle-blower upon completion of investigation, followed
by remedial actions as required.

Compliance and Anti-corruption

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations in the
places where it operates, domestic and foreign standards
as well as compliance audit standards, the Group keeps
strengthening its compliance management requirements
and system, clarifies the compliance rules in various
areas, and ensures compliance management is effectively
implemented. All employees have received training as
specified in the employee manual and proactively taken
part in our integrity education and training sessions that
cover interpretation of integrity, laws and regulations,
actions and methodology. Titles such as Outstanding Units
Against Corruption and Temptation and Outstanding
Individuals Against Corruption and Temptation are
awarded to our employees to continuously improve their
awareness of compliance.
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During the Reporting Period, integrity, anti-corruption and
conflict of interest related training sessions amounting to
2,882 hours were provided to directors and employees of
the Group with 3,422 attendances.

The Group strictly abides by all the relevant laws and
regulations on bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering in the places where it operates, including but
not limited to the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Prevention of Corruption Act of Singapore,
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), and all other applicable laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
have any concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
filed against the Group or its directors or employees.

CONTRIBUTE TO SOCIETY

With a consistent focus on improvements of social environment and
education, the Group works to contribute its share to the society.

The Group launched the Lei Feng Day activity themed “Carrying
forward Spirit of Lei Feng and Building a Harmonious Leon” in March
2022. During the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group organized employees
to assist in nucleic acid testing in communities while ensuring their own
safety. Also, it carried out volunteer activities themed “Beach Cleaning”
and “Building a Better Community Together”, etc., attracting over 60
participants.

With respect to education, the Party Branch of the Group renewed
the agreement on paired assistance with one household in extreme
poverty in Longfenggou Village, Lindong Town, Balinzuo Banner, Inner
Mongolia in June 2022, according to which the Group would continue
funding the education for the child. In 2022, the Group assisted
four families to support their children in schools, with financial aid
amounting to RMB54,800.

Other social investments included charity donation and used clothes
donations, and the Group donated a total of RMB10,000 to charity
organizations.

The Group donated money to the Singapore Island Country Club May
Day Charity for the underprivileged sectors, which include the elderly,
the infirm, those with disabilities and children with special needs in the
amount of SGD10,232 in 2022.

Going forward, China Leon will assume more social responsibility
and take real actions to honor its commitment to the society, make a
greater impact, and drive the lasting prosperity of communities while
pursuing sustainable development.
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INDEX FOR ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BERBBIFCRE 2R ER(ESG)
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE OF HONG KONG $4&158|) %3]
STOCK EXCHANGE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section

TEAR EBE - —REERBEEENEE HEZEH

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1: $BY
General Disclosure Information on: 2.1 Green and Low-carbon
(@)  the policies; and Development
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—RIRER EHERMREREHN  MARRTMNEDS BELEFEEYN 21 ZEEBREE
EEEM
@ BE: Kk
(b) EFEHBETABEATENBBERRROHER
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 2.1.1 Exhaust Gas and
Greenhouse Gas
S E BIEIR AL BERCRE A K AR R HE U 211 BERERERE
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions 2.1.1 Exhaust Gas and
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production Greenhouse Gas
volume, per facility).
HSREBIEIRAL2 B (8E) RpREE (EE2) AEREHNE ABEAE) R (E 211 BERERERE
R)ZE (NAEBESEN - FERMEHE)
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, 2.1.2 Wastes
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
HSREBIEIRAL3 PREEREEEYEE UEAE) R (ER) BE (WMABEBEN - 212 BEY
BEFRMAE) ©
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, ~ 2.1.2 Wastes
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
R AEIEIRA14 FELESEEYESE UETE) R (WER) BE (MASEESMZ - 212 BEY
FIERMEE)
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 2.1 Green and Low-carbon
Development
2.4 Climate Change Tackling
BSR4 B IRALS L PTRT LR HER S B IR R R E RS L B ATIRERE) 2 57 o 21 HEeEmER
24 EHREEL
KPI' A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, 2.1.2 Wastes
and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve 2.3 Green Operation in
them. Practice
2.4 Climate Change Tackling
BSRBEBIEIEAL6 HEEEERESEEVNE  REAFMTVARERERAE 212 BEY
S BRI TR 23 BITHREES
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section

TEER EE - —REZERERENER HEZEH

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2: &RER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and 2.2  Effective Resources
other raw materials. Utilisation
—MRIRER BRERAER(BIEEIR - KREAMRME) BBUE - 22 ARERFA
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas 2.2 Effective Resources
or oil) in total (kWh in "000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production Utilisation
volume, per facility).
BASR A E IR A2, T**E’*”?U Y EE R HEEER(NE  Reloh) BFE UATET 22 ARERIA
S E) REE (NN ESESEN  BERME) -
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production 2.2 Effective Resources
volume per facility). Utilisation
B4 FEIR A2.2 BREKERTE (WAGEEEN BERBAE) ° 22 AMERNA
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to 2.2 Effective Resources
achieve them. Utilisation
2.4 Climate Change Tackling
A AE AIEIE A2.3 HPTET LA BEIR(E AR B IR R R ES|E L B IR RERA 5% 22 BHRERMA
24 EHRREE
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for 2.2  Effective Resources
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Utilisation
2.4 Climate Change Tackling
MR BIEIRA2.4 i SKREGER KR R A EARRE - ARMTIMAKBZEERR 22 AXERFA
ERE L B R ATERER A A 5R © 24 FEHREEE
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if In view of the nature of the
applicable, with reference to per unit produced. Group's business, this KPI is not
applicable
MRS AE B IR A2.5 N mAAABEMHNAE CABE) R (WER) BEESMEE - ERAKEEKILE KR
BIEETER

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
EBHA3: RERARER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment 2.2 Effective Resources
and natural resources. Utilisation

— MR ER MEZBTAHRBERAREREXNEAT BHBER 22 ARERINA

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environmentand 2.2 Effective Resources
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them. Utilisation

BRI A IR IR A1 R EBEDEHRBEIRARNERNEATERERDEREATEN 22 ARERMNA
178
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section
TESER - EH —REBERBRAREE HESH

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related 2.4 Climate Change Tackling
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—RIKE BRI REHE SR ARG H BT AEETENSARGHEBEEENER - 24 EBHREE(L

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, 2.4  Climate Change Tackling
and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage
them.

BRE IR A4 RN AR HBETAEEY ENEARIKEMEE - REHTH - 24 EHEHRKEEL

General Disclosure Information on: 3.1  Equality and Diversity
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
antidiscrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

—REE EAFHEEE  BEREA TERE - BRE TSHe  Zxk 31 FEHEZT
JR AR DA T EL A 38 J AR A Y
(@ BX: R
(b) BFHBETABEAZENHEBEERAGINER
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part- 3.1.3 Employee Composition
time), age group and geographical region.
RERIEEB.1 RIER - BEEE (2R  FRENRNEEISHEEES - 313 EIEX
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 3.1.3 Employee Composition
BREMIERBI.2 RIER - FlcERI Rt RE D HEBIRKLLE - 3.1.3 BT
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section

TEER EE - —REZERERENER HEZEH

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EMEB2: REEZE

General Disclosure Information on: 3.2 Health and Well-being
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

— AR ER ERREZ2TERERREEEHEBEEREN 32 REERU
@ BE: K
() BEFEHBETABERZENHEBEERROAINER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past 3.2.1 Occupational Health and
three years including the reporting year. Safety

MR A R 1R B2.1 BE=F (BRERFE)BFRAITHOABR R X - 321 BERRERS

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 3.2.1 Occupational Health and

Safety

MG B IETRB2.2 HIBGEAIERS - 321 BERREZS

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and 3.2.1 Occupational Health and
how they are implemented and monitored. Safety

S E B IETRBR2.3 R PTER AN B R (BB L 2 - A RER AT RER A - 321 BERREZS

Aspect B3: Development and Training
fBMEB3 : &R RIEI

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging 3.3 Training and Development
duties at work. Description of training activities.

— MR ER ERRAEERTIEREN B RKENBER - FaEIED - 3.3 SElE#ER

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category 3.3 Training and Development
(e.g. senior management, middle management).

M4 B e B3.1 BUR L EEER(NERERE PREEEZ)ENDNZIIESER 33 HIEZERE
PaNs A

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and 3.3 Training and Development
employee category.

245 B IETRB3.2 RURIREEERE S  BRESTKIIE TR - 3.3 EilEEE
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Section
HEZHE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

ITRER EFEH —RRERBRERER

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : BT %A

General Disclosure Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

3.1.4 Labour Compliance

— R B I-E T a8 Hl 45 TH) : 314 BHER
(@ BE:k
(b) BFHBETABEAZENBBERZRBROINER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child 3.1.1 Equal Employment
and forced labour.
M5 B IETR B4 f iR E IS E DI HE AR R B T RGBS T - 311 FEERE
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Not applicable due to no violation

during the Reporting Period
MR ERIE1RR4.2 W B IRE R BN R B BB PRI 5 o RS PREEER - TE

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
FBEBS : HEHEERE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. 4.3 Achieving Win-Win
Cooperation

—RAREE B MEEHRE R R RERBUR - 43 WiERIEHR

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 4.3 Achieving Win-Win
Cooperation

MR A R 1R B5.1 i G 8l DR ERHE - 43 WEEERR

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of 4.3 Achieving Win-Win
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they are Cooperation
implemented and monitored.

M52 45 B IE1RB5.2 B RERRERNED  MERTEREMNNMERZEE - AR 43 BIFEERRE
EREDNRITRERT A -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks 4.3 Achieving Win-Win
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored. Cooperation

A 48 AR FE1R B5.3 WA ERBI R ERGNIRR R eRABROED - URBER 43 BIEEERSR
IRERETE -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable 4.3 Achieving Win-Win
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are Cooperation
implemented and monitored.

M2 4E MIE1RB5 .4 R AERE SRR RESZARRER RRBOEN - URBERT 43 BIFEERRE

RESETE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER EE - —REZERERENER

Section

HESH

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EMELE

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI B6.1

BSRAE IR B6.1

KPI B6.2

FASEAERUIE1RB6.2

KPI B6.3
RASR AR AIE137B6.3
KPI B6.4
FAS A IE1RB6.4
KPI B6.5

BSR AR B IR B6.5

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

FHMRREERNRBHNEREZ S BE RERMLEEEURE

KT ER

(@ R R

(b) BFHBETABEAZEZNHRBEERAGINER

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.

EESEEREMmARTRL2REREAMAR KN E DL

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they
are dealt with.

RN Em MRS IR R R AR BT -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.
il EEE R RENBEEERENER -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
il E SR TE BEREMBWIERF
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how

they are implemented and monitored.

HAUE B EBRMRE RFLBIR - ARMEBRTRERRE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

ITRER EFEH —RRERBRERER

wE

Section

HE

=2z s

EEBp

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BEB7: RES

General Disclosure

— R E

KPI B7.1

RS IRIR BT 1

KPI B7.2

B IE IR BT 2

KPI B7.3

AR EIERBT 3

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRAMGLEHE R  REFERARED :

@ BX: R

(b) BFHETABEAZENHRBEEZEZRBONER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERBAALHEITASIEEEREIEEENRSHFARFNEE &
FAER o

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

BT S R BRIER - ARMBBRTRERRE -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

WA EE K8 TRENREFE -

4.4

4.4

4.4.2

442

4.4.1

442

441
442

4.4.2

442

Adherence to Integrity and
Compliance

BRHEER

Compliance and Anti-
corruption

BRERES

Business Ethics
Compliance and Anti-
corruption

[EEICE
SRERES

Compliance and Anti-
corruption
SHRERES

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[BmEBS : HBHRE

General Disclosure

— R

KPI B8.1
M AE W IE1R B8

KPI B8.2
B4R 45 AIE1Z BS.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests.

FRNER2ERTREERELRFENRREXZREHEEZ B
[ 7 &5 MY BRER

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).

BEIRREE(WHE REEHE SIHFXR #F Xt BF)

o

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

EEIREMBAER (NS EHEMR) o

ul

Contribute to Society

TEROIEL

Contribute to Society
EmEELE

Contribute to Society
TEREO e
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AEN RS

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place,
979 King's Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EY=x
To the shareholders of China Leon Inspection Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Leon
Inspection Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 142 to 272, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs"”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB"”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matters

HRENER

Impairment of trade receivables

B 5 BRI B9 5 (8 FF A

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade receivables
of HK$177,950,000 before a provision for impairment of
HK$5,648,000.

202212 A31H » ESBERMEREEE5,648,0007TH 2
B 5 WA &8 % 177,950,000 7T ©

The impairment of trade receivables was recognised based on
the allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs). The management
of the Group determines the ECLs of trade receivables based
on historical information of settlement of trade receivables,
customers’ creditworthiness, and forward-looking economic
conditions, involving the use of significant judgements and
estimates.

BZRWHFBEBREDERTABREEBEABHEER - EEEE
BERBEESRUFBRBEHAEER BEPHNEEURAE
MEERAETEHRBFIRRBEEREL S REAFEKX
H B R A 5T

The accounting policies and disclosures for the impairment of
trade receivables are included in notes 2.4, 3, and 18 to the
financial statements.

H S5 RWHIEREN ST BER R BN BHmEMT24 -
318 ¢

B ZBERE

FEREETTEE®

RO BT ARRE [RGB F A F S EHEKA
FEMEE] —HEANET BREZEEEAM
BHET - HEH RANBF THEREATRE
HEF AR S B IR E AR R L R B T 3R EH RO
EiERF  BAATEARFNER  BRERET
MEIAFTATEOREF - REMGEA B RROET
BREBMHAER-

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEANESNNEERRENER

We tested the key controls of the Group relating to the credit
control, debt collection and estimation of ECLs. We checked the
ageing analysis of the trade receivables to obtain an understanding
of the movements in the ageing and the settlement pattern of the

customers.
BMAS EXBEEBEEEEH  EHWE RBBREERLM

FHEVEEIEGIE o PR EE 5 WG IR R AR ik 0 AT LAB R R
BRREPHEERAES -

For the collectively assessed ECLs, we assessed the reasonableness
of the Group’s ECL model, including inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the ECLs. We assessed the
reasonableness that historical experience was representative of
current circumstances and of the recent losses incurred in the
portfolios.

HREBTEEHREEBRLMNE HANE EXEEHREER
IEANESEMN B8 EXENGERBAEEBRXSMAN
BABBEREBR BT EELEBRRAREANEAARKER
BRRAEENBENGIEN -

We also assessed the financial statements disclosures relating to
the Group's exposure to credit risk.

BATHER SRENEERRBBENMBERREE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AEN RS

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting
process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

B ZBERE

BRBMRE RS M BRRAREN
B

BAPWER RUGAMBEHRRBEREIS N FHEH
REGFFHERMERNBEANBRREGAIERE - XL

HEBRAMBERNZHEE®E - HAEE2EK
RIFHRE - BRULAIN A EWD WA AR - K
MredzEmBENATATAEMALR X
EEEAEE -

BEREFZSKFHRE BTREREZR(ER
FEHEADETNERN  EX -EREBRTFERR
BEEIN - AT AR MFF RS - MREETE
HeMERREQERAIETERAMBRRER
ERBEAMBERRAELNRERE  RIEBHE
WA RREENX ©

ERE(HBRFEERDETETHNBRES - HFE
RTHERHALE RS TERREEE - BT

o BRIMFFAANMFFXRERMEBERE MBS
BRGFEEREROER - R RRTE
RRFARSELRER AREBRERNEE
MBEFRE FERAMERNER - ARK
AR RBER - BE BERER ERR
o FOERBERABES 2 £ B REEER
B BRAF T 8 BUA0 B oK 88 SR e LR = O R B 3
HEFERMERHERE RO -

o HEMEBRIAEBNOAMIZS  UARFEED

B2 EEMLEY BEERDES
MEREBRER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AEN RS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The partner in charge on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Tsang Pang Sum Joe.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meammRAMEEKER

Year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

2022 2021
2022 % 20214
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT IT
Revenue PN 5 944,014 818,828
Cost of sales SHE AR 6 (534,648) (472,437)
Gross profit EF 409,366 346,391
Other income and gains H A R iEE 5 13,636 11,758
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HAZ (30,835) (28,106)
Administrative expenses TEAX (224,099) (182,978)
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment S REE CRERE), REEE
losses on financial assets, net B[O F 58 (2,284) 636
Fair value changes of financial assets and EARBEFABENEREER
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss BEIZANBEES 4,946 (7,990)
Other expenses Hhf sz (28,573) (23,205)
Finance costs BhE A AR 7 (5,816) (3,745)
Profit before tax B AR E 6 136,341 112,761
Income tax expense FriSfif X 10 (31,513) (23,087)
Profit for the year FRFE 104,828 89,674
Attributable to: AN EIEE(S -
Owners of the Company PIN/NEE RSN 69,397 49,836
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 35,431 39,838

104,828 89,674
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meammRkAEtEEKER

Year ended 31 December 2022  HZE2022%F 12 A31HILFE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
s BET T BT
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hi2mE (HR) hE
Other comprehensive loss that may be REER R EM D EEEEN
reclassified to profit or loss in H 28

subsequent periods:

Exchange differences: M X, =58
Exchange differences on translation of MEFINETBHE R 5
foreign operations (37,805) (1,714)
Other comprehensive income that will not REER BRI EEHHES
be reclassified to profit or loss in BmmHa2EkE

subsequent periods:

Exchange differences: ME 5, = 5E
Exchange differences on translation from BREEEERENNEEH
functional currency to presentation PE N ZR8
currency 23,385
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for FREMEE (EHE) kS
the year, net of tax HERFLIE 21,671
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2MEUIEHEEE 111,345
Attributable to: LA B IB BN -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEF SN 37,843 70,759
Non-controlling interests IR E R 29,796 40,586
67,639 111,345
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE AR EBREESEABLEERER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY
Basic (HK$ cents) AR GBI 12 10.39
Diluted (HK$ cents) %58 OBIL) 12 10.34
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e P BIRR R

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

Notes
B 5E

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RHE 13
Investment properties HEWE 14
Right-of-use assets ERREEE 15
Goodwill [EES 16
Intangible assets EmEAE 17
Financial assets at fair value through profit BARBEFABENCREE

or loss 20
Deferred tax assets BEFIBEE 27
Prepayments, other receivables and other T FRIE C B R ETE K&

assets Ht&EE 19
Total non-current assets EMEEELRRE
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE
Trade receivables = 18 18
Prepayments, other receivables and other TETRE - HaEURGIE R

assets HM&EE 19
Financial assets at fair value through profit BARBEFABENCREE

or loss 20
Pledged deposits [REEUIEE N 21
Time deposits with an initial term of over VIR EARR & = 8 A LA L& E BRTE 3K

three months 21
Cash and cash equivalents REFRBFEFEYD 21
Total current assets mBNEELRRE
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables Z 5 e /18 22
Contract liabilities EHBEE 23
Other payables and accruals E eI R ERTIE B 24
Interest-bearing bank loans and other FFERITEREEMER

borrowings 25
Tax payable JE N E 3R
Lease liabilities HEaE 15
Convertible bonds AR E S 26
Total current liabilities mBAERRE
Net current assets REBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRBAR
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At

31 December
2022

12022 F
12A31H
HK$'000
BEET T

204,423
17,486
66,375
30,341

3,904

5,168
1,107

385

329,189

3,365
172,302

23,137

1,710
470

7,661
222,254

430,899

43,622
3,565
71,891

26,449

22,880
L EA X

181,560

249,339

578,528

At

31 December
2021
R2021 4
12HA31H
HK$'000
BT T

204,969
20,673
67,399
30,348

2,956

7,331
590

1,189

335,455

2,166
134,783

34,419
8,672

150,636

330,676

39,513
2,794
54,490

19,437
11,814
11,796
57,953

197,797
132,879

468,334



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a BRI R

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
M2022F H2021F
12831H 12H31H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T BT
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Lease liabilities HERE 15 33,582
Interest-bearing bank loans and other STERITER R EMER
borrowings 25 - 3,463
Convertible bonds AR gE S 26 50,861 -
Deferred tax liabilities FEIEFTE B (& 27 2,796 4,690
Other payables and accruals EoAth JE A FIE K EET IR B 24 1,102 -
91,503 41,735
Net assets EEFE 487,025 426,599
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners of the RRAREEB AR
Company
Share capital [ 28 189 172
Reserves & 32 378,079 347,466
378,268 347,638
Non-controlling interests FEFE R R 108,757 78,961
Total equity xmE 487,025 426,599
LI Xiangli YANG Rongbing
Z @\ F BRE
Director Director
EZE E-

2022F EHE TEIER

B AR QA



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mERERBER

Year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LRREAER

Fair
Shares held  value through

Share-based for share other Exchange Non-
Share Capital Statutory  compensation award comprehensive fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* reserve* scheme* Income* reserve* profits* Total interests equity
RO%EB  RLARE
W AER BEki HALH ELRE
Bx AAGEE* EERE  ORERE B 2EAE* B RERHE Rt FAERER EniE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
BT BRI BRI EETT EETT AETT BT BRI EETT EETT RETT
Note (3) Note (o) Note (¢)
GELD) GE{D) (B3t ()
At 1 January 2021 RUNE1A1R 155 110,367 31932 3721 (5920) (3403) 14,062 146,647 297,567 26,351 323918
Profitforthe year ERHE - - - - - - - 1983% 1983% 39,838 89,674
Other comprehensive income for the year: % 79 (12 EE :
Exchange differences on translation of &S EHHE R 2E
foreign operations - - - - - - 20923 - 20923 43 21,61
Total comprehensive income for the year 2 EMEEE - - - - - - 20923 49,836 70759 40,586 111,345
Final 2020 didend declared and paid B E R RIEF 2020 K HHE
(note 11) (GEID! - - - - - - - (18,030) (18,030) - (18,030)
2021 interim dividend declared and paid ~ BE R RR(T412001 £ B S
(note 11) (M) - - - - - - - (9,844 (9,84) - (9,844)
Equity-settled share compensation NESEERRDBERY
expense (notes 29 and 30) (W29R30) - - - 9,39 - - - - 9,398 - 9,398
Shares purchased for share award BROREHEEE 2R
scheme (note 30) (£30) - - - - (6,309) - - - (6,309) - (6,309)
Award shares vested EERRERN - - - 4170) 3757 - - a3 - - -
Bonus issue of shares BR 16 86,243 - - - - - 86,259) - - -
Issue of shares upon exercise of share 1T EEE BT 17
options 1 5151 - (1,055) - - - - 4,097 - 4,097
Transfer from retained profits REFEES - - 3563 - - - - (3,563) - - -
Capital contribution from non-controlling  — M B4 8 2 2 i
interest of a subsidiary iE - - - - - - - - - 6,097 6,097
Acquisition of subsidiaries WiEhBAa - - - - - - - - - 5927 5927
At 31 December 2021 ROUE12A31A 17 201,761 35,495 7900 8472) (3403) 34,985 79,200 347,638 78961 426,599
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEmSER

Year ended 31 December 2022  HZE2022%F 12 A31HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN DN, 1
Fair
Shares held ~ value through
Share-hased for share other Exchange Non-
Share Capital Statutory  compensation award  comprehensive fluctuation Retained controlling
capital reserve* reserve* reserve* scheme* Income* reserve* profits* interests
Rft&B  EAAEE
NRBAER b Jigs AR EXkE
BRRfE EERET  NRREE: R REKE* fife* REfE: FERER
Note (a) Note (b) Note (¢)
(Hr&E(a)) (GE{0) (&)
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T 8T E8Tn B8R 8T R8T E8Tn BT 8T BT E8Tn
At 1 January 2022 R2E1518 m 201,761 35495 7900 (8.472) (3,403) 34,985 79,200 347,638 78,961 426,599
Profitfor the year ERHE - - - - - - - 69,397 69,397 35,431 104,828

Other comprehensive loss for the year: £ RE (2 EFE
Exchange differences on translation of 2 E &I ERMEHL 28
foreign operations

Total comprehensive income for the year £ A 2 BN & £ 8
Final 2021 dividend declared and paid 2 EJE RIE #2021 EX S

(note 11)

2022 interim dividend declared and paid E

(note 11)

Equity-settled share compensation
expense (notes 29 and 30)

Shares purchased for share award
scheme (note 30)

Award shares vested

Bonus issue of shares

Transfer from retained profits

&

&

(M)

WEREENRHBERS
( R30)

HEBEZRA

15,588

BROZE

(8,084)

RENEER =

At 31 December 2022

RAE12A31R 263,835 35712 15,404

As at 31 December 2022, these reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other
reserves of HK$378,079,000 (2021: HK$347,466,000) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

- (4,085)
8,084

(4.473)

*

(31,554) (31,554) (5,635) (37,189)

(31554) 69,397 37,883 29,7% 67,639

(7.983) (7.983) (7.983)

(10,733) (10,733) (10,733)

15,588 15,588

- (4,085)

(62,091) =
17) -

(4,085)

(3403) 3431 67,573 378,268 108,757 487,025

MR2022F 128310 ZERBELESAMBER LK
R HY 47 & E Ath 7% 8 745 %5 378,079,000 7T (2021 4F /B #
347,466,000 7T) °

(a) The amounts represent for (i) the share premium of the issued share capital of the  (a) ZECBANARRBBITRAZKGRE © ()AAF)
Company; (i) the difference between the nominal values of the ordinary shares issued BETEAERAERBSRAREAARBEFEEMHET
by the Company and the share capital of subsidiaries acquired through an exchange of R 22 P U FE B B R B 2 IR AR 2 8 Z 58 (i) 2k B
shares pursuant to the reorganisation of the Company in prior years; (iii) the difference SRR FE 2 AR BEMAFERESEGHBAR
between the fair value of the capital injections from non-controlling shareholders and BREEBMERE (v BN IFFERAR R A E HE IR
the carrying amount of the subsidiary attributable to the non-controlling interests; (iv) BaELMBARREEZENERE: RVIREME
the difference between the consideration paid to non-controlling shareholders and the FRVIRERRF 2 ASHARBECEANEREEZR
carrying amount of the subsidiary attributable to the non-controlling interests; and (v) PEFEIE R ITE -
the deemed contribution from non-controlling interest determined by the difference
between the principal amount and the fair value of other borrowings at initial
recognition.

(b) As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China (b) *E*W%E%*“ ((TJ)LEE%;X/@&;X%E%\E/E;$
(the "PRC"), before distribution of the net fit h h of the G ! SR 7 o L T 5 P 4 R B S R R IR B RO R

"PRC”), : . profit each year, each of the Group’s B 10% /5 B+ SR 16 5 1 5 5 R « R A &
subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after taxation 10 /"sz,f%ﬁ%m IR I3 A7) s A ° I S
1o the statutor Th fund v b d | by th ERRREHERFTERLIGINER - HALZERHE
y reserves. The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the - g 9 AT

boards of directors of these PRC established subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, PR #9823 7] 31§$ A )E?HI I?E }% il tht/ﬁ ;E}Zizozz
to offset accumulated losses or increase capital. During the year ended 31 December i?zsﬂ 3; B ig%' BRE fj ﬁ%}%:imﬁiﬁi’gfﬁ
2022, HK$217,000 (2021: HK$3,563,000) was transferred from retained profits to the #7378 1 217,0007T (2021 4F + 78 #3,563,000 7T (42 &
statutory reserves. o)

(0) The amount mainly represents the share option expenses and share award expenses as  (c) ZETEEERME29 %309 B H B ERER S &R

disclosed in notes 29 and 30, respectively.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022F 12 A31HILFE

Notes
Bt 5E
Operating activities KETEH
Profit before tax BRTAE
Adjustments for: BT SEELFE :
Finance costs B & A AR
Income from financial assets at fair value BAnBEAABZNEHEE 5
through profit or loss FRigHA
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #1% - = LR IENITE 6/13
Depreciation of investment properties HEMENITE 6/14
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENTE 6/15
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEH 6/17
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  WEREEBEN 5
plant and equipment &8
Fair value changes of financial assets and BRARBEFABENEMEER
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss BEMAAEESE
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment SRVEERERE/(REBE 18
losses) on financial assets, net @) - FEE
Equity-settled share compensation expense LAEm A E MR D EERS 2930
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEm, R
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables B 5 el kg (38 hn), R
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TETFRIE - HAbEWRIA -
other receivables, other assets H A& =R (3 n)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B S EMA BRI, Gl )
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities AR aEEm Ond)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals = {th & (< 5118 % fE 5118 B
o, CRid)
Cash generated from operations KEEEMNES
Income taxes paid BT
Net cash flows from operating activities KETEBFGERESEMEFE
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2022

2022 F
HK$'000
BT T

136,341
5,816
(1,345)
41,306
1,484
16,348
769
385

(4,946)

2,284
15,588

214,030
(1,199)
(39,627)

9,824
4,109
771

7,916

195,824

(19,459)

176,365

2021
20214
HK$'000
BT IT
112,761
3,745
(136)
25,844
1,560
15,503
777

96

7,990

(636)
9,398

176,902

1,201
(6,930)
(4,020)

(2,048)

(7,304)

157,801
(23,139)

134,662



Investing activities
Purchases of items of property,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2022  HZE2022%F 12 A31HILFE

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M aE BT T BT

REED
BEWE BEMREERE

plant and equipment (45,165)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE  WERREBEREFR

plant and equipment and intangible assets AEIEBFIBRIA 5,750
Withdrawal of pledged deposits REREHEFFER 945
Placement of pledged deposits FABEFFR (8,548)
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity EX{SEFREEA B £ =@ 5 A &Y

of more than three months when acquired and I8 7 2377 3 K2 BB 14 FA &9

time deposits restricted from being used FHTFE R (7,661) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired — WEEMIE R F] - FNBREDMME & = (8,788)
Income received from financial assets at RAREEFABEN SR

fair value through profit or loss BEMESWRA 5 1,345 136
Net outflow on purchases and sales of financial & & & B & f it 1R 58

products (1,957) (7,264)
Net cash flows used in investing activities KRETHMAREREFRE (47,045) (62,934)
Financing activities A& SEE
Contributions from non-controlling interest EERERTE - 6,097
New bank loans and other borrowings G IRITE R R H A B 26,521 50,030
Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings — 1&i& 1T & 7 & E b {53 (21,959) (67,766)
Proceeds on issue of convertible bonds BT RREFFTBRIA - 50,000
Interest paid BAFE (5,245) (6,340)
Proceeds from issue of shares ?*ﬁﬁx@ FiS k1A - 4,097
Principal portion of lease payments MENKzEASE D (13,488) (20,430)
Dividends paid RS (18,716) (27,874)
Purchase of shares for a share award scheme RGO RE T EIEE 2R (4,085) (6,309)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REEBFARSMEFE (36,972) (18,495)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents HERRESEEYEMFEERE 92,348 53,233
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FYNHEeRRESEEY

year 150,636 93,726
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net HMNEMEREBMTE - F58 (20,730) 3,677
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year F&RHIHE & MRS EHEY 21 222,254 150,636
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH R& KBS EEYHEBRIN

EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be MRITHE 230,385 159,308
Time deposits pledged for borrowings and TERIEF R D AR

port access right TEHATF R 21 (470) (8,672)
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity EX{SEFREIHEI B E =@ A N 8

of more than three months when acquired FEHE IR E BITF K (7,661) -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the REREBERPITINELR

statement of cash flows REeZ%EY 222,254 150,636

2022FEHE TEOBEBERERA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 29 July 2015. The registered office address of the Company
is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-
1108, Cayman Islands and the principal places of business are Suite
1015, 10/F, Ocean Centre, Harbour City, 5 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong and Buildings No. 77-78, Taida Science Park, No.
12 Zhuyuan Road, Shunyi District Beijing, China. The Company's shares
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 12
July 2016.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out as follows. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

Previously, the directors of the Company prepared the consolidated
financial statements of the Group in RMB. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the directors of the Company changed the
presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements from
RMB to Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") as the directors of the Company
consider that it is an appropriate presentation for a company listed
in Hong Kong and for the convenience of the shareholders of the
Company.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company was under the control of
LI Xiangli and ZHANG Aiying. LI Xiangli and ZHANG Aiying are spouses.

150 China Leon Inspection Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2022

1.

AAREEER

PR BRBERERAR(XRQRA]) R—
KH2015F7H29B A2 B ML
WEREEREETAR - AREFZMBRER
#b4F & Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands - MME 2L XM ABTBNERDERE
%iﬁssﬂi/,’é%ﬁqﬂ/mo@msi&qﬂl
b RIER B LR B 12 RERRE77-781R -
RARRMDBE2016F7A12BEREEHE
REMAERAR L -

ARBB—FREZE AR HWEB QA
TEXBEN I - ARBREKER AR
WRIAEHE] -

[=]

ARREEBEAAREBREEAEBEAN
WK - BE2021F12A3MBIEFE - AR
REFBGAVEBRROEZINEEHARE
BEAAK (B DEREEFR AL
EAELEMRARMEBEBEENES A WA
BARABREREESR -

EERAB ARAHFAHNEE
FRAMEREEZEQES -

ESLIE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AaIREEER @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries BRAMEARER

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: ARREEZMBARFERMOT -

Issued

ordinary/registered

Percentage of equity

Name* Place of registration share capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
LN B BRITER/HMRA ARAEGEEEEI L TEER
Direct Indirect
B &
China Leon Inspection Holding (BVI) British Virgin Islands US$1.00 100 - Investment holding
Limited
China Leon Inspection Holding (BVI) EBERREE 1.00% 7T 100 - REER
Limited
Huaxia Leon Inspection Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Investment holding
FENERBRERAT £ BE1007T - 100 REZK
Hong Kong Top One Global Limited Hong Kong HK$1.00 - 100 Investment holding
RS- BIBRAT £ .07 - 100 REZK
Leon Overseas (Hong Kong) Limited (ii) Hong Kong HK$1.00 - 41 (note i)  Inspection and testing
Leon Overseas (Hong Kong) Limited (ii) B BE1.007T - M (D BBk
Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd. Singapore SGD1,000,000 - 51 Inspection and testing
Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd. K 1,000,000 3 A% 7T - 51 BBRREBA
Saybolt (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore SGD341,714 - 51 Inspection and testing
Saybolt (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. s 341,714 57 3T - 51 BBRREBA
Leon Inspection & Testing India Private India INR500,000 - 41 (note i)  Inspection and testing
Limited
Leon Inspection & Testing India Private g 500,000 & Lt - M(ED)  BBRRIEA
Limited
Pt. Leon Testing and Consultancy Indonesia IDR10,005,000,000 - 51 Inspection and testing
Pt. Leon Testing and Consultancy PERAR 10,005,000,000 E1/E /& - 51 B REA
Leon Inspection and Testing Australia Australia AU$1.00 - 51 Inspection and testing
Pty Ltd.
Leon Inspection and Testing Australia BN 1.00327T - 51 BBRREBA
Pty Ltd.
Leon Inspection Testing Services Sdn. Bhd ~ Malaysia MYR1,000,000 - 51 Inspection and testing
Leon Inspection Testing Services Sdn. Bhd TR Az 1,000,000 &% - 51 B REA
Leon Inspection & Testing Private Limited Pakistan PRK40,000,000 - 41(note i)  Inspection and testing
Leon Inspection & Testing Private Limited B H7E 40,000,000 B EHBE - M (D BBk
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARARKEEER @

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) ARHMEBARER (&)

Issued
ordinary/registered Percentage of equity
Name* Place of registration share capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AR~ i BROTEE/EMRE ARAEGEEEED L TEER
Direct Indirect
B %

Leon-Saybolt Inspection & Testing Sdn Bhd ~ Brunei B$1,000 - 51  Standard technical and
quality control technical
services

Leon-Saybolt Inspection & Testing Sdn Bhd 33 1,000 303 T - 51 EERMRESE
Rl

Saybolt (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd Malaysia RMB3,300,000 - 51 Inspection and testing

Saybolt (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd BRED AR 3,300,000 T - 51 BBRBA

Leon Inspection & Testing Vietnam Pvt Ltd. ~ Vietnam VND1,725,000,000 - 51 Inspection and testing

Leon Inspection & Testing Vietnam Pvt Ltd. ~ #i% 1,725,000,000 4.5 & - 51 WEBRRA

Leon Inspection & Testing South Africa South Africa ZAR100 - 51 (note i) Inspection and testing

Leon Inspection & Testing South Africa EES 100 FER % - ST(MIEED BRI

Leon Inspection & Testing Bangladesh Bangladesh BDT424,200 - 51 (note i) Inspection and testing

Leon Inspection & Testing Bangladesh ExpIEan 424,200 ZANALE £ - ST(MIEED BB

Leon Inspection & Testing Argentina S.A Argentina ARS100,000 - 51 (note i) Inspection and testing

Leon Inspection & Testing Argentina S.A IR 100,000F RE L & - S1(KED) BB R

Leon Inspection & Testing (Brazil) Inspecao  Brazil BRL500,000 - 41 (note i) Inspection and testing

E Teste Ltda
Leon Inspection & Testing (Brazil) Inspecao B 7 500,000 B 72 5 32 - M (D RBRRE
E Teste Ltda
Saybolt (Tianjin) Metrology & Inspection PRC US$1,150,000 - 41 (note i)  Inspection and testing
Co., Ltd.
T8 (R Bt R AR HE 1,150,000 % 7T - 4 (BEED) BBRAM
Saybolt-Leon Overseas (Zhoushan) PRC US$500,000 - 41 (note i)  Inspection and testing
Ltd. (China)
Saybolt-Leon Overseas (Zhoushan) HRE 500,003 7T - M(HED BB REE
Ltd. (China)
Lihong Inspection Group Limited PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 Inspection and testing
NERBREEERRF HE AR ¥50,000,0007C - 100 wREBRREA
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Name*

Bl

Tangshan Huaxia Lihong Commodity
Inspection Co., Ltd.

BLEENBERRRERAR

Tianjin Leon Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
RENBRRBRRIGER A

Hebei Lihong Minerals Inspection Co., Ltd.
WENBRERBRERA R

Tianjin Shengde Tiangong Sampling
Technology Co., Ltd.

REERRIREEMERAR

Shaanxi Huaxia Lihong Commodity
Inspection Co., Ltd.
REZENRERBRER AR

Xinjiang Huaxia Lihong Commodity
Inspection Co., Ltd.
HBEENBERBRERAF

Guangzhou Lihong Energy Testing
Technology Co., Ltd.
BN R B R AR A R

Zhuhai Lidaohongtu Coal Testing
Technology Services Co., Ltd.
g hE s B R R R B R

BRAAF

Leon Group Zhisheng Environmental
Technology (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.
NEZERERBRBR AR

LEON (Shenzhen) Environmental Testing
Co., Ltd.
N CRINREERBERAA

Place of registration

ek

PRC

HE

PRC

hE

PRC

HE

PRC

e
PRC
RE
PRC
FE
PRC
e
PRC

HE

PRC
P E
PRC

HE

Issued
ordinary/registered
share capital

BRITEE/ERRE

RMB1,000,000

AR 1,000,0007T

RMB1,000,000

AR ¥ 1,000,0007T

RMB3,000,000

AR 3,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000

AR 10,000,0007T
RMB50,000,000
AR 50,000,000 70
RMB5,000,000
AR 5,000,000
RMB5,000,000
AR ®5,000,0007T
RMB1,000,000

AE#1,000,0007C

RMB1,000,000
AR ¥ 1,000,0007T
RMB10,000,000

AR %10,000,0007T

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

AEIREEER ®

BRMEQRER )

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

ARREEEZEDL
Direct Indirect
B k3

- 100

. 100
- 100

- 100
. 55
- 55
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
= 100 (note i)

- 100(ME)

2022FEHmE TEIERBERERAR

Principal activities

TEER

Inspection, testing, appraisal
and inspection technology
development

B% R
1o 5 R i f 3

Inspection and testing

1% Rl

Inspection technical
advisory service

RSB AR

Scientific research, technique
service and business
service

R - Bl RIS R % AR5

Quality inspection service

BERRRS

Inspection service

8% R

Inspection and testing

5% R

Inspection, testing and
advisory services

8% 8 R R

Environmental testing

ZERY

Environmental testing

B



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

PEIREEER &)

BN ELRES )

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued
ordinary/registered Percentage of equity
Name* Place of registration share capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
BB 17 it B BRITEE/EMRA ARRELEEEADL TEER
Direct Indirect
B M

Yulin Lihong Energy Testing Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 - 28 (note iv)  Inspection and testing

ke R AR A F HE AR 10,000,0007C - 28(MEEwN) B R

Leon Group Huaneng Environmental PRC RMB12,244,900 - 51 Environmental testing
Monitoring Service (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.

Leon Group Huaneng Environmental H AE#12,244,900 7T - 51 RERE
Monitoring Service (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.

Leon Group Zhiheng Environmental PRC RMB6,122,400 - 51 Environmental testing
Technology (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.

Leon Group Zhiheng Environmental h AE#6,122,4007T - 51 RERA

Technology (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.

Leon Low-carbon Environmental PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 (note iii) ~ Technical service technology
Protection Science and Technology development
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Leon Low-carbon Environmental i AR 10,000,0007C - 100 (Ffsiil)  EATIRARMFEE
Protection Science and Technology
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Ordos Leon Coal Coke Inspection Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 - 63 (note iii)  Inspection and testing

Ordos Leon Coal Coke Inspection Co., Ltd. ~ # & AR5,000,0007T - G3(PHEEN)  WmEB IR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The English names of the companies registered in the PRC, represent the best
efforts of the management of the Company in directly translating the Chinese
names of the companies as no English names have been registered.

These companies are subsidiaries of Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd. The interests
disclosed here represented the Group's effective equity interests in these
subsidiaries. The directors of the Company are in the opinion that the Group
has control over these subsidiaries through its control over Leon Overseas, a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

These companies were deregistered during the year ended 31 December 2022.
These companies were established during the year ended 31 December 2022.

This entity is a subsidiary of Shaanxi Huaxia Lihong Commaodity Inspection
Co., Ltd. and the percentage represented the percentage of Group's effective
equity interests in this entity. The directors are of the Company the opinion that
the Group has control over this entity through its control over Shaanxi Huaxia
Lihong Commodity Inspection Co., Ltd., a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

All these companies were incorporated with limited liability.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principal affected the results
or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

1.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

AAREEER @

AREARER (&)

B EE -

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

AR & R B R O 2 RIS KRR BSCR A - B
EFEARNEXEWAARTEREEED
BAAIRXE -

% % A 719 A Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd. &) WE’A\
ETL’IH:J*T&@E’HE%H$§@E’\\§Z$WF
HEREZ K a§$uuﬁ$§.5ﬁﬂﬁﬁ‘f
Leon Overseas (R R R M IEE EM B A R)) B94%
LS E R RI B I -
HZE2022F12A311LFE

ZERAD

HE2022F12A311LFE - ZZ5RRBMKIL °

ZERRRAEE N BHRRERAR QBN
BAR BOERRAKERNZERNERES
BOW  ARREFARAEE B BEHRAE
BB amBREaRAR (ARREEENEL
A MRS A B R A TR o

FrBEZERAREMALBER DR

LB A

RERSBTEMNERE

LRI ARDEERRYAEEXEASLE
ENABEAIERENARFANBRF K

REEERR

EHIREAKE DR 2 FH1S

FSAMBRTE -

2022F EHmE TEIIER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. WBEERFIESTHBE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 wEEEHE)
Basis of consolidation (Continued) mAEEE(E)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted following revised IFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendment to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendment to IAS 37  Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
to IFRSs 2018-2020 lllustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are applicable
to the Group are described below:

(@  Amendments to IFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual
Framework"”) issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements.

The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to
its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an
asset or a liability.

The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC
21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in
a business combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should
refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date.

The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
business combinations that occurred on or after 1 January
2022. As there were no business combinations during the
year, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are applicable
to the Group are described below: (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items as
determined by IAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss.

The Group has applied the amendments retrospectively to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no sale of
items produced prior to the property, plant and equipment
being available for use, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not
relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they
are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the
contract.

The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations
at 1 January 2022 and no onerous contracts were
identified. Therefore, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. WAUEERTESTHER®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 22 B BREEEBREEE
(Continued)
The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are applicable HRARAEENZSSE (R
to the Group are described below: (Continued) WEXANHUERFEHBIOT : (8)

(d)  Annual Improvements to IFRS 2018-2020 sets out

—~

d) (EIBR B 75 #| £ ERI)2018 F 2

amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples 2020 F 7 4F [Z 24 51) (B BR Bt
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the FEEpAER|VE 158 (BB ISR
amendment that is applicable to the Group are as follows: LAY F G BT R (E BB

B EER) E 1657 L(BR &
EA)FMFZBEEBSLA
ERRNAEENZEEITNFB

LU
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity (BB HHREEL) FOR S B
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or TE BRI EENE
modified financial liability are substantially different from FEBHEHEEZRRESH
the terms of the original financial liability. These fees R EEEZGRBE RN T
include only those paid or received between the borrower REshsEBR ZEBRHER
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the BZERERARERAZHEHE
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. TS EZ EBR (BEERAKR

ERARKEFAEASWER 2

BH) -
The Group has applied the amendment prospectively AEBEDN202241 818 £ A
from 1 January 2022. As there was no modification or EMMERZEEIT -ARER
exchange of the Group's financial liabilities during the year, AEBH S EBET EE RN E
the amendment did not have any impact on the financial Mo I AN £ E ) B S AR
position or performance of the Group. S Bk 35 38 4 B A AT (A S o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective International Financial

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
IFRS 16

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' *

Amendments to IFRS 17 Initial Application of IFRS 17 and
IFRS 9 — Comparative Information®

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current

(the “2020 Amendments")?
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

(the “2022 Amendments")?
Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
IAS 1 and IFRS

Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8  Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption.
4 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020,

IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning

before 1 January 2023.

> An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial

application of IFRS 17.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective International Financial
Reporting Standards (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute
a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS
28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption
now.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-
lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered
into after the date of initial application of IFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January
2019). Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective International Financial
Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current, in particular the determination
over whether an entity has a right to defer settlement of the
liabilities for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered
a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the IASB issued the 2022
Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which
an entity must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current. In addition,
the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures by an entity
that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-
current when it has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities
that are subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early
is required to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and
vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments and whether existing loan agreements may require
revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to
apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted.
Since the guidance provided in the amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting
the accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amendments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective International Financial
Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.
The amendments also clarify how entities use measurement
techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or
after the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred tax
asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
to transactions related to leases and decommissioning obligations
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,
with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or other component of equity
as appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall
be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. REEERFTESHHRE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24 EXSHHEME

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. REEERFTESHHRE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24 EXSHBERE(®)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Fair value measurement RAEEHNE
The Group measures certain financial instruments at fair value RERESHR  AEEZAABETS

at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In
testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. MEEERFESHEE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 EXRETEHRBE (B
(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) FeMEERMEE)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(i)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. REEERFTESHHRE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24 EXSHBERE(®)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 4.75%
Motor vehicles 23.75%
Electronic equipment and others 19% t0 31.67%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
the lease terms and

10% to 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. Depreciation is charged so as to write off
the cost of investment properties using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives years. Owner-occupied property is
transferred to investment property when there is a change in use
evidenced by the end of owner occupation.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. REEERFTESHHRE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
24 EXETERERE(H)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding five to
seven years, commencing from the date when the products are
put into commercial production.

Patents and software

Purchased patents and software are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over 3 to 10 years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Customer relationships and inspection certifications

Customer relationships and inspection certifications acquired
in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The customer relationships and inspection
certifications have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the expected life of
the customer relationship and inspection certifications of 6 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leased properties 1 to 10 years
Leasehold land 24 to 40 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group
and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(©)  Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office buildings and
other equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as an
operating lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. RBEERIFESTBE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 EXRETEHRBE (B
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets RERHEMESMEE
Initial recognition and measurement ARG E

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’'s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group
had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. WBEERFIESHBE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 ERETEHRBE (8
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued) RERHEMERMEE (BB)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primary
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Rkt 8 (%)
BARBEFARR D BEE (&)
ERARGAN (BB ENFES
MIR) A TAAREIRIES
HE2EERBERR  AHERAN
TETERRGRZEBTANAITE
TRAZESE BEAANUIFEAA(E
Bt NBHEFE RIZITETASETE
DHEIWVERBEFEITE LA - ]RAR
TETARAREBEFNE  BRREE
HHNBERER - BESOERFILR
BE UBBEETEMBRAMERSE
MERNERDBEERANEEFAR
HZEMEERENDRAE - TEEH
AP o

BMARGAN(BEeREETE) 20T
ETATMEEBIIR eREETRBE
RSAXTETABAEEDER/RAR
BEFABEZEMEE -

RIEBRAEHEE

EREE (X (WER) 2MEEN—
DE—HABLUEREEN—HB2)RT
SIS R T B4 1L TR (BN AN 5= B RO 47
BMBIRRRPBR)

s DERBEEEMBRIZNENE
AEEm 3K

e AEBCHEFHWHBEZBREE
PISIRERENETN  JRE(E
FIRHERBBEELERNIBFERT
EERE=SBREI N RERE
EREMNEE R@QAKECDHE
B HEEENBAE SRR KE
HROAEEL EERLRA
ZEBENBARR D E R LB
BEEEREZ AL EMNTEE -

2022FEHmE TEIERBERERAR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. REEERFTESHHRE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
24 EXETERERE(H)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information. The Group considers that there has been a
significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and
contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial instruments that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
convertible bonds, interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. RBEHERTESTHE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 EXRETEHRBE (B
(Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued) sEas (&)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains or
losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except for the
gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly
in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. REEERFTESHHE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
24 EXETERERE(H)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. REEERFTESHHE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 ERETEHERME B

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a

The Group performs analytical tests and issues testing
certificates or reports after completion of the on-site
preparation. The performance obligation is satisfied upon (i)
completion of testing services and/or (ii) issuance of testing
certificate. A contract liability is recognised for advance
payments received for sales in which revenue has yet been
recognised.

The Group provides surveying services and witnessing and
ancillary services (excluding supervision and equipment
maintenance services) on-site. Service reports are issued
after services rendered. The performance obligation is
satisfied upon (i) completion of provision of services and/
or (i) issuance of service reports, if any. A contract liability
is recognised for advance payments received for sales in
which revenue has yet been recognised.

The Group provides supervision and equipment
maintenance on-site. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs. Revenue is recognised for these services based
on the stage of completion of the contract using output
method.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due,
a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration
that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. REEERFTESHHE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24 EXSHBERE(®)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as intangible assets,
costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised
as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as
incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) and a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services in exchange for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model or market price of granted date, further
details of which are given in notes 29 and 30 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group'’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period. For share award that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
award granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance antfd/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. REEERFTESHHE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
24 EXETERERE(H)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Company and its subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
Company and its subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

The employee of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in other
countries/regions are required to participate in the applicable
defined contribution plan in accordance with relevant local laws
and regulations. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the defined
contribution plan. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
defined contribution plan.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in note 11 to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL 2. REEERFTESHHE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24 EXSHBERE(®)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the
exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the
hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation.
These are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount
is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and
credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary
items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than Hong Kong dollars. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of an overseas subsidiary are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of an overseas subsidiary
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rate for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such
as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life
of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the
commercial property, that it retains substantially all the significant risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties which are
leased out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the
lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is
a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control
and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew
or to terminate the lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or
leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available (such as the Group that does not
enter into financing transactions). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivable.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance,
if forecast economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(Continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not
be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed
in note 18 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further details are
contained in note 27 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment and investment properties, the Group periodically
reviews the changes in market conditions, the expected physical wear
and tear, and the maintenance of the asset. The estimation of the
useful life of the asset is based on historical experience of the Group
with similar assets that are used in a similar way. Depreciation amounts
will be adjusted if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment and investment properties
are different from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period based on changes in
circumstances.

Share option scheme

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
at the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value requires
determining the most appropriate valuation model for a grant of equity
instruments, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the
grant. This also requires determining the most appropriate inputs to
the valuation model including the expected life, volatility and dividend
yield and making assumptions about them. Continuous estimation is
required for the calculation of cumulative share-based payment cost at
each reporting date until vesting, including estimate of the number that
will vest. Details of share option scheme are disclosed in note 29 to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

OPERATING SEGMENT 4, RBEHE

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being MARAMITER(AFBEERETSE ([EE
the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"), for the purposes BIEREE])) 2ERUFEETERD B RFMH
of resource allocation and assessment focuses on revenue analysis B & BHA ER IR T P R A B E A A
by geographic location of customers. No other discrete financial DT BRAEENEEEE R BARRIN
information is provided other than the Group’s results and financial MEREEMBITHEER - Al - B2®
position as a whole. Accordingly, only entity-wide disclosures are ERWESE-

presented.

Geographical information b 35 & R

(a) Revenue from external customers (a) MEEFPUA

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST T
Greater China AP ER 615,313 520,177
Singapore and other countries/regions i REMERthE 328,701 298,651
944,014 818,828
(b) Non-current assets (b) FHRBEE
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Greater China AP ER 266,710 229,944
Singapore and other countries/regions M REMERtE 56,204 96,401
322,914 326,345
The non-current asset information above is based on the locations LR BEEER EREEMEA
of the assets and excludes financial instruments and deferred tax B TEESRIAREERIEEE
assets.
Information about a major customer —HXEEFNESR
During the years ended 31 December 2022, revenue generated from BE2022F12A3MALLFE  BAREEHAH
one of the Group’s customers has accounted for 12.3% (2021: 16.3%) —ZBPRBRAGEARAERLKRAN123%
of the Group’s total revenue. (20214 1 16.3%) °
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA - Hitt A Rz
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WASHTAT
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T PR T T
Revenue from contracts with customers BEPE WA
Testing services ORI IR 7 602,972 520,304
Surveying services £ RTE 249,995 223,617
Witnessing and ancillary services RELHPRSE 91,047 74,907
944,014 818,828
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHEA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) WAERBMA
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Types of goods or services EmsiiREER
Testing services 08 AR 7 602,972 520,304
Surveying services EFERY 249,995 223,617
Witnessing and ancillary services 78 N ¥ Bh AR 7% 91,047 74,907
Total revenue from contracts with customers R FE A& 44U A 944,014 818,828
Geographical market i & %
Greater China AHER 615,313 520,177
Singapore and other countries/regions FnEREMER 328,701 298,651
Total revenue from contracts with customers B F A& 44U A 944,014 818,828
Timing of revenue recognition T A e S B
Services transferred at a point in time X -KEMES RS 943,134 813,370
Services transferred at over time B EER AR 880 5,458
Total revenue from contracts with customers B & &42U8 A 944,014 818,828
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued)

(a)

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

WA - B AR IWE @

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) R L ONE )

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (a) WAERIBAME)
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BRI

Revenue from contracts with customers BEEEHEA

External customers INBE P 944,014 818,828
Total revenue from contracts with customers ~ EF & #4208 A 944,014 818,828

(b)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised
from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

Total revenue from contracts with customers ~ EF & 442U A

TRERRARSHERNRASE -
B ARSHINANAE RN BE
HIMER BN B (TR

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST T
2,794 4,733

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

The Group performs analytical tests and issues testing certificates
or reports after completion of the on-site preparation. The
performance obligation is satisfied upon (i) completion of testing
services and/or (ii) issuance of testing certificate. A contract
liability is recognised for advance payments received for sales in
which revenue has yet been recognised.

The Group provides surveying services and witnessing and
ancillary services (excluding supervision and equipment
maintenance services) on-site. Service reports are issued after
services rendered. The performance obligation is satisfied upon (i)
completion of provision of services and/or (ii) issuance of service
reports, if any. A contract liability is recognised for advance
payments received for sales in which revenue has yet been
recognised.

(b)

BEREE
ERAKEROEENEMBURIT

AEBRTRRERETO B L G
B Z U mE - BAOBER0)RA
MRS SR RS AR E SR E
X o B KB BT WO 1 R T R R o 1
BATWHEFRN IR °

REBERRHE T RS MRS R E N
R (TEREEERRERHERT) -1
RUERBERLAERBHRSE -BHEER
(i) TERC IR (R AR 7 B3k (i) tH B AR $R 5
(INA) 1RERK & X B ERUA AR E
RS WER SRS TN RIE -
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

WA~ Eag A R @
EESHBA )

BHEE(E)

AEBERERGEE RRBE/ERT
11 %5 5 FE 7 5= [ B 449 1 (D B LA BRI O
AEBRBROMREHERON G  BIRERE
BHALSN —BREHEAREKRN —HEY
BE - WARBEOZKEREREH
EHER L FRT -

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5.
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b) Performance obligations (Continued) (b)

The Group provides supervision and equipment maintenance on-
site. Such services are recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Groups performance as
the Group performs. Revenue is recognised for these services
based on the stage of completion of the contract using output
method.

All services provided by the Group are for periods of one year or REBEREMNAERBHE BB —F A
less. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated A o 5 a0 B R B 75 R 45 E R BB 15 9%
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. FrEsT BOMEZZFREKNEONZ
SERNTHE -
HEMBARKEA AT

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Other income Hapg A
Bank interest income RITHAEWA 109
Value-added tax additional deduction BEIMNOBRIZERL 1,462
Government grants K 75 78 B 7,119
Rental income el A 1,619
Other interest income from financial assets at EBEARBEFABEGHNEREEN
fair value through profit or loss HAth R B 136
Others HAb 441
13,355 10,886
Other gains Hitslr 22
Gain/(loss) on foreign exchange difference HNFERE 3 = EER s (E518) (602) 306
Loss on disposals of items of property, HEME WELKEEE®
plant and equipment, net B8 F R (385) (96)
Others Ei 1,268 662
281 872
13,636 11,758
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of sales

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of investment properties
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Lease payments not included in the

measurement of lease liabilities

Research and development costs*
Employee benefit expenses (including

directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration):
— Wages and salaries

— Pension scheme contributions

— Welfare and other expenses

— Equity-settled share-based payment

expense

HEMA
A2 856D 2 B
WE - BEMERENITE

BREMENTE
ERAEEENITE

B EESH
TEIAHEREFENHEENRK

W B AR *
BEGIAX (BREFK
REITRASFB) :

—TIERFE

— RIREFT IR

— @M R AR

— RS EENRND AR

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

im0 A

AEEGBAFBENG GEA) AT &E
wiE

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
M 5 BT T BT IT
534,648 472,437

2,205 2,278

13 41,306 25,844
14 1,484 1,560

15 16,348 15,503
17 769 777

4,302 7,999
26,883 22,908

322,616 264,532
22,917 26,152
85,424 62,342

15,588 9,398

446,545 362,424

Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment

losses) on trade receivables

B RKHIERERER
CRIEEEEE)

(636)

* During the year ended 31 December 2022, research and development costs
of approximately HK$26,745,000 (2021: HK$22,823,000) were included in

employee benefit expenses.

* HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE - HERARLEE
26,745,000 7T (20214 : # % 22,823,0007T) &t
ANEERAAX -
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BAEAK
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEAN DT -
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T PR T T
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings RITE R REMERTE 1,803 1,149
Convertible bonds AR E S 1,000 556
Interest on lease liabilities MEAEMNE 3,013 2,040
5,816 3,745
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EENESTHAEHM
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BECETRED - B CRTEA) £383(1)
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of @ b)) QOROEURCATR (HEESM=
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies ER) O E2BBEELFANEEREST
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as BABFHMAT -
follows:

2022 2021

2022 £ 20214

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T PR T T

Fees e 300 300
Other emoluments: EA i -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMRIERSHE 4,735 4,740

Other welfares HEF 285 282

Performance related bonuses ERERE AT 1,624 2,186

Equity-settled share-based payment expense LA A E R D AT 6,761 4,595

Pension scheme contributions RIKSETEIHEER 219 207

13,624 12,010

13,924 12,310
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

During the year, certain directors were granted share award scheme, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share award scheme
of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 30 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such award, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year is included in the above
directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the
year were as follows:

ZHAO Hong =k
WANG Zichen FrE
LIU Hoi Keung B 58

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

BEERBRSTHRAEHM @

FAREBEARARMDRBE RETE
ERAEBE R IR M A H R =R
HE E-THBEREBERRME30- B2
RELEHEEZS RN AR BELRE
BHRNEERER  MAFEMBHRKAM
HeHECHALLEERESITRABNH
i ES -

(a) BIYFHITES
FRRBILFATEETINNESHT

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2021: Nil).

UNNE
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$"000 HK$'000
BT T BT
100 100
100 100
100 100
300 300
FAVEERBYIFNTEEIAHE

IS (20214 « 4E) o
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERBEITHAEEFM =
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITESRIITES

Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances  Performance  share-based Pension

and benefits related payment scheme Other

in kind bonuses expense  contributions welfares Total

e 2MR BXHE VEREEN EikE
FRERH A ROXAEX RIS Hits @A b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BRI BETT BT BT

2022 2022 F

Executive directors RITES
Li Xiangli Fa| 4718
Liu'Yi i 3,118
Yang Rongbing BRE 3,632
Zhang Aiying REH 2,156

13,624

Non-executive director FRITES
Hao Yilei il
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

8. EERBRETHAEHFM»

(b) FTEERFIATES W)

(Continued)
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances Performance share-based Pension
and benefits related payment scheme Other
in kind bonuses expense  contributions welfares Total
Er =3 B MEREER Bike
FRENE B BRAXARR Al A ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BETT BBTT BETL BB
2021 20215
Executive directors HiTES
Li Xiangli Fa| 1,441 494 1,559 63 94 3,651
Liu Yi 213 1,446 814 1,051 63 94 3,468
Yang Rongbing BRE 1,200 100 1,128 81 9% 2,603
Zhang Aiying RER 653 778 857 - 2,288
4,740 2,186 4,595 207 282 12,010
Non-executive director EHTES
Hao Yilei G - - - - - -
4,740 2,186 4,595 207 282 12,010

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief

executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year.

(c) Chief executive

Mr. Li Xiangli was the chief executive of the Company.

FR UBEMNEEHRITERABK
BRI BEMEEMHHOZHE

(0 BEETHRAR
FHAEERRARRDITRALR -
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501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included two executive
directors (2021: three directors), details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining three (2021: two) highest paid employees who are neither a
director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances, benefits in kind e 2 FEReFE
and other welfares N E At 1@ I

Performance-related bonuses EBREIEA

Pension scheme contributions RS ETEIHE

IEBREHHNES

FRNAERRTHEERIENBNTES
(Q01F:=ZFEZF)  EHEBRSHFMNOTE
BYIR ECiES c AR RTEENIEH =T
BABMBT=4(20214F : ME) Zo &
EEMFAHBFBERIIWT -

2022 2021

2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT

5,164
430
202

5,796

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

FMEATHRBNIFEENIERSTHRAR
MERSFMEEHABMT

follows:
Number of employees
EEAZ

2021
20214
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 75 # 2,500,001 7T 2 7 ¥ 3,000,000 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 751 3,000,001 7T 2 7 ¥ 3,500,000 7T 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 7B 3,500,001 7T £ 8 # 4,000,000 7T -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 7B 4,000,001 7T 2 ¥ 4,500,000 7T -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 7515 4,500,001 7T =% 5 5,000,000 7T -
2

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees was granted share options
or award shares (2021: None).

No remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the directors or the
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INCOME TAX

Pursuant to the local rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to
income tax at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits.
The tax on the dividend income from a subsidiary in Mainland China
has been provided at the rate of 5% during the year.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China are subject to
income tax at a statutory rate of 25% on their respective taxable profit,
except for certain subsidiaries, which have been identified as high and
new technology enterprises entitled to a preferential income tax rate of
15% for the years and were ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore are subject to
income tax at the rate of 17% on the estimated assessable profits.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

10. FREH

REFSHELEBHEBARESNEHRA
FOER  AEBEHESMERNRSESE RE
BHEBRBESREN

AR FIRE I 5 A S 0B A /B BT A
PSR 54 8 1%16.5% 0 B 5 SR BT IS B o 48
e 8yt — T B 23 ) MO S A BT 5%
Bk iHE -

ARARRFAEAMHNKBARERES SR
RELF) IR 25% KA E R EBNFTSH - %
T EBRRIBRSIN « IR E AR EMEE -
REE2022F F2021F 12 A31BIEFEEA
R 15% BB HHE B RBNEE -

g

T

AN BT AR AT AR SZ B BT B R R A R TR
R IR17% e R AP S T -

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT

16,738 12,457
16,510 10,633
((WED) 3)

Current tax BVERFR 18

— Mainland China — R E A

— Other jurisdictions — HMAEEERR
Deferred tax ERETIA
Total tax charge for the year FRBIES LA

31,513 23,087
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FREH (@)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the BREKRKIOM B AR T (el EE&ER)
statutory rates for the countries (On jurisdictions) in which the majority BEEMEFEBEARBAIANE 2 HIBRXE -
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax HIRERBERAE BRI ZEHE U
rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax EARE (AEERR) BERB X ZHEN
rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows: N
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit before tax 752 Al ) 136,341 112,761
Tax at PRC statutory R EDEE B E
tax rate of 25% 25% T E R HIE 34,085 28,190
Effect of the preferential income tax rate FrISBEERENZE (11,046) (7,546)
Effect of different tax rates applicable to ERAREAMENEEERAEN
subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions B RN TRMENTE (5,639) (5,018)
Tax losses not recognised AERHOTIBEIE 16,228 8,447
Effect of utilisation of tax loss previously not A A AERNBIBEELN
recognised -2 (390) (723)
Expense not deductible for tax AAEMB AR 3,880 4,914
Income not subject to tax BARFIRA (1,545) (4,625)
Additional tax deduction for research and e S nET kR
development expenditure (4,060) (1,579)
Others HAth - 1,027
Tax charge for the year at the Group’s BRAEBEERTEGFESN
effectives rate FRBIBERE 31,513 23,087
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11.

12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

DIVIDENDS 11. RE
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
2021 Final — HK$0.018 (2020 Final 2021 FERE — BRT AR
— RMBO0.0375) per ordinary share P51 0.018 7T (2020 5 K H
— AR#¥0.037570) 18,030
2022 Interim — HK$0.022 (2021 Interim 202 — Bl ERK
— HK$0.0225) per ordinary share V5 0.022 7T (2021 FH Hf
— 8#0.02257T) 10,733 9,844

Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the Company were recognised
as distribution during the year after consideration of dividends on the
shares held by the Company’s share award scheme under the trust
(defined in note 30).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
HK$0.0272 (2021: HK$0.0180) per share for the year ended 31
December 2022 has been proposed by the directors and is subject to
the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNING PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
480,950,215 (2021: 479,590,963) in issue during the year, as adjusted
to reflect the rights issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, adjusted to reflect the interest on the convertible bonds, where
applicable (see below). The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

12.

REBREBETHARRRD EZREFH
ZERMHORE®R  KETARAEBRER
MR ENFRERR DI (E&ERMFE30) °

RIRERRE  ESCERREEE2022F
12A31MAIEFERNRPRESRAER0.0272
70 (20214 : ##0.01807T) » W AFRER
EERBAF RS FHEZRFAIEE -

BRAEEERBERARLER
27

BREAABFCEEAARLBEERSEEA
JE 15 & W A )2 F W E 8 17480,950,215 %
(20214 : 479,590,963 %) 3@ A% hn#eE 715 £k
HE R R E QR AT o

BERBERNSRREAREBRERBA
FEEFRRMEE - ERHBIARBRA i RE
FHZME (RER) (R TX) - st ERRAR
BB IETFHHE A EERERRT T
RANFACDETERREE  URBRE
BRITEXBRAALETENNEBERAS
ERENEEETOERRINEFHE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

12. EARNING PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. BAREBEZFEAERLEER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT B R )
(Continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on: ERERARBERFNNTEIER

Earnings BF

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of AR EERERRBF 2 KD F
the Company, used in the basic earnings TEEREEARM G
per share calculation:

Adjusted for: AT ZIEFE -
Interest on convertible bonds AR ES 2 FE
Fair value gain of the convertible bonds AR ES AL EBEKE

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of AR EEREERN AR
the Company, used in the diluted earnings per TmEmn A ARG
share calculation:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in AR EERERERN ZEA
issue during the year used in the basic earnings BT TR 2 T g ()
per share calculation (Notes)

Effect of dilution — weighted average number of ~ #EE 2 — L @A NEFHE :
ordinary shares:

Share options B
Convertible bonds AR ES

214 China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2022

2022
2022 F
HKS$ 000
BT T

2021
20214
HK$'000
ST T

49,836

Number of shares

R EE

480,950,215

1,595,242
37,037,037

519,582,494

2021
20214

479,590,963

2,160,859

481,751,822



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. EARNING PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

(Continued)

Notes:

(a) The weighted average number of ordinary shares shown above for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 have been arrived at after adjusting the
shares held by the Company’s Share Award Scheme under the trust and taken
convertible bonds into account.

(b) In addition, the number of shares adopted in the calculation of the basic and
diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021
have been retrospectively adjusted to reflect bonus shares disclosed in note 28
which became effective in July 2022.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2022 does not assume the exercise of certain of the
Company’s share options because the exercise price of those options
was higher than the average market price for shares for 2022 and
2021.

At the year ended 31 December 2021, because the diluted earnings per
share amount is increased when taking convertible bonds into account,
the convertible bonds had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings
per share for the year and were excluded in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share.

Therefore, the diluted earnings per share amounts are based on the
profit for the year of HK$63,067,000, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 519,582,494 in issue during the year.

12.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

BRAEERREAARBGER

B R )

BT AE -

(a) X REE2022F K2021F 12 A31HIEF
EHLBRMEFHHEDEAZBBETARN
ARIRDEE T ARG B ERIL AT KA
BB ES -

(b) AN GTE B E2022F K2021F 12 A31H 1k
FENEBREARBERMNSRANORNOEE
BT EMAE - DA M 5 28 BT # 8 70 2022 £F
7 A REIAIRR -

STEEHZE2022F12A31BIEFENERE
SERF I ERBRANRBE TRREEITE -
TR ZEERENITEBNR2022F &
2021 R R BT mE -

HZE2021F12 A31BIEFE - ARG R A8
RESRGRESRANSEIL I TRRE
FHFTRNEREXAZMNEEREETE &
TESREE AT R -

At BREEREMNSBIHERFAFNEE
# 63,067,000 7T M FF A B B 17 38 A% 0
9 $0519,582,494 % °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ - BERRZRE

Electronic
Motor Equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings vehicles and others improvements  in progress Total
EFRME HEMF
BgF RE REAM ®1 EEIR st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BET T BT T ik BT T

31 December 2022 2022%12A31H

At 1 January 2022: 202261818 :
Cost A 104,633 40,702 132,503 44,326 327,004
Accumulated depreciation e (21,988) (22,344) (58,849) (18,854) (122,035)
Net carrying amount RHFE 82,645 18,358 73,654 25,472 204,969

At 1 January 2022, net of 202251318
accumulated depreciation MR EHATERRE

and impairment 18,358 73,654 25,472 204,969
Additions NE 4,992 25,152 5,133 61,811
Disposals HE (1,136) (1,429) (253) (2,818)
Depreciation provided FRTERE

during the year (4,763) (5,994) (23,234) (7,315) - (41,306)
Transfers (note 17) HaE (M7 - - 1,970 3,802 (7.612) (1,840)
Exchange realignment BHAE (X:1D) (1,283) (5,089) (2,073) (1,053) (16,393)

At 31 December 2022, netof 20226128318

accumulated depreciation Nk RHHTE 70,987 14,937 71,024 24,766 22,709 204,423
At 31 December 2022: R2022F 128318 :

Cost A 95,741 40,292 141,878 47,914 22,709 348,534

Accumulated depreciation 2EE (24,754) (25,355) (70,854) (23,148) - (144,111)

Net carrying amount EEEE 70,987 14,937 71,024 24,766 22,709 204,423
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13. 1% - BERKRE @
Electronic
Motor equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings vehicles and others  improvements in progress Total
EFHE HENM%E
BT AE REf E3ES ERIR et
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
31 December 2021 20215128318
At 1 January 2021: M2021%1818
Cost A 102,427 35,292 101,872 34,688 3,616 277,895
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (17,280) (21,038) (48,299) (13,631) - (100,248)
Net carrying amount REFE 85,147 14,254 53,573 21,057 3,616 177,647
At 1 January 2021, net of R2021F1R18 -
accumulated depreciation Nk RE 85,147 14,254 53,573 21,057 3,616 177,647
Additions NE 387 7,144 31,876 8,751 1,121 49,279
Disposals HE - (1,902) (2,691) - - (4,593)
Acquisition of subsidiaries e =N - 124 4,694 - - 4818
Depreciation provided FAMERE
during the year (4,481) (1,545) (14,897) (4,921) - (25,844)
Exchange realignment fE AR 1,592 283 1,099 585 103 3,662
At 31 December 2021, 20215124318
net of accumulated MR RETE
depreciation 82,645 18,358 73,654 25,472 4,840 204,969
At 31 December 2021: M2021612 4318
Cost A 104,633 40,702 132,503 44,326 4,840 327,004
Accumulated depreciation REHiTE (21,989) (22,344) (58,849) (18,854) - (122,035)
Net carrying amount REEE 82,645 18,358 73,654 25472 4,840 204,969

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s buildings with a total
carrying value of HK$30,921,000 (2021: Nil) were pledged to obtain a
banking facility from a bank amounting to HK$14,106,000 (2021: Nil)

(Note 25).

MR2022F 128318 A&EBEETEF (KA
A (E A7 130,921,000 7T (20214 : T)) B2
I LABIRITIETS B 14,106,000 7T (2021
F ) MRITRLE (HF5E25) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. REYWE

HK$'000
BT
Cost: RN
At 1 January 2021 7202141818 31,868
Exchange realignment I W, 7 5 967
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H 32,835
Exchange realignment VE X R (2,795)
At 31 December 2022 2022912 A31H 30,040
Accumulated depreciation: ZIHE
At 1 January 2021 M2021F1 A1 H (10,291)
Depreciation charge for the year FAFEZL (1,560)
Exchange realignment IE 5 3% (311)
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H (12,162)
Depreciation charge for the year FRFEZL (1,484)
Exchange realignment bE i A 1,092
At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H (12,554)
Net carrying amount BRTEFE -
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H 20,673
At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H 17,486

The Group leases out commercial properties under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 3 years (2021: 1 to 3 years), with unilateral rights to
extend the lease beyond initial period held by lessees only. Majority of
the lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event the lessee
exercises the option to extend. None of the leases includes variable
lease payments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective functional
currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual
value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the
end of lease term.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over 20 years with 5% residual value.

The Group’s investment properties consist of two commercial properties
in Beijing and Cangzhou, the PRC. The Directors have determined
that the class of the investment properties is commercial based on
the nature, characteristics and risks of each property. The Group’s
investment properties were valued on 31 December 2022 based on
valuations performed by an independent professionally qualified valuer,
at HK$23,868,000 (2021: HK$25,780,000) based on direct comparative
and income methods approach which is classified as level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. There is no change from the valuation method used
in the previous year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use. There were
no transfers into or out of level 3.

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's investment properties
with a total carrying value of HK$16,804,000 (2021: HK$19,244,000)
were pledged to obtain a banking facility from a bank amounting to
HK$11,195,000 (2021: HK$12,237,000).

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 15 to the
financial statements.

14.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

BEWE @

7K S5 B3 4 B AL T 5 0 2 BP0 S BB
B s DEREEESNEEERS SN
A REREA DY TR ENBE
ERRE/XERBAREERREINEY
1B -

LR EMRBRELEAR20FRFTE - R
{BERS5% °

AEEMEEYEREFEIL T EA MM
EERDE-EZREBEREVENEE &
MESMENRBGEETAEAER - K
EEMEEYMEN2022F12 31 BIREBE L
BELSERGEMAEELBERBRAER
{E(H1E - (H1E A& B % 23,868,000 7T (2021 4F -
JE 1 25,780,0007T) F WHARABERER
FE-ER -FTBEMNGEERERBAFE L E
BH - NEFVEAABER  EEVESR
SREREEARAEENAR TEBA
sEHE=EBHL -

MR2022F 12 A31H AEEETHREME
(BRTE 48{E A& 75 % 16,804,000 7T (20214 : /&
#19,244,0007T)) B E A - LLARITES
75 11,195,000 7T (2021 & : 7% #12,237,000
TL) FYERTTRYE -

REMERELHEHRTE =71 BE—
FRAF BN B HRERMEES -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

15. LEASE 15. &

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leased properties
used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods of 24 to
40 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of
these land leases. Leases of leased properties generally have lease terms
between 1 and 10 years. Leases of leasehold land generally have lease
terms between 24 and 40 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There are
several lease contracts that include extension and termination options,
which are further discussed below.

(@) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the
movements during the year are as follows:

REBER/EEA

AEEREAREEENHEMES@AER
WMEEAL - BIEIEL — XM KM E
FUWRERE L A A24Z40F - MIRIK
ZEITHHEEMNGKGR BT ENR-A
EME-REBBIZ10FE -HELH R
HER24Z240F - —RME - XEE TR
HELEEMASBUIEERERE - BT
HEANITETERRKIEEEZR HE—F
SR T °

() EREEE

0 AEEEREEENEDELS
BT

Leased Leasehold

properties land Total

HEWE HELH# &5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BT IT BT IT

As at 1 January 2021 M2021FE1H1H 29,856 6,579 36,435

Additions RE 33,430 10,362 43,792

Depreciation charge FEXH (14,962) (541) (15,503)

Exchange realignment [E A 2,274 401 2,675
As at 31 December 2021 and 202112 A31B &

1 January 2022 202291 A1H 50,598 16,801 67,399
Additions = 20,150 - 20,150
Depreciation charge TEXH (15,812) (536) (16,348)
Exchange realignment TE 5 3% (3,601) (1,225) (4,826)
As at 31 December 2022 2022612 431 H 51,335 15,040 66,375
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15. LEASE (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(9]

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during
the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 January K1 A1BERAEE

Additions NE

Accretion of interest recognised during the year “F A& R T B 1218
Payments NEA

Exchange realignment DE 5, 8 B

15. HE )

REBER/EBEA (®)

(b)

HEEE

FR-HEABENREERESHNT

2022
2022 F
HK$'000
BT T

45,378
20,150
3,013

(16,501)
(2,143)

Carrying amount at 31 December K12 A3 HEEE

49,897

Analysed into: DA
Current portion mENE
Non-current portion EmRENE

EA X
36,744

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 40 to
the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are
as follow:

HERENE
EREEERESH

Interest on lease liabilities
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Expense relating to short-term
leases (included in cost of sales and
administrative expenses)

HEREERRNRAX
(BEHERARITHAX)

(o)

2021
20214
HK$'000
ST T

31,487
33,430
2,040
(22,470)
891

45,378

11,796
33,582

HEABENIIH B ST RENRM B HREK

MsE40 -
REZERAEHEEED
2022
2022 F
HK$'000
BET T

3,013

16,348

MIBERERNATER

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

2022F EHE TEIE

SR

2021
20214
HK$'000
BT IT
2,040
15,503

7,999

25,542
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

15. LEASE (Continued) 15. HE @)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) EEBEREEA(E)

(d) Extension and termination option (d) ZERRALEERE
The Group has several lease contracts that include extension FEBETHERHNBELER MK ILE
and termination options. These options are negotiated by BEE -ZSEREERETEEER UE
management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset EERHEEEMASG WARAEAEHE
portfolio and they are aligned with the Group’s business needs. HEBHR - HERRP T EBEITE
There are no period following the exercise date of extension and ER MR IEEREZ B ZRHHR -

termination options that are not included in the lease terms.

(e) Total cash outflow for leases (e) HEBESRHHAE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of RERERTPEENHERS KRBT
cash flows is as follows: wnr

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Within operating activities KLETEBN 4,302 7,999
Within financing activities MEEEHNA 16,501 22,470
20,803 30,469
The Group as a lessor AEBERBEAA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) under operating AREBERBEEHELHHERREYZE (M
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for a term of one to three H14)  KRHBEEOEERRA—E=F K
years. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was SERFRERNES KA BEE 2,310,000
HK$2,310,000 (2021: HK$1,619,000), details of which are included in 70 (2021 4F = %% 1,619,0007T) * FFIEE A
note 5 to the financial statements. BT MEES ©
At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable 7R2022F 12 A31H » ANEBEELFE 5 7R 2K H
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases AR R A A BB ) 48 5 10 & e U ey R BE IR A8
with its tenants are as follows: ENFHOT

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
HK$ 000 HK$'000
BT T ST T

Within one year —FA 1,547 44
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

16. GOODWILL 16. &
HK$'000
BT
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2021 M2021F1 A1 BRKA REREFE 20,939
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BE BT BB 2 R 9,979
Eliminated on deregistration of a subsidiary FEH — B A R 8H (700)
Exchange realignment ME 5, B 130
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2021 M2021F12 A31 BRI A R REFE 30,348
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 B (7)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2022 R2022F 12 A31HNAERRREFE 30,341
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the BPBEBESHAINEONENEE EENUNTER
following cash-generating units (“CGUs") for impairment testing: SELEM((REEELEN]) ERERS -
. Regional commodity inspection service-rendering CGUs in Greater . K AR EE @ A b [ 1 7 R AR 50 PR TS B 4R
China; HeEESM
e Regional commodity inspection service-rendering CGUs in o VRO A S M P A BR AR TS HR L3R
Singapore; SEEEMN
. Regional environmental testing service-rendering CGUs in Greater . R EE R A R IR IR AR 5 RIS R4
China; and WEELEEMN &
. Regional commodity inspection service-rendering CGUs in other . O EL b [ B 30 [ 1 P O A B AR T 1R 4
locations. REEEER -
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B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

16. GOODWILL (Continued)

16.

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to the CGUs are as follows:

Regional commodity inspection

service — rendering in Greater China 72 oo A 58 AR 7%
Regional commodity inspection

service — rendering in Singapore
Regional environmental testing

service — rendering in Greater China

A% 5 AR 7%

BRIE B IRT
Regional commodity inspection

7 fn 1% 5% AR 7%

service — rending in other locations

MR E R AR T

TAFN NS AR L B b o 1 7

RARPERERNERME

RE A1 [ R A b R

BE@
SPEEESELSMOPEER/ENT

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
2,712 2,696
17,332 17,228
1,894 2,070
8,403 8,354
30,341 30,348

During 2021, the subsidiary containing regional commodity inspection
service-rendering CGU was deregistered during the year, and the
goodwill of which was derecognised accordingly.

The recoverable amount of the regional commodity inspection service-
rendering CGU in Greater China has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 17%
(2021: 18%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
regional commodity inspection service-rendering unit beyond the five-
year period is 2% (2021: 2%). In the opinion of the directors, there is
no impairment required as at the end of each reporting period.

The recoverable amount of the regional commodity inspection service-
rendering CGU in Singapore which was acquired in year 2019 has
been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 17% (2021: 22%). The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the regional commodity inspection
service-rendering unit beyond the five-year period is 2% (2021: 2%). In
the opinion of the directors, there is no impairment required as at the
end of each reporting period.

224 China Leon Inspection Holding Limited ~Annual Report 2022

R20216F - BEWEEE QBB REIZER
SELBUNMBARNRERND Y Bt
RIFFERE®E -

RAFERMNMEEERERRBREERS
EXBEMNA kBB RERBES RS
BAEFAEEMET  ZESREEA
e RERERERE A F BN A
BEAEEX - BRI R ETE A AT IR R
B17% (20214 : 18%) ° HEE (2 4 78 iR
BRSREECBAAFHENBE S REMN
FRMEREAE2% (202145 : 2%) - EER
B REREHRBATIRRAE

REMEEEEmRRRGIRHEREE
EBEAR2019F 5 HaJ e B RIE
FRBEREBEAFAECAEENETE %
RenEBANSREEEMMERERSF
HEMYBBEEREE - ARNBR e RETEN
RFLATARIR R A 17% (20214 : 22%) - &
3% 1 7 on 4 50 AR 75 5 4 BE U B 4R T A HA A
WIREMEMEAIERER2% (20214 ¢
2%) c BEERE  REWMEARBEAERAE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the regional environmental testing service-
rendering CGU in Greater China has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 13%
(2021: 18%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
regional environmental testing service-rendering unit beyond the five-
year period is 2% (2021: 2%). In the opinion of the directors, there is
no impairment required as at the end of the reporting period.

The recoverable amount of the regional commodity inspection service-
rendering CGU in other location has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 17%
(2021: 22%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of
the regional commodity inspection service-rendering unit beyond the
five-year period is 2% (2021: 2%). In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, there is no impairment required as at the end of the
reporting period.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the CGUs
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections
to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margin — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved during the year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements and expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of each CGU
to exceed its recoverable amount.

16.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

BE@

RAFERNHEERSERBREREEES
ELXBEMNRESBENIREFRARSRE
BAFEFREEMEE  ZReREER
NeREREMERE R FHEMNI %A
HAHRE -ARESREBAMBATANIER X
A13% (20214 1 18%) - #HEE @ IR IER
BRRSREEEMEBAFHBNESREMN
FRRIEERA2% (202145 :2%) cEER
B RIEBAREAERRAE -

REMEEMEEEREBRREREERS
EXBUNAKBSBHIRERBARERE
FERFEFERAEEMETE  ZReREER
LEREREMmiERERFHRNYT KA
HAHE - BRBESREBAMOATENIE X
B 17% (20214 © 22%) o 5 % 15 7 M %
BRRGREEMCBATFEHRHENBLRERN
FRMERRA2% (20214 1 2%) > KA T
EERAE RMEHKRBAIZRE-

SFER2022F 2021 E 12 A3THNBR & &E
SEMNFERAEERREETEBRE - UTAE
EEREHES TS TENY EmEETRER
FHEEEBEEE

BEENX —AREEREENXEENE
ERRNFAMERANFHENEK - BIEF K
RIRTH LB TSR EMETT -

BRI — IR AR R ARAEREX - R
T BRAEM AR E AR

EEERE EUZEFEKRMNEMEEE
PP IreERRRAELFEMNREEBG
HA W el ¢ 58
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B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2022
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of
accumulated amortisation
Addition
Transfers (note 13)
Amortisation provided
during the year
Disposal
Exchange realignment

2022912 A31H

72022481 A1 8
FRAR - 1Bk BT 5H

=

B (MFE13)

FREHEE

At 31 December 2022, net of
accumulated amortisation

R2022F12 4318
Pk 2T

At 31 December 2022:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

20225 12H318 :
BEN
et

Net carrying amount

SREEE

31 December 2021
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of

2021%12A831H
R2021F1A1HH

17.

Patents and
licenses

BRI R pe R
HK$'000
BT

1,670
(321)

1,349

BREE

Software

LA
HK$'000
BT

3,294
(1,261)

2,033

Customer
relationships
and
inspection
certifications
EFRARR
RgARE
HK$’'000
BT

Total

a4t
HK$'000
BT

accumulated amortisation AR - HBR B AT G 3 2,226 1,407 3,636
Addition =T - 75 - 75
Amortisation provided FEHEE

during the year (2) (315) (460) (777)
Exchange realignment VE A - 15 7 22
At 31 December 2021, net of 72021 12H318 -

accumulated amortisation bR 2T HESH 1 2,001 954 2,956
At 31 December 2021: M2021%F12H8318 :

Cost BN 15 3,158 2,638 5,811

Accumulated amortisation R (14) (1,157) (1,684) (2,855)

Net carrying amount BRmEFE 1 2,001 954 2,956
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

B 5 R WRIE
Impairment BB

Trade receivables

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

18. E5 BWFIR

2022 2021
2022 5 20214
HK$ 000 HK$'000
BT T BRI
177,950 138,323
(5,648) (3,540)
172,302 134,783

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally ranged from on demand and
up to three months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

Within 3 months 3EANUA

Over 3 to 6 months AR EZ6EA
Over 6 months to 1 year 6EMANEETF
Over 1 to 2 years 1FAEE2F

AEFREEEPHNRGGERIBEREER
HEMEFPBEERBNRGI - EEHER
NFRERRRZ=AA AKESKER
2HAEEEKFIE SREEABENE
ZEHEs AREXRIE HERBFAS
BEETMNEARIEMERER -BHE
WHRETE R -

RBEMRIRIBHZ A2 I0RIBRE
BOEZRERIENRE DT

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BB T
148,564 113,794
13,273 12,712
5,201 5,065
5,264 3,212
172,302 134,783

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$29,358,000
(2021: HK$23,877,000) which are past due as at the reporting date.
Out of the past due balances, HK$16,050,000 (2021: HK$10,993,000)
has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
due to the management’s historical experience on the settlement
pattern or record from these debtors and the good business relationship
with these debtors.

R2022F 12 A31 8 AEBEMNE 5 EKFHIE
Eerrh o BERTEIE A5 1 29,358,000 7T (2021
F B 23,877,00070) K FEUWER KA TR 5 B
Ho @ - RE @&+ - % 16,050,000
70 (20214 : %% 10,993,000 7T) B # Hi90 &
FUA L BEBERZEERALEERANE
SPREBRBELEAREZEES AN
PEBER UEEEEEHEEED -
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. E 5 EWRIE ()

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

BHREFRRERKBEENESMT

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T
At beginning of the year F1 (3,540) (4,237)
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment, net CRIEIBXR),RERR - FHE (2,284) 636
Amount written off as uncollectible 1 5 A A Y B SRR 100 -
Exchange realignment M X P 76 61
At end of year FR (3,540)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other
forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for
more than three years and are not subject to enforcement activity.

As at 31 December 2022, no debtors with significant balances with
gross carrying amounts (2021: HK$35,393,000) were assessed
individually.
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501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. EZFEWFIE @)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TEREINANEEFRABBERAENE HIE
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: WHIEMEERBER
As at 31 December 2022 "2022412A31H
Past due
A
Less than Over
Current 9 months 9 months Total
BN HA LR NEA HiBhEA et
Gross carrying amount  #BBRTE{E 148,592 23,454 5,904 177,950
ECLs TAHEEERE 287 4,721 640 5,648
Average loss rate FrEkx 0.05%-0.27% 0.33%-39.40% 0.42%-100% -
As at 31 December 2021 M2021F12 A31H
Past due
£ 4 B
Less than Over
Current 9 months 9 months Total
B A3 DRNE A BB N E A #ET

Gross carrying amount  #BBRE{E 79,202 17,759 5,969 102,930
ECLs FEHEEEX 569 131 2,757 3,457
Average loss rate Tk R 0.14%-128% 0.16%-1.28% 3.51%-56.2% -
As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s trade receivables 2022F12 A31H - AEENE 5 BWHIA
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$29,358,000 @ - BEREE /B 29,358,000 7T (2021
(2021: HK$23,877,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. F ¢ B #23,877,0007T) WY E WBR XA ¥R & H
Out of the past due balances, HK$16,050,000 (2021: HK$10,993,000) HE il - RE @A ERT - 116,050,000
has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default 7 (20214 : ##10,993,0007T) B @ HI90 K
due to the management’s historical experience on the settlement FU L BEEERZEEHSALEERXNE
pattern or record from these debtors and the good business relationship SRBIGAEREALEZEGEHE AR
with these debtors. PR TEEEEBHEIEED -
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLE ANG

19. AR - HitbBEWRIER HAtb

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT

14,296 17,450
9,301 18,234

23,597 35,684

(75) (76)

23,522 35,608

(385) (1,189)

OTHER ASSET BE
Prepayments T RIR

Deposits, and other receivables & I EAth fE W FKIA

Allowance for credit losses FEBAERE

Portion classified as non-current assets DIEEERBDEENT D

Current portion MENHL 5

23,137 34,419

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits, deposit
paid for purchase of leasehold land and property, plant and equipment,
and deposits with suppliers. Where applicable, an impairment analysis
is performed at each reporting date by considering the probability of
default of comparable companies with published credit ratings.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default and past due amounts.
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance was assessed to
be minimal.
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

21.

PROFIT OR LOSS

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

20. BEARBEFABENESHEE

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Wealth management products B E® 1,710 -
Listed securities EES

— Perpetual equity securities — KAREFES 7,331

The above unlisted investments were wealth management products
issued by banks in Hong Kong. They were mandatorily classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual
cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.

The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss as the Group has not elected to recognise
the fair value gain or loss through other comprehensive income.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

21.

EuidE EMRERBRRITHEITHNIENER
ZEREBEWRH D BERR AR BEFAER
MEMEE BIYAREGNRESRELIH
MERENEERAE -

Pl 70 7 82 3 40358 4 0 4 2 T M o R
A BEKRREE LR E RS
BERAREEHABRNSBREE -

RERBRITHER

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Cash on hand RE 118 9

Bank balances RITHE A 222,136 150,627

Time deposits el -ERCE 8,131 8,672

Cash and bank balances e RIRITEERR 230,385 159,308
Less: Time deposits pledged for borrowings and W AERERRAOEAED

port access right R H) TE BT X 8,672

Non-pledged time deposits with original BERRIBARL =AU LR
maturity of more than three months when AR E BF K
acquired 7,661 -
Cash and cash equivalents RBeRBEEFED 222,254 150,636

2022 FEHRE
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501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to
HK$167,246,000 (2021: HK$84,600,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

22. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 3 months 3EA A

Over 3 to 6 months 3SEANEZ6EA
Over 6 months to 1 year 6EANEETF
Over 1 to 2 years 16 EZE25F

21.

22,

HEeRBITEER®

RITASREESARITHERMEEBF X
REOANE - EMEFRBEAKRENNKR S
FRENREBFA - L IRAEDNEHFHK
FMERBMAE - RITEREERERDER
BeL v Em R ESE B AEENRTT -

RIBERK AEBUARE [AR%E]) &
ERNRE MIRITHEH BB 167,246,000 7T
(20214 : ##84,600,0007T) > AR T
BEEBRAEMER - Kifn - RIFEPBEAH G
EEEEM)R(GERE - EBARNEEER
B AEBEGASBEREETIEERD
BITHARE L BRIELMEE -

B ZENRIER

RIRERRE S EAHZ 5 E 5 EN R
MR E AT T -

2022 2021

2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT

38,805 35,367
2,889 1,117
1,776 2,919

152 110

43,622 39,513

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-
day terms.
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23.

24,

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Short-term advances received from customers

Rendering of services

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EWEFF B H
REHIRY

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

2021

2022 5 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BRI
2,794

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to render AHNBEBEIEHRG M BERDE G -
services. The increase in contract liabilities in 2022 was mainly due to BHBENR2022FE N F EHENFEIR
the increase in short-term advances received from customers in relation BB REEBENCRE P EBARREMN -

to the provision of inspection services at the end of the year.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Accrued salaries, wages and benefits
Other taxes payable

Payable to vendors of property, plant and equipment

Consideration payable
Other payables

Portion classified as non-current liabilities

Current portion

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no fixed terms of

settlement.

24, B ENFIER ERTIEHE

2022 2021
2022 5 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BRI
EitEe TEREF 35,625 37,510
H fh FE TR R 2,987 1,364
R - BE REREEER 13,505 3,655
EARE - 1,872
H b T3R8 20,876 10,089
72,993 54,490
DEAERBDEENLD (1,102) -
mE 71,891 54,490

HEEAREITFERYERTEER -
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501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER 25. st EH{TER R HEMER

BORROWINGS
As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021
202212 831H R2021%F12 4318
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%)  Maturity  HK$000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BERFE (%) IR B Sl £ T (%) HR BETR
Current mE
Bank loans — unsecured RITER —EER 1,120 - - -
Bank loans — guaranteed/secured  SRITEH — BER,/EHEA 25,329 35 2022 19,437
26,449 19,437
Non-current ERE
Other borrowings Hibfax
— unsecured — mIER - 2023 3,463
3,463
26,449 22,900
Analysed into: iR
Bank loans: BITER:
Within one year —FR 19,437
In the second year RE_F 3,463
22,900
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank loans amounting to 2022612 A31 8 REBERITERAK
HK$14,106,000 were secured by the Group’s certain buildings of 14,106,000 T AR EEBE THWE BE k&
property, plant and equipment (Note 13), and that the Group's BZEFERB (ME13)  MAKERTE
bank loans amounting to HK$11,195,000 (31 December 2021: RS #11,195,0007T (202112 A31H &
HK$12,237,000) were secured by certain investment properties (Note #12,237,00070) A E TR E W EEEM (I
14). FE14) o
The bank loans carry interest of floating rates determined by reference R2022F 12 A31H - RITEFIRKELE S
to the Loan Prime Rate set by National Interbank Funding Centre, the 2ERITREREREDONERTIZREN
PRC, i.e., effective interest rates of 3.1 to 4.1% (2021: 3.5%) per RMELEFBFERTE - BNEREMNER A3
annum as at 31 December 2022. Z4.1% (20214 : 3.5%) °
Other borrowings with principal amounts of HK$3,463,000 were loans HE SR A £ R A B 3,463,000 Jhk B
from LEI Xihu, the non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, which MEARFFERRREAENER - BN
were repayable in year 2022. TBAR 2022 FEE -
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Company issued HK$50,000,000, 2% convertible bonds at a
par value of HK$1 each on 11 June 2021. The convertible bonds are
denominated in HK$. The convertible bonds entitle the holders to
convert them into ordinary shares of the Company since the date
falling six months of the date of issue of the convertible bonds to up
to and including the date which is 3 days prior to the maturity date on
11 June 2026 at a conversion price of HK$1.63 per conversion share.
The conversion price shall be adjusted as provided in the convertible
bond instrument in specific cases. The holder has the option to require
the Company to redeem all or part of the convertible bonds together
with any then outstanding unpaid interest on the dates, including
third anniversary, the day falling three years and six months, the
fourth anniversary and the day falling four years and six months of the
issue date of the convertible bond with redemption price at 118%,
121%, 124% and 127% of the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible bonds respectively. If the convertible bonds have not been
converted, they will be redeemed on 11 June 2026 at 130% of the
then outstanding principal amount of those convertible bonds or any
part thereof together with outstanding interest accrued thereon.

The convertible bonds contain two components, debt component
and derivative (including conversion and early redemption options)
component. The Group designated the convertible bonds as a whole
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition.

The movement of the convertible bonds for the year is set out as below:

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

6. ITARES

M2021F6 A1 H  ARARIZREBEESNHEE
17T %% 17 78 # 50,000,000 JT #9 2% A # % &
Fo MR ELHSNBEIE - TR ES B
FTRAEAEFRATRKRESETHBRRSE
BEBHZE2026F6 811 BRI EE3HAEH
(BE%AE) RERETRERRKRMNDEE1.63
TTHEBARRRLEKR RETEBERLT &
BEBEABBRESF T ANRTETAE -
REATEERTBRRESETHBPE=R
FEA =ZFAEAEH - FRAFEA RN
FREAEREAMEREARADFIZRAE
BEAMBEEFANSEN118% * 121% * 124%
N 127% BRI EE R 2 P ek o i R EFH
HEREME R REERTHE - AT RKRE
HoREE M - B 10202696 B 11 B %%
REEATRRESIEFREMEITD EACTED
130% FE R ZE A RREFERERERET
FIE -

AMEESEEmMERD - BEBE D &7
AETR(BHEBBERRENBELRE) B - A
SERNERRBEREEIVERESFERLZ
RABEFABENEHEE -

FRABRBRESZESHEIIMT

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year FYIREE 57,953 -
Upon issue HIT1R - 50,000
Changes in fair value charged to profit or loss Jigi=Egitl = /N (7,330) 7,953
Exchange realignment M 5 2 238 -
Carrying amount at the end of the year FREEE 50,861 57,953

Monte Carlo model is used for valuation of the convertible bonds. The
key inputs used in the model are disclosed in note 39.

ARRRASEERERD Y BRESET
HE - ZEREANEZE ABERNE
3995 o
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

27. DEFERRED TAX 27. EEFIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are FRNEERIBEBEREENESHHOT
as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEERE
Fair value
adjustment
on intangible
assets
arising from
Right-of  Withholding acquisition of
use assets tax subsidiaries Others
il 4400
AFEEHN
BNEEN
FREEE BOH AAEESRE Hit &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETR BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2022 R2022%F181H1 7,931 4,194 349 147 12,621
Deferred tax ERER TR
Charged/(credited) to the statement ~ ER3NK &,/ (Gt A)

of profit or loss during the year Bak (f10)

(note 10) (1,959) (718)
Exchange realignment ELRE (358) (535)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R2022%12 A31 BHEE

31 December 2022 MEEGEESE 11,368
Deferred tax assets EEHREEE

Provision for
impairment
of trade
receivables
Lease and other
liabilities receivables
ESEW
MIER HA
FE W k8
HEEE BERE &%
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BET T
At 1 January 2022 M2022F181H 7,931 590 8,521
Deferred tax IRIEF I
Credited to the statement of FRFFABREE
profit or loss during the year (note 10) (M 10)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 B
Gross deferred tax assets at 7R2022F 12 A31 HIEERIE
31 December 2022 BEBTE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

27. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 27. BEBLE )

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are FRNEEREBEREENEHNT | (&)
as follows: (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities EERHEEE

Fair value

adjustment

on intangible

assets

arising from

Withholding  acquisition of
tax subsidiaries Others Total

O LA i Bt

NAEER

BIZEED

EHH QA BERAE Hith EE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEF T BETT BT

At 1 January 2021 MR2021%F181H 4,070 387 143 4,600
Deferred tax EEFIE

Credited to the statement of R ABZER

profit or loss during the year  (Fff5£10)

(note 10) - (49) - (49)
Exchange realignment PE WA 124 11 4 139

Gross deferred tax liabilities at 7202112 A31H
31 December 2021 RIERIE B (B 4858 4,194 349 147 4,690

Deferred tax assets EEHEEE

Provision for

impairment

of trade

receivables

and other

receivables

Z 5 ER

RIE R H M

JFE W8

VERIEEE i

HK$'000

PEMET T

At 1 January 2021 MH2021F1 818 618

Deferred tax EER I8

Charged to the statement of profit or loss FRMKkEERE (M)

during the year (note 10) (46)

Exchange realignment ME 5, B 18

Gross deferred tax assets at 31 December 2021 MR2021F12 A3 HELERIEEEL 590
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

27. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 27. IEERIE &)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities MIBmME  ETECRBEEERAGER
have been offset in the statement of financial position. The following BRI RSP o« LT RAE B R
is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial EMENREHIBERDIT

reporting purposes:

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in R & B ARR R HERA
the consolidated statement of RIERIE & R EE
financial position 590
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RERE B AR I 3% TSR
in the consolidated statement of BRERIBBEFE
financial position 4,690
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The Group has accumulated tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$67,441,000 (2021: HK$50,453,000) that will expire in one to five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

The Group also has accumulated tax losses arising in Hong Kong and
other countries/regions of HK$104,299,000 (2021: HK$57,935,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. The Group is therefore liable for withholding tax on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
obtained the Hong Kong tax resident qualification and subsequently the
Company is subject to 5% withholding tax on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China.

Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of certain temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to HK$135,456,000 (2021: HK$68,207,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

27. IEFERLIE (7)

AEERTEAMEENRARBABRRE
#67,441,0007T (20214 : B ¥ 50,453,000
U)o R — = R R BB DA 8 R OR FE R TR
R

AEBMMIRESREMER tEEE R
T I8 518 75 15 104,299,000 7T (2021 4 « B
57,935,0007T) - ] & & R EA A A PR 4 8 S 18
EERROLERRERTFNE -

WA —BEHENEBEERELIREEE
ARBTARAIREE B KRR ERT S F AT K 35
BRI -

RIBEFRBICEEMBRE) - £ BE R
RN E R EMINEIREETIRKRE AR
M10%TEFNF - 5% E B 2008 1 A1 H B
£ BEARN2007F12 A31BENETF -
At - ANE BB AR B AR K 8 5% S
BRABMY KM EBATEINE - WP ERN
HWEIINHIEEEMTEREEER 2HETA
e AIRAREMNEMRBEE  -HE
2019 12 A31HIEFE - AQRIREEER
BEREWR HEBEARQBZEABNTHAHAK
SR ZEM B R BT R B AR B IR 5% B R AL
MIET -

B £ [ B S ) R M R B R B B B
M BERBEEREEZRAIERRETKRA
BERE D - AN AR A B S R A B BB
BARZFBEREGEME TERMEEZ B
135,456,000 7T (20214 : &% 68,207,000 7T)
EHRIEE R TE R -

A2 ) 1) R A 0 B 3 4 B 248 B
e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

28. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares 31 December 2022
[8v) 72022 12H31H
shares
REOHAE
Issued and fully paid: EBITRER
Ordinary shares of &A% {8 0.00005 % T HY
US$0.00005 each =Rl 487,861

28. R

31 December 2021
2021912 A831H

Number of Nominal Number of Nominal

value shares value

{8 e tn 8 B H{E

‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR BT T T BT

A summary of movements in the Group's issued capital is as follows:

443,510 172

AEBECHTEAEHHIWT

Number of Share

shares capital

RHEE fig 7%

HK$'000

BT

At 1 January 2021 R202141 818 400,000 155
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options E AR T M BT AR D 3,201 1
Issue of bonus shares (note 1) BATHLIR (et 1) 40,309 16
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 2021912 A31 B &2022F 1818 443,510 172
Issue of bonus shares (note 2) BATHLIR (M52 2) 44,351 17
At 31 December 2022 72022612 A31H 487,861 189

Note 1:During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company issued 40,308,800 Ktz -

bonus shares to the existing shareholders (the 2021 Bonus Issue”), on the
basis of one new share for every ten shares then currently held on 5 July 2021.

Note 2:During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company issued 44,350,980 Kiat2 :

bonus shares to the existing shareholders (the 2022 Bonus Issue”), on the
basis of one new share for every ten shares then currently held on 4 July 2022.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Group’s employees, directors and other
participants in order to retain and provide incentive to the employees
of the Group to achieve its business objectives. The Scheme became
effective on 5 May 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from that date. The refreshment of the
Scheme mandate limit was approved on 29 September 2021.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at
the date of approval by the shareholders of the Company and as such
limit is refreshed by the shareholders from time to time. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each eligible participant under the Scheme and
any other option schemes (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue. Where any further grant of options to an
eligible participant would result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to such eligible participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
representing in aggregate over 1% of the total number of shares
in issue, such further grant must be separately approved by the
shareholders at the general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors of the Company. For the share options granted up to 31
December 2022, the vesting period varies from nil to three years and
the exercisable period is five years commencing from each vesting date.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

29. [BIRESTE

RNAREE — BB B ([PERRMERT &) -
EERRKMAEEEBKINEG ERSHE
REEEREIR - BREFEMNEERSE
EREASEES EEhHEMSEE B
EHRBREHEEETAEERS  LUEKE
XBEE - BRETENR2017F5858 4%
W BRIESITEUBSEE  BAIB % B AR
10FREBES - EFHERETERERRED
202149 A 29 BER#E -

PR AR 5 8 P B ST 81 I A ) B 4 8 AR B 5T B
THREOMME BRBAEEITE M A 2 2 ITHA
MHREHE A AN SBEEN AR REL
EEHEETROEBRRIEEHREH LR
) 10% ° AR 15 8 e i 5t &) B () E A BB B
B EREMARITENMA RITEERE
BITEMATTFETORNORSHE TEEB
BB EITRNHI30% °

PMEARI 124 B EA A i R AR 45 8 A i 5 81 I A
MEMBEREFSEAERAERBEER
HH BB (BRETEREARITEMBEE)
BITEMDSHTRETHRITORMNEE T
SHEBDETRNARN1% - HAaEKR
MEE-SEHTMNERE BERBERX
E-FREZB (BFEZA) LEMI12(EA B
RATTRAABAEER2RERBNBRE (2
BEITR  EHERHARTENBRE) R 2
BIRBTETHRMABEED HTRN
BB 1% R — PR HBREALHRR
PR K& EERIHEAE -

T RENITTERAARNRRIESRE - ¥
REZE2022F12 831 BREREERE - 5
BHRZTIN =FTE TFEHLEEEGERE
AHRASE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 29. BRESTE e

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

In the event of any alteration in the capital structure of the Company
while any option remains exercisable, such corresponding alterations
(if any) shall be made in the number or nominal amount of shares
subject to the option so far as unexercised, and/or the subscription
price, provided that any alteration shall be made on the basis that
the proportion of the issued share capital of the Company to which a
grantee is entitled after such alteration shall remain the same as that to
which he or she or it was entitled before such alteration and that the
aggregate subscription price payable by a grantee on the full exercise of
any option shall remain as nearly as possible the same.

The number of shares and exercise price under the Scheme disclosed
below has been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the bonus issue of
share that became effective on 4 July 2022 and 5 July 2021 (note 28).
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VA Ko AR N\ Bt 2 T 77 (58 A o0 8 A A T B AN 2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 29. BIRESTE
Particulars and movements of the target shares under the Scheme: BRESIE T EORENFERE
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted  Exercised Lapsed at Lapsed at
1 January during during during 31 December during 31 December Exercise  Exercise
Grantee Date of offer Notes 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 price  period
Ha021% #0215 H2022%
1818 R11E  R20211E  R20211E 128318 K202 128318
ERAL ZHNRA (i3 351 R (ki &M KT K3 E35):d TkE &S
'000 '000 '000 '000 ‘000 ‘000 '000 '000

T T TR T T T T TR
Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted
(mR%) (&RE) (8R%) (§3%) (8% (88 (B8 (£8®)

Directors

2

YANG Rongbing 23 July 2018 (b) 1,210 - - - 1,210 - 1,210 1168 23 July 2018 t0 22 July 2023
B&EE 2018%7A23R 2018%7A23BZ 2023457 A28
YANG Ronghing 23 July 2018 (b) 1,210 - - - 1210 - 1,210 1168 23 July 2019 t0 22 July 2024

BRE 201857A23F 20197 423 Z20457 A28
YANG Rongbing 23 July 2018 (b) 1210 - - - 1210 - 1210 1168 23 July 2020 to 22 July 2025

BEE 2018%57A23F 202057A23BZ 202557 A28
I Xiangli 15 July 2021 © - 1320 - - 1320 - 1320 1945 15 July 2022 to 14 July 2027

ZRA| 2001577158 02F7 A15AZ202757 R 148
LI Xiangli 15 July 2021 © - 1320 - - 1320 - 1320 1.945 15 July 2023 to 14 July 2028

TR 0214577158 203457A158 22028457 A 148
LI Xiangli 15 July 2021 © - 1,760 - - 1,760 - 1,760 1945 15 July 2024 to 14 July 2029

ZRA| 0157R158 20457 A1SAZ2029%57 A 148
ZHANG Alying 15 July 2021 (© - 825 - - 825 - 825 1.945 15 July 2022 to 14 July 2027

RER 0214577158 2022457F15BZ 2027457 A 148
ZHANG Aiying 15 July 2021 © - 825 - - 825 - 825 1945 15 July 2023 to 14 July 2028

KER 01%57R158 02357 A 158 Z 202857 A 14F
ZHANG Aiying 15 July 2021 © - 1,100 - - 1,100 - 1,100 1.945 15 July 2024 to 14 July 2029

REL 20157 A158 204F7 A1SHE2029%7 A 148
Ui 15 July 2021 © - 990 - - 990 - 990 1945 15 July 2022 to 14 July 2027

21 201F7A158 20257 A15HZ202757A 148
LuYi 15 July 2021 (© - 990 - - 990 - 990 1.945 15 July 2023 to 14 July 2028

2 0214577158 2023457R158 2202847 A 148
LU Yi 15 July 2021 © - 1,320 - - 1320 - 1,320 1945 15 July 2024 to 14 July 2029

2 201878158 2045715820297 A 148
YANG Rongbing 15 July 2021 © - 1,155 - - 1,155 - 1,155 1945 15 July 2022 to 14 July 2027

BEE W21%77158 022457R15BZ 202747 A 148
YANG Rongbing 15 July 2021 © - 1,155 - - 1,155 - 1,155 1945 15 July 2023 to 14 July 2028

B&EE 0157A158 203F7A15AZ202857 A 148
YANG Rongbing 15 July 2021 © - 1,540 - - 1,540 - 1,540 1.945 15 July 2024 to 14 July 2029

oL 324 0214577158 202457 F15BZ2029%7 A 148
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 29. BBIRERTE 2
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted  Exercised Lapsed at Lapsed at
1 January during during during 31 December during 31 December Exercise  Exercise

Grantee Date of offer Notes 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 price  period
R2021 5 R2021% R2022
1818 R20211E  R2021%  R2021% 128318 Ra2F 128318

ERAL EXHBH (i1 ik Rit i b3 L) 3 KE e &S

'000 '000 '000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000 '000

TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted
(mfE)  (EEB) (9% (E8E) (gHE)  (BfE)  (E8B) (283

Other

b

Other employee 4 July 2017 (@) 2,487 - (1,600) (109) 778 27 751 1.058 4 July 2018 t0 3 July 2023

HibES 201757748 201857 A4R%2023F7A3R

Other employee 4 July 2017 (a) 2,378 - (1,378) (109) 891 31 860 1.058 4 July 2019 to 3 July 2024

HifES 201757 A48 2019574020457 A38

Other employee 4 July 2017 (a) 3315 - (883) (145) 2,287 (80) 2,207 1.058 4 July 2020 to 3 July 2025

HipES 2017%7 A48 20067 A40Z2005F7 A38

Other employee 15 July 2021 (© - 7,623 - - 7,623 (297) 7,326 1945 15 July 2022 to 14 July 2027

HibEE 2021%57A158 002%F7A15822027%57A148

Other employee 15 July 2021 (0 - 7,623 - - 7,623 (297) 7326 1.945 15 July 2023 to 14 July 2028

HifEE 001577158 203F7A 1582202857 A 148

Other employee 15 July 2021 © - 10,164 - - 10,164 (39%) 9,768 1945 15 July 2024 to 14 July 2029

HipfES 021157158 20457 A15HE2029%7 A 148
11,810 39,710 (3,861) (363) 47,29 (1,128) 46,168 -

Exercisable at the end 11,810 - - - 7,586 - 19,064 -

of the year
AFAERER
Weighted average 1.09 - - - 1.81 - 1.81 -
exercise price

METHTEER

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in BN TEE NS AL TR AR

the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the BIRAE A AL B EL A -

Company'’s share capital.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Notes:

(a) On 4 July 2017, the board of directors of the Company approved the initial
grant only to the Group’s employees. The total number of the target shares
under the initial grant was 8,000,000, representing 2% of the then issued
share capital of the Company.

There are three unlocking dates: being the expiry dates of the first anniversary,
second anniversary and third anniversary of the grant date, subject to the
vesting conditions and upon expiry of which, 30%, 30% and 40% of the trust
benefit units granted to each participant shall be unlocked. The lock-up period
is from the grant date to each of the aforesaid unlocking dates, during which
the disposal of the trust benefit units is prohibited.

(b) On 23 July 2018, the board of directors of the Company approved the grant to
a director, YANG Rongbing. The total number of the target shares under this
grant was 3,000,000, representing 0.75% of the then issued share capital of
the Company.

There are three unlocking dates: being the date of grant, the expiry dates of
first anniversary and second anniversary of grant date, subject to the vesting
conditions and upon expiry of which one third of the trust benefit units granted
to participant shall be unlocked. The lock-up period is from the grant date to
each of the aforesaid unlocking dates, during which the disposal of the trust
benefit units is prohibited.

() On 15 July 2021, the board of directors of the Company approved the grant to
4 directors and the Group’s employees. The total number of the target shares
under this grant was 36,100,000, representing 8.14% of the then issued share
capital of the Company. The grant of the share options to LI Xiangli, ZHANG
Aiying and LIU Yi were approved by the independent non-executive directors on
15 July 2021 and were approved by the shareholders on 29 September 2021.

There are three unlocking dates: being the expiry dates of the first anniversary,
second anniversary and third anniversary of the date of offer, subject to the
vesting conditions and upon expiry of which, 30%, 30% and 40% of the trust
benefit units granted to each participant shall be unlocked. The lock-up period
is from the grant date to each of the aforesaid unlocking dates, during which
the disposal of the trust benefit units is prohibited.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
equity-settled share option expense of HK$7,918,000 (2021:
HK$5,228,000).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the Company had 46,167,770 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 9.46% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at the date of this Annual Report.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

29. BIRESTE (»)
B3 -

(a) MR2017F 7848 ARrESSHEERELE
BEEHRRE - ERREETENRNEEA
8,000,000 %  EARA A ERFEHITRA2% ©

HHE=-MEFEZEE  NERLBEHENSE @ £=
BMBE=ARAFERzB -BITBBHKEEMT
R REAERE  BRTE&2EE30% -
30% M40% M EFE 2 m BB T UL - 25
HRARLPME LM ESHER - HERILHE

(ST R B -

(b) M2018F7A23H ARGl EECH EHES
BEENR T ZERLETENRDERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

30. SHARE AWARD SCHEME 30. R EBIETE

On 27 October 2020 (the “Adoption Date”), the Company adopted
a share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) to recognise
the contributions by certain persons (“Eligible Persons”), including
employees and directors of companies within the Group, entity in which
the Group holds any equity interests (“Invested Entity”), adviser,
consultant or expert in any area of business or business development
of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity and other group or
classes of participants who have contributed or may contribute by way
of joint venture, business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group, and to give incentives to them
in order to retain them for the continuing operation and development
of the Group, and to attract suitable personnel for further development
of the Group. Subject to any early termination as may be determined
by directors of the Company, the Share Award Scheme is valid and
effective for 10 years from the Adoption Date (the “Award Period”).

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the directors of the Company
may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion, select any Eligible
Persons to participate in the Share Award Scheme as selected
participants and determine the shares to be granted, vesting criteria
and conditions, and period for the shares to be vested, subject to the
terms and condition set out in the Share Award Scheme. The directors
of the Company shall not grant further awards if they would result in
the number of the Award Shares (defined as below) under the Share
Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the total number of shares in issue as
at the Adoption Date.

The Company established a trust to purchase shares of the Company
for the benefit of employees and the directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries under the Share Award Scheme (the “Award Shares”).
Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme, the Company has
appointed a trustee, The Core Trust Company Limited (“Trustee”),
to administer the Share Award Scheme and to purchase and hold the
Award Shares during the Award Period.

Unless the board of directors determines otherwise at its absolute
discretion, an award shall automatically lapse upon (i) the voluntary
resignation or dismissal, or by termination of his employment or
service in accordance with the termination provisions of his contract
of employment or service by the Group otherwise than by reason of
redundancy; or (i) termination of the selected participant’s employment
or early termination of the contractual engagement with the relevant
member of the Group by reasons of misconduct or otherwise pursuant
to law or employment or engagement contract.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

If there occurs an offer by way of takeover, merger, scheme of
arrangement, share repurchase or otherwise, all the outstanding Award
Shares shall immediately vest on the date when such offer becomes or
is declared unconditional or in the case of a scheme of arrangement on
the record date for determining entitlements under such scheme and
such date shall be deemed the vesting date.

If there is an event of change in control of the Company, whether by
way of offer, merger, scheme of arrangement or otherwise, unless
otherwise directed by the board of directors of the Company at its
absolute discretion, all the outstanding Award Shares shall immediately
vest on the date when such change of control event becomes or is
declared unconditional and such date shall be deemed the vesting date.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Trustee purchased
an aggregate of 5,516,000 shares of the Company from the market
at a total consideration of approximately HK$5,920,000 (including
directly attributable incremental costs) and the shares purchased at the
weighted average market price of HK$1.07 per share. No shares were
granted to the Eligible Persons pursuant to the Share Award Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Trustee purchased an
aggregate of 4,400,000 shares (including 3,480,000 shares purchased
before the 2021 Bonus Issue) of the Company from the market at a
total consideration of approximately HK$6,309,000 (including directly
attributable incremental costs) and the shares purchased at the
weighted average market price of HK$1.43 per share during the year. A
total of 3,533,750 shares (3,887,125 shares after the 2021 Bonus Issue)
were granted to 10 eligible participants, including 4 executive directors
and 6 employees on 29 January 2021 pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme, representing approximately 0.88% of the then total number
of issued shares. The estimated fair value of each share granted was
HK$1.18, which was determined using market price of granted date.
The Group recognised equity-settled share award expense amounting
to HK$4,170,000 during the year ended 31 December 2021.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

30. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

31.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Trustee purchased an
aggregate of 2,932,000 shares (including 1,528,000 shares purchased
before the 2022 Bonus Issue) of the Company from the market at a
total consideration of approximately HK$4,085,000 (including directly
attributable incremental costs) and the shares purchased at the
weighted average market price of HK$1.39 per share during the year. A
total of 3,029,491 shares (3,332,440 shares after the 2022 Bonus Issue)
were granted to 15 eligible participants, including 2 executive directors
and 13 employees on 10 May 2022 pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme, representing approximately 0.68% of the then total number
of issued shares. The estimated fair value of each share granted was
HK$1.39, which was determined using market price of granted date.
A total of 2,702,393 shares were granted to 14 eligible participants,
including 3 executive directors and 11 employees on 28 December
2022 pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, representing approximately
0.55% of the then total number of issued shares. The estimated fair
value of each share granted was HK$1.28, which was determined using
market price of granted date. The Group recognised equity-settled
share award expense amounting to HK$7,670,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme"”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in Hong Kong for all qualifying employees of its Hong
Kong incorporated subsidiaries. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributed 5% of the relevant payroll costs to the
MPF Scheme but limited to the cap of HK$1,500 for each employee.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement schemes
organised by the Group is required to make contributions to the
schemes at a percentage that is specified by the local government
authorities.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to those retirement
benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions. The total
expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$22,917,000 (2021:
HK$26,152,000) represents contributions paid or payable to these
schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had
no forfeited contributions under those schemes which may be used by
the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions. There were also
no forfeited contributions available at 31 December 2022 and 2021
under the schemes which may be used by the Group to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.
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32.

33.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 146 to 147 of the financial statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$20,150,000 (2021:
HK$33,430,000) and HK$20,150,000 (2021: HK$33,430,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for plant and
equipment.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities
2022

Lease
liabilities
HESE
HK$'000
BETT
1 January 2022 #200%E1818 45,378
Changes from financing cash flows REREREY (16,501)
New leases Mg 20,150
Interest expense MERZ 3,013
Fair value change DEEEY -
Foreign exchange movement EHEH (2,143)
At 31 December 2022 1202212 318 49,897

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

32. %

AEERAFERBAFEMNFESE
BENUMBRRE 1462147 Bl AR
KEF -

E\‘/ ﬂﬂ}

B.AEHRERERMT

(@) FEFREXRS

FR - AEBAEEREEREENEE
ZHMERAEEERHEBEIER L
05 Bl 20,150,000 7T (20214 : 78
33,430,000 7T) K& /% # 20,150,000 7T
(2021 4 : 7% 33,430,000 7C) °

(b) RMEEZBELEZ2EERD

2022 F

Interest-bearing

bank loans
and other Convertible Interest
borrowings bonds payables Total
STERTER
REMER TRRES ERFIE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT

22,900 57,953 14 126,245
4,562 - b (14.171)
- - 20,150

= ’ 5816

- (7.092) (7,09)
(1,042) = (3,185)

26,420 50,861 121,763
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B RE R FEE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

2021

B.EZERERERHT @

(b) BMEEZBELEZEEEEH (5

20214

Interest-bearing

Lease  bank loans and Convertible Interest
liabilities  other borrowings bonds payables Total
SFTRRTER

REEE REMER maRkES FERFIE @5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT AT BETT BETT

At 1 January 2021 R202151R18 31,487 40,177 - 2,609 74,273
Changes from financing cash flows REHSRER (22,470) (17,736) 50,000 (4,300) 5,494
New leases MEE 33430 - - - 33,430
Interest expense MER% 2,040 - - 1,705 3,745
Fair value change NEEEY - - 7,953 - 7,953
Foreign exchange movement ELEH 891 459 - - 1,350
At 31 December 2021 20215124318 45,378 22,900 57,953 14 126,245
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33.

34.

35.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities (Continued)

The total cash outflow for leases relating to leases that have
disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details the Group’s pledged assets are included in notes 13, 14 and 21,
respectively, to the financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021 and 2022, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

36. COMMITMENTS 36. H&iE

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the REBERWE ARG AT EREE
reporting period:

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI 4B K B4
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 39,954 2,169
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any other RS EIR - N5 (B 3 4 T (o] B At 88 K RIE

significant commitment.

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BB AR S
(a) Compensation of key management personnel of (a) XEEZTEEEAENHS :
the Group:

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BRI
Short-term employee benefits mHEREERE 6,644 7,208
Pension scheme contributions BRIRE BN 219 207
Equity-settled share compensation expense VARE 3 45 S O AR 19 6 (8 7 2 6,761 4,595
13,624 12,010
Further details of directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments are EERZOTBRAEMESE —FHEBEHR

included in note 8 to the financial statements. R E TS ©
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. HEHFIEISMEMTIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RERSHAER  SEeRITANKEE
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: E b
Financial assets ETRMEE
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
Financial assets at amortised cost: RBHERATENSREE !
Trade receivables B 5 IR 172,302 134,783
Financial assets included in deposits and AR S KHE fth I
other receivables CREE 9,226 14,634
Cash and bank balances Be RRITEH 230,385 159,308

Financial assets at fair value through profitorloss R2AABEFABENERHEE
(mandatorily designated as such): (REEEmL)
Wealth management products B E M

Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss #ZAABEFABENERHEE

(designated as such upon initial recognition): (MpERBETMLY) :
Perpetual equity securities KA R E 5,168 7,331
418,791 316,056
Financial liabilities A= =R
2022 2021
2022 2021 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REERATENSREE:
Trade payables B RN HE 43,622 39,513
Financial liabilities included in other SEAE fth JE S FRIE R FE IR B Y
payables and accruals ERBE 34,381 22,616
Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings FFERITERREMER 26,449 22,900

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss & A A BE ABENEHEE
(designated as such upon initial recognition): (MHRBABEENL)
Convertible bonds ABRES 50,861 57,953

155,313 142,982
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHYOF 39. ¢ TEN A ABERAAEBE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, trade payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
amounts due from/to subsidiaries, interest-bearing bank loans
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the chief financial officer
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of other borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance
risk for other borrowings as at 31 December 2022 were assessed to
be insignificant. Management has assessed that the fair value of other
borrowings approximate to their carrying amount.

The Group involves an external valuer to determine the fair value of
convertible bonds using Monte Carlo model.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China and Hong
Kong. The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted
investments by using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on
the market interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF  39.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation
of financial instruments together with a qualitative sensitivity analysis as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

EMIENAABEERAAEBE
B4 @)

AT 2MR2022F K2021F12 A31HE /R T
ABENERT A BREH AZIEA&EEH
RREDITABE

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input  Weighted average Sensitivity of fair value to the input
fEER FABEERAHE ¥ AREEHBAHENIRE
Convertible bonds Monte Carlo model Expected volatility 2022:38.32% 5% (2021: 5%) increase in the expected volatility
(2021:36.99%) would result in increase in fair value by
HK$104,000 (2021: HK$4,000).
AARES SRRERR EHR I 2022 F : 38.32% TEHIRIEIE N 5% (20214F < 5%) #8 5K
(20214 :36.99%)  AA{BEZINAES104,0007T (20214
B 4,0007T)
Dividend yield 2022:4% 5% (2021: 5%) increase in the dividend yield
(2021: 4%) would result in decrease in fair value by
HK$4,000 (2021: HK$4,000).
[gsRl G 2022 : 4% BB E B IN5% (20216 : 5%) K&
(20214 : 4%) ARBERDEE4,0007T (20215
7 4,0007T)
Discount rate 2022: 19.09% 5% (2021: 5%) increase in the discount
(2021: 16.38%) rate would result in decrease in fair value
by HK$462,000 (2021: HK$15,000).
BR% 2022 F £ 19.09% BB RIEIN5% (20216 : 5%) 1§83

(20214 : 16.38%) A EER DB 462,000 7T (2021 F

#H15,0007T) ©
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHYOF 39. ¢RI TEN A ABERAAEBE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) & 4% )
Fair value hierarchy AREBEEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of THRAPAEEERTANAABESEBR:

the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value: BAARBEFENEE

As at 31 December 2022 72022412 H31H

Fair value measurement using
AREEFERA

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

TE R BEXABE EBATAUEBEE

miERE BAE BAYE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(B—E&R) (B=EHR) (B=EHR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETT BETT

Perpetual equity securities KARAESH 5,168 5,168
Wealth management products By ER 1,710 1,710

6,878 6,878

As at 31 December 2021 7R2021%F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

ARBEAERA
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
h R BEXABE BATIEE
M5 ERE B AR PN 67 @it
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(F—E#R) (B=EH) (BE=ZE#H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BETT BETT

Perpetual equity securities KARKEH 7,311 - - 7,311
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHYOF 39. €RiTENAABEEAAEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) & & &)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREBEEER(®
Liabilities measured at fair value: BAREBEFENERS:
As at 31 December 2022 7202212 H31H

Fair value measurement using
AAEEFBRERA
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

BB BATEE EBEAFUEE

miERE WASE BASE
(Level 1) (Level 2) ()]
(E—ER) (BE=ER) (E=ER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BYETT BET T BT T

Convertible bonds ABRES 50,861 50,861

As at 31 December 2021 MR2021F12A31H

Fair value measurement using

AABEFEHA
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
T BRAEE EBERTAHE
M5 R{E EIUN ¢ BAHE @5t
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(5—EH) (B=E#&) (B=E#H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BT

Convertible bonds ABRES - - 57,953 57,953
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FRN RMEERCREBANEBETEN
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for F-EARFE_EHRzELEER  FEQ
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2021: Nil). REEAEEASENEZER (2021F ) o
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31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. IR KREEEERBE

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank loans and other borrowings, convertible bonds, cash and bank
balances. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to support
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and other receivables and trade and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are market
risk (interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations with a
floating interest rate.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
pledged deposits, fixed-rate other borrowings, lease liabilities and
fixed-rate convertible bonds. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and variable-
rate bank loans. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates on bank balances and
Loan Prime Rate of National Interbank Funding Centre arising from
the Group’s RMB denominated bank loans. The Group manages its
interest rate exposures by assessing the potential impact arising from
any interest rate movements based on interest rate level and outlook.
The management will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed and
floating rates and ensure they are within reasonable range.

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks is being
undertaken globally, including the replacement of some interbank
offered rates ("IBORs"”) with alternative nearly risk-free rates. The
Group is closely monitoring the market and managing the transition to
new benchmark interest rates, including announcements made by the
relevant IBOR regulators.

258  China Leon Inspection Holding Limited ~Annual Report 2022

AEENTIZEMIABRBIERITERR
HMER - A RARES  Re RIRITAERR - %
EeRMTATIEANIHAEENEE - K
SEHARSREMEREERBE LWE
%&E@%WMEM&E%&E@EHM
HEEXRARARE ZEZ -

XE$EIiﬂIﬁMIxﬂ 2 AT s R (R

CHNERRBREEMERRR)  FER

//|L§b§$ﬂﬂ£° EEERIREETRE
FIEREROBE - ZERRMMWT -

SESCE

AEEHBNTISNEBEEMEEEEARE
BB ERGFRNRBERAEERH -

25 [ iR 2 IR R AE AR BE A R H A AR
o HEABREEMERABERESE B
ARABEFNEREE - $§lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
ERITEHBLFHFNERITERFANRS
//miﬂtﬂg”“ ° Z’»‘%.E"]i@ﬁum%ﬂ%ﬂﬁﬂ
FESTRAERUARBTENRITER
FEENRTAESR2BERITHARERES
SR ERTISREN KM KB - KEH
RAB A Z K R i R 5L E R R R E B
EENEBELE UEBHEMNXEAR- T8
JE 1 28 B4 [ 2 NO% B M) SR fiE SR L ) 0 3f B
REESEHEN -

BRI ZRIEES T 2MREEETRAMER
B BREEETRITHERZEREMNE ((RT
B 3 4 5 R R |) B 40 8 Ho A 1 M mL R 1
RS $%IEEMﬂ?mﬁ%&EELE
EREENENER  BEMEERITERE
REEERBIELNAE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2022, approximately 100% (2021: 75%) of the
Group's interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at floating rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings) and the Group's equity.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

BERBEEEERBEE®

FIEER ()

20224912 A31H
F 1 75%) MEr BEF

P NEE#)100% (2021
L/\/%@JT‘J—.—JE ©

Ti’%@JTTEﬁﬁEE% HERFIENER
CHAKENRAANECRBE SN EE

ROFE) RAREREHMEAGELRNE
BEEFHNEEEDN -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in basis points before tax in equity*
A2 PRI AE s
#BonCRd)  #mn SO S CRd)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
2021 20214
Hong Kong dollar ki 1% 165 165
* Excluding retained profits BIERBFE
Foreign currency risk K | P

The Group has currency exposures from its cash and cash equivalents
and convertible bonds denominated in HK$ and United States dollars.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
and convertible bonds denominated in currencies other than
functional currency of the relevant group entities were equivalent to
HK$7,880,000 (2021: HK$41,445,000) and HK$ 50,861,000 (2021:
HK$57,953,000), respectively.

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arises.

AEERBS LRSS EY RATIRREFIA
B I I TTETE T R ON S R bR o 72022 F
128318 AEBE N EBEEEREIGEEN
RN EETENRE SRR EED R
I 1E % 9 Bl & 78 % 7,880,000 7 (20214 : i
#541,445,0007T) K 7% ¥ 50,861,000 7 (2021
4 % 57,953,0007T) °

A& B B A8 SN E
EEREESERINEAR
ZREPERIMNERR

MBI - AT A&
AR EFEER

2022FEHE TEOBEBERERA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. BIEEREEEERBE @
AND POLICIES (continued)

HhiE ELBR ()

TRIRTERBLMEERBEREAER

T AEEBEFNEE D ERERS A

FR ] AL 5 B 1 0B AT -

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in the functional currency exchange rate by 5%, with all other
variables held constant, on the Group's profit after tax:

2022 2022 F

Increase/ (Decrease)/

(decrease) increase

in foreign in profit

exchange rate after tax

JPEE B HERE

®mCRL) OR) Em

HK$'000

BT T

If HK$ weakens against United States dollars fiw B SRR E (367)
If HK$ strengthens against United States dollars fiw 5 5T HHE 367

2021 20214

Increase/ (Decrease)/

(decrease) increase

in foreign in profit

exchange rate after tax

SN [ BN

2o CRd)  CRd), /386

HK$'000

BT
If HK$ weakens against United States dollars B8 HETRE 5% (77)
If HK$ strengthens against United States dollars w1 H T HHE (5%) 77
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default on
their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the Group.
The Group's credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, pledged deposits and bank balances. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy parties.
Receivable balances are monitored on an on-going basis and the
Group's exposure to credit risk is not significant. The credit quality of
customers is assessed after taking into account the customers’ financial
position and past experience with the customers.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is
mainly in the PRC and Singapore, which accounted for 39% and 42%
(2021: 56% and 26%) of the total trade receivables respectively as at
31 December 2022 and 2021. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
had concentration of credit risk, as 5% (2021: 12%) of its total trade
receivables were due from its largest customer and 26% (2021: 29%)
of its total trade receivables were due from its five largest customers
respectively. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals.

Except for trade receivables which are assessed individually, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model on trade balances
on a collective basis by using a provision matrix. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the end of reporting period
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

0. iIEREEEZERBEK®

EEER

FEERRERAKRBNEF I RERBTHES
MEEMEASERZHBERORER - KA
SEEENEERREIZREES MEME
WkIE EERERRBITES - AEEL
BB R RN E M EREREEAR
FEESREERMNEERR -

BEFAENELENE S BRFE
AEEERBERATREERFNEETET
R BEREHRBEREREE  AKET
BREOEERRIE TR - EZRBEFOTBN
NMEREFHBELRR  THEFNEE
BEREHLFE -

REERZMWIEMEEDMNEERBREEER
R I 72022 F K 20214F 12 A
31THD ML E ZEWFIERTEN39% & 42%
(20214 : 56% M 26% ) ° 1220224 12 A 31
A AEEZEERBEY 8 HEWRK
TBAAFER 0 5% (20219  12%) REEZAR
F o i26% (20214 : 29%) Bk AEAKRE
F-ABEERRAEZERE AEEETEE
EEF—AEKEEECEEREMMEERZ

BRERIFT (4 E 2 WA - REB AR
BEEZARNEERE SEHNBREEE
KRB TEITRENG - BEXDERAR
BUBEBREANZ @R D AR e A
BETE R ERBRIRETNEER B
BEKRBEHRAESNEEBETEMNF 2
AR MR R EARR TR AT R A FEE#Y o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES HEEMREEEEREE @

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) FERR @)
Deposits and other receivables ®R& R H R E
For deposits and other receivables, the directors make periodic RS LHMBEFAMS  EFREBHE

individual assessment on the recoverability of deposits and other
receivables based on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and/or qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information. The directors believe
that there are no significant increase in credit risk of these amounts
since initial recognition and the Group provided impairment based on
12-month ECLs. For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
allowance for credit losses was recognised.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the
following categories.

ENLE BELRARAEAARBER

B Bl IR 14

BR/AEMER

Hiwe ME

fth & Ui R I8 B AT K B 1 3 7T E A E Bl RE A e
EXERRBVNEEANRZERENEER

B AR EIE N

REBER12ME A EBAE

EiERBERE - HZE2022F % 2021F12 A

31AIEFE - HEET

AEEZRIEEE

AR

RIEEBRAREE -

B4 5% 4 5% 1 ph LA T4 B

Internal credit rating  Description Trade receivables Other financial assets

ABEEFTR g B 3 EWRIE Hitb S mEE

Normal The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECLs
does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired

EE HFHEADRRE LI EEMEHRRIEA 2HEMEERLS - 12@AEBEEEKX

FEEERE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECLs
usually settle in full not credit-impaired

ERAE BEBALERIPEEZER - >HEBEERL - 12@A8BBEEEEX
BERE2EUER FEEERE

Doubtful There was an increase in credit Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —

risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or
external resources

not credit-impaired

not credit-impaired

AJ &t A BN BRIEERET - 2HEBEERL - 2HEHBEEEX -
BEERK B YRR EZIEIN FHEEERE JEEERIE
Credit-impaired There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
EERE ERBRETEECDEERE T HEMEREL — 2HEHEEERX -
EERE EERE

Pledged deposits and bank balances

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group's pledged deposits
and bank balances are mainly placed with reputable banks which are
all high-credit-quality financial institutions, and therefore the Group's
credit risk on liquid funds is limited.

262 China Leon Inspection Holding Limited ~Annual Report 2022

R2022FE M2021F12 A31H  AEBHE

}bE #ﬁf

AN RITER
THASEELENSREE)

AEZERREBREN

B AR

%lﬁ’]m@)é%ﬁ%ﬂ 2 BR -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality by reference to internal credit
rating and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information unless
other information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 December 2022. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

12-month
ECLs
12 {8 B
EEEX
Stage 1
FIRER
HK$'000
BT T
2022 2022 F
Trade receivables* B 5 FEWRIE *
Financial assets included AFAEE R
in deposits and H h fE W kI
other receivables WEeMEE
— Normal** —EE** 9,301
Cash and bank balances R RBITHER
— Not yet past due — 3 %6 HY 230,385

239,686

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

BERBEEEERBEE®

FERR(#)

RERERRFAKR

TERBTRN2022F12 31BN B EARER
EERKR (FZERBAIHER  BRIEEM
EEEESNEBZRARE N TAIAES)
MNEEEX (K2EABEETR kEaE
ERBURFEREESE -T2V 2B AS
FEEMREAE -

Lifetime ECL
2 HTEH
FERX

Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
E2RR B3R Rk
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BE¥Tr B¥TT BE¥%Tx

177,950 177,950

9,301

230,385

177,950 417,636
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

40. BIBEAMRESEEERBEE ®

FERE ()
B LB R AR R ()

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
1218 A T8 81 2 HiTE
FEEX EEEX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
E1ER LMK E3EER  BRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT
2021 20214
Trade receivables* B 5 W RIE - - - 138,323 138,323
Financial assets included AFAEE R
in deposits and H th fE W 5k IB
other receivables WEMEE
— Normal** —IEE** 14,710 - - - 14,710
Cash and bank balances R RBITHER
— Not yet past due — 3 % HY 159,308 - - - 159,308
174,018 - - 138,323 312,341
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for * MAEBERBRESELLFENE S ERZIER

impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 18
to the financial statements.

i The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets is considered to be” normal” when they are not
past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be’ doubtful”.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate
to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 18 to the
financial statements.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of borrowings and debts and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating-rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from existing interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.

40.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

BERBEEEERBEE®

FERR(#)

BEERBRRFARR(E)

HRAEEEEERATREERTNE=T
EITR S FAi AR EERY - &R L
BRARAEENE ZRYFBAY R KES
TEEF AT FEERNEFEERR -

ERAKEHERE S RYFEMEELEEER
BREVE — E EBURR I ISR M 18 K EE -

REE S @R

HRBECRBREEMS  AEBERNH#
R LASFEVENEEBR/GELZ
K ABEAREEERERZ  XRER
ERERPMER 2T E BEEEERREN
BRBERAKER  WHRDETEREZE

TERFINAEEARIFTESHEEREE
BEZHTENIHBFE (RiBEENNE
7)o WRTIBBERAEE A REWERNRZ
ERRAMzZeRABEIARRRERERE
EPNHEAENELRALEERE - BT EF
EREME  ABBESHEDENMERRZ
BITMEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. BIEEREEEERBE®
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REESER(E)

31 December 2022 202212 H831H

Repayable
on demand In the third to Total
or within In the fifth years, Over undiscounted Carrying

oneyear  second year inclusive five years cash flow amount
E-ERENF
RERKE (B RER
£ fat -2 HEWE) BBIE RERELE KEfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI ARTR ERTR

Trade payables BHEATE 43,622 43,622 43,622
Finandial liabiliies included in AR MERTER
other payables and accruals EBRNEBAR 34,381 34,381 34,381
Interest-bearing bank loans and ERTEHREBER
other borrowings 26,814 - - 26,814 26,449
Lease liabilities HEaR 15,586 14,019 27,19 67,001 49,897
Convertible bonds akES 51,000 1,000 1,556 53,556 50,861
171,403 15,019 28,748 10,204 225,374 205,210
31 December 2021 2021512 A31H
Repayable
on demand In the third to Total
or within In the fifth years, Over  undiscounted Carrying
one year second year inclusive five years cash flow amount
E-EERE
BETER (B RER
3—ER FIE BEME) BATLE HENESLE BHfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI AR BRI BETT BETTR BETR

Trade payables BHENTE 39,513 - - - 39,513 39,513
Finandial liabilities included in SAERENTER
other payables and accruals EHEENERAE 22,616 - - - 22,616 22,616
Interest-bearing bank loans and ERTETREMER
other borrowings 19,701 3463 - - 23,164 22,900
Lease liabilites HERE 12,188 9,465 14,420 13,735 49,808 45378
Convertible bonds AR ES 50,500 - - - 50,500 57,953
144,518 12,928 14,420 13,735 185,601 188,360
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

41.

AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its financial
instruments measured at FVTPL. For the investments in perpetual equity
securities measured at FVTPL, the Group has appointed a special team
to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk at the reporting date. Sensitivity analyses for the
Group’s unquoted convertible bonds with fair value measurement
categorised within Level 3 were disclosed in note 39. For sensitivity
analysis of perpetual equity securities with fair value measurement
categorised within Level 1, the sensitivity rate is increased to 5% in the
current year as a result of the volatile financial market.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 5% (2021:
5%) higher/lower, the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2022 would have increased/decreased by HK$258,000 (2021:
HK$306,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

40.

41.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

BERBEEEERBEE®

AR 2 (B % L B

AEBEEBRANBEFABREAENER
TEAmEBRAERRR HREQAEET
AB@FERKABRTERRE  AEEHD
ZESENHEEEERRER LHREFE
i 5 5 EL R -

BRESMDRERE AR ZBAERAR
EE AEEQARBEFENERAE=ZER
B R 3R B AT 4 AR B 25 1O B E 0 AT OB RE 39
WE-HRAANEBEEAENERFE BEARN
KABRAKREFEHFHGREDN - AR SR TS
B2 QRELERAFERSESS -

HABRATANE®E LA TBE5% (2021
% :5%)  BIEZE2022F12 A31 B IEFEEY
BREEFEEREZAABEFABZHSE
BEAABEZEME M H DB 258,000
70 (2021 4 : &% 306,0007T) °

EXERER

AEEEAERNEZENRREAEE R
BREDHEFBREAL NN EHX
FEEBLERRREERKL -

AEFRRAESCEBSAZHLREREENRAR
HEEETARELAEE BEFSIARE
REB AEBAUARES TREMRES
MR REREERNHIEITHR - BE2022F K
221512 A3 BIEFEE AEELENEE
BEAMBER  BERIEFT -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

41. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 41.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by capital plus net debt. The Group’s policy is to maintain
the gearing ratio below 70%. Net debt includes trade payables,
other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings, and convertible bonds, less cash and cash equivalents.
Capital represents equity attributable to owners of the Company. The
gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BEAXARERERE®

AEEBEELRSEER  BEEERER
B EFEG LSRN LA BFEOBA - K
2 B A0 I 5 0 M 4 S B 1 L R AE R 700% o
AEFEAERSMNKE KR %E
RAEEEE - 58 IRITE R E 4 A
MERESRR S RESSEY - AAEA
NG AFE 2 - R BRI %
mF :

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
HKS$ 000 HK$'000
BT T ST T

43,622 39,513
72,993 54,490
26,449 22,900
50,861 57,953
(222,254) (150,636)

(28,329) 24,220
378,268 347,638

349,939 371,858

Trade payables 2 5 eI /18

Other payables and accruals E e 5K M ERTIE B
Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings &t B R1TEF E H ih {& 5K
Convertible bonds AT AR & 5

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BeRBEEED
Net (surplus)/debt (Rtg)/AEFHE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRBIHEE AEGRER
Capital and net debt BERRBEEE

Gearing ratio EIRH &

6.51%

Note: Gearing ratio is zero when the amount of cash and cash equivalents is higher
than gross debt (2021: 6.51%).

42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42,

The Group has no significant events after the reporting year up to the
date of this report.

43. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 43.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to
current year’s presentation.
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44. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of Leon Overseas and its subsidiaries that have material non-

controlling interests are set out below:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

B 2 F

BARFBET :

Current assets mENEE
Non-current assets EmMEBEE
Current liabilities mEatE
Non-current liabilities FERBAE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ARRHA NGRS

Non-controlling interests of Leon Overseas

P an

Leon Overseas 3F#2

Non-controlling interests of Leon Overseas’

Leon Overseas i &~ A1&)

subsidiaries FEFE R R RS
Revenue Wz
Expenses X
Profit for the year FARE

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
Profit attributable to the non-controlling
interests of Leon Overseas

Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests of

Leon Overseas’ subsidiaries

KABEE ARE(RFE
Leon Overseas FE 12 J% 1 %5 JiE (5 F) )

Leon Overseas /i B A 7] &) FEIZ A%
T FEAE F)E

Profit for the year

FAFE

Other comprehensive expense attributable to
owners of the Company

Other comprehensive expense attributable to the

non-controlling interests of Leon Overseas

ARRHA AEEEMEEMX

Leon Overseas FE#2° A% 42 %5 FE 16
HEth2MEAX

Other comprehensive expense for the year

FAHEMEHEX

Total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the Company

Total comprehensive income attributable to the
non-controlling interests of Leon Overseas

Total comprehensive income attributable to the
non-controlling interests of Leon Overseas'’
subsidiaries

xq

RRABEE A2 W B

Leon Overseas FE 12 J% 1 25 FE 1
cHEW LT

Leon Overseas i /& /2 &) A JE#5 A%
EmEhEmR SRR

Total comprehensive income for the year

FAZE AR

2022 FEHRE

2022
2022
HK$'000
i ab
196,652
75,514
(81,667)
(45,232)
76,902

73,886

(5.521)

451,757

(400,228)
51,529
29,096
27,954
(5.521)

51,529

(3,080)

(2,959)

((FED))

26,016

24,995

SR abr

4. BEERFEREZNMIESR

Leon Overseas & H 5 & K JE#5 AR 42 25 A9 FfT

2021
20214
HK$'000
BT
150,047
64,991

(67,236)

(54,678)
50,309

48,336

(5,521)

397,531

(340,403)
57,128
31,833
30,584

(5,289)

57,128

(1,002)
(964)

(1,966)

30,831

29,620

(5,289)

55,162
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 45. Zx 1 B B # ik 3k

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

RIBEMRBEBAAR AP BEARRRAOERNT -

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T TS IT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MR 1 1
Investment in subsidiaries REWE R A 62,456 67,282
Amount due from subsidiaries A NG E e 83,963 96,036
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 159 120
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 146,579 163,439
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables H ith fE Ue X8 4,473 4,088
Amount due from subsidiaries JEUS B B A B FR T8 55,053 57,519
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 1,127 10,247
Total current assets mENVEERE 60,653 71,854
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Other payables H b T 5RI8 31,571 12,728
Convertible bonds AR ESH 50,861 57,953
Lease liabilities HEaE 150 102
Total current liabilities mEARERRE 82,582 70,783
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS HE(AE) BEFE (21,929) 1,071
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHAERRBESE 124,650 164,510
Net assets BEFE 124,650 164,510
EQUITY e
Share capital g 2 189 172
Reserves w1 124,461 164,338
Total equity AR 124,650 164,510
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 755 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

45. KD BB MR T @)

COMPANY (Continued)
A summary of the Company’s reserve is as follows: KARREEREDT
Shares
Share-based held for Exchange
Capital compensation  share award  fluctuation Retained
reserve reserve scheme reserve profits Total
NRORER RARBHE B RS
EARE NRERE ke & REFE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2021 2021 1R18 140,302 3,727 (5,920) (6,023) 59,605 191,691
(Loss) and total comprehensive ER(FER)REAEFES)

(expense) for the year B - - - 793 (7,441) (6,648)
2020 final dividend declared BER2020FRERS - - - - (18,030) (18,030)
2021 interim dividend declared BER2021 EHERS - - - - (9,844) (9,844)
Equity-settled shares NEREENRHBERSL

compensation expense - 9,398 - - - 9,398
Shares purchased for share R REEEE 2 RH

award scheme - - (6,309) - - (6,309)
Award shares vested ERENERRY - (4,170) 3,757 - 413 -
Bonus issue of shares FITHR 86,243 - - - (86,259) (16)
Issue of shares upon exercise of FEREETEMETRN

share options 5,151 (1,055) - - - 4,096
At 31 December 2021 R20215128318 231,69 7,900 8472 (6230 (615%) 164338
(Loss) and total comprehensive FR(FER RZAEFER)

(expense) for the year fex (16,268) (16,736)
2021 final dividend declared BER2021 5 RERE (7.983) (7,983)
2022 interim dividend declared BER02FFEHRS (10,733) (10,733)

Equity-settled shares
compensation expense
Shares purchased for share

award scheme
Award shares vested
Bonus issue of shares
Others

NEREENRNBRERX
REHRBHIRE RN
EERMERR

ESIRL
Eft

At 31 December 2022

120225128318

293,770

(8,084)

15,404

(4,085)
8,084

(4,473)
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(5,698)

(62,091)
(15.911)

(174,542)

15,588

(4,085)

(17)
(15911)

124,461




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S B

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H

46. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 46. #it B S BHEK

STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised GREVBMREEEFN2023F3 A308
for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2023. MR -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHME

For the year ended 31 December
BEZ12A31BLEE

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20184 20194 20204 2021 % 2022 F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BT T

Revenue 'ON 273,055 497,733 649,904 818,828 944,014
Profit before tax 758 A1l ) B 16,602 52,911 99,748 112,761 136,341
Income tax expense ISR (10,877) (20,463) (19,752) (23,087) (31,513)
Profit for the year FAFE 5,725 32,448 79,996 89,674 104,828
Profit attributable to: LT REEEFE :
Owners of the Company RRBHEE A 16,379 27,273 52,455 49,836 69,397
Non-controlling interests FEPE R T (10,654) 5,175 27,541 39,838 35,431
As at 31 December
M®12A31H

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

20184 20194 20204 20214 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BETF T BT T BT T BT T

Total assets EE#RE 374,815 462,587 522,241 666,131 760,088

Total liabilities BERRE 150,292 216,105 198,323 239,532 273,063

Equity attributable to owners AN QX FIHEA A

of the Company (LRSS 230,099 248,681 297,567 347,638 378,268

Notes: ffeE -

1. In 2019, the Group has applied IFRS 16. Accordingly, certain comparative information 1 R2019%F - AEEC EACERABREENDE 165 -
for the years ended 31 December 2018 may not be comparable to the years ended 31 At - BE20185F 12 A31 HIEFEME THERERA]
December 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 as such comparative information was prepared A2 B F 20194 « 20204 ~ 2021 4F K 2022 F 12 A 31
under IAS 17. HUEFERTLE  ARZSLRENDRE(RRE

FTEERIDE 7SR AR B o
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DEFINITIONS
e

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following
expressions shall have the following meanings.

"2022 Bonus Issue”

[2022 FATR% 317 ]

"AGM(s)"

[RRBEFRE ]

" Articles”
[EF2408)]

“Audit Committee”

[BZEEE]

“Board”

[EFE]

"CEO"
[T B AR

"CG Code”
(EEERTAD]

“China” or “PRC" or “Mainland China”

[F B sk [ B A
“Company”, “our Company”,

nou

"Group”,

“China Leon”, “we" or “us”
[RAdE] - [AREH] -

[ B 0% 1 sk [ 3

our Group”,

“Controlling Shareholders”

[ 2R AR

RAFERER  BRXESFMIEIN - THARA
BT -

The bonus issue made on the basis of one (1) bonus share for every ten (10) existing
shares in issue held on the record date, i.e. 4 July 2022, by the qualifying shareholders
ERAEAKRKRENGEBAE (B1202247H4R) BHE T(10RRAED ETRH &
T— () IRAL IR B2 TR AL AR 37T

annual general meeting(s) of the Company

BARARNBERBEARE

the articles of association of the Company adopted on 18 June 2016
FEARNER 2016 6 A 18 B HR A A48 4% = 12 40 A

the audit committee of the Company

BARRNBERELZERS®

the board of Directors of the Company

BARANESS

chief executive officer of the Company

FEARRBHITTIRAAE

the “Corporate Governance Code” set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

FERCETRAD MR 14 PrEl (R EER TR

the People’s Republic of China
B E AR AR

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (7 B /7 % i 5 15 % 5 BR 2 &]), an exempted
company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 29
July 2015 and except where the context indicated otherwise its subsidiaries
ERERRBIERAERAR - —KK201547 20 A RIEHA SRS A EFMA L
BEREEREELAR(BRXESHEMEIN) EWMB LR

Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi, Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding
Limited, Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited and Hawk Flying Investment Holding
Limited
EEEALE KRB &L L 21 %L - Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding
Limited ~ Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited F Hawk Flying Investment Holding
Limited

Annual Report 2022



“Director(s)”

[E%]

VESGH
[RIR - -HEekER

"HKS"
%]

“Listing Rules”

[KETARAD]

“Model Code”

[T A

“Nomination Committee"

[IRBREZEE

“Prospectus”

[ ER]

“Remuneration Committee”

r*ﬁ'@”ﬁt/\ =

“RMB”
AR

"SEQ"

(&7 R B A1)

“Share(s)"”

vl

DEFINITIONS
B=

the director(s) of the Company
EARRRIES

Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE -HEgRER

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

b=l g/%/j&ﬂi ‘ﬁg /%%

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as amended from
time to time)
(R PE S ER A (B ARERT)

the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
BCETRADMEN0E 2 EMBITAESETEF R ZHNEFETAD

\

the nomination committee of the Company

EARRIMREREZES

the prospectus of the Company dated 29 June 2016
BAATIHEIA20165F6 A29 M BIRETR

the remuneration committee of the Company

EARRNHMHEZE S

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

BHENEEEY AR

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BRBEVE SN BC(ESF MGG - BTRER] - MR AR T A ER

ordinary share(s) of par value US$0.00005 each in the issued share capital of our
Company

ARG E TR & % {5 0.00005 2 7T 8 3 A%

2022FEHmE TEIERBERERAR
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DEFINITIONS
e

“Shareholder(s)”
[A% 3 |

"Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 Ffr |

“year"

[AFEE]

nopn
[%)]

holder(s) of the Shares
ERNEFEEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEERBBMAERXIMAERAA

from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
EE2022F 1 A1HE20225612 A31H

per cent.
BB
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